* BARC'_AYS Wealth Management

Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual report and audited financial statements for the financial
year ended 31 May 2020




Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Contents Page
Organisation 1
Background to the Company 6
Investment manager’s report 15
Depositary’s report to the Shareholders 34
Directors’ report 35
Independent auditors’ report to the members of Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC 43
Statement of comprehensive income 48
Statement of financial position 54
Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares 60
Statement of cash flows 66

Notes to the financial statements 72



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Contents (continued)
Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2020

ClobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund
ClobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund
ClobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex -Japan) Fund
ClobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund
GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund
GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund
GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund
GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund
GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund
GlobalAccess US Equity Fund

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund
GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund
GlobalAccess Japan Fund

Schedule of portfolio changes for the financial year ended 31 May 2020 (unaudited):

GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund
GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund
GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex -Japan) Fund
ClobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund
GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund
GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund
GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund
GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund
GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund
GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund
GlobalAccess US Equity Fund

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund
ClobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund
GlobalAccess Japan Fund

Appendix 1 UCITS V remuneration disclosure (unaudited)
Appendix 2: Securities financing transaction regulations (unaudited)

Appendix 3: Other information (unaudited)

Page

177
183
199
211
236
275
310
345
352
379
397
405
427
450
461

469
471
473
475
477
479
481
483
485
487
489
491
493
495
497
499
501

503
505

508



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Organisation

Directors of the Company
Séan Blake (Irish)

David Kingston (Irish)
Hugh Paul Shovlin (Irish)
Kishor Mandalia (UK)

1Independent non executive Directors

Depositary

Northern Trust Fiduciary Services
(Ireland) Limited

Georges Court

54 — 62 Townsend Street

Dublin 2

Ireland

Secretary

Wilton Secretarial Limited
6t Floor

2 Grand Canal Square
Dublin 2

Ireland

Investment manager & promoter
Barclays Investment Solutions Limited
Acting through its Wealth
Management Division

One Churchill Place

Canary Wharf

London E14 5HP

United Kingdom

Administrator, registrar and

transfer agent

Northern Trust International Fund
Administration Services (Ireland) Limited
Georges Court

54 — 62 Townsend Street

Dublin 2

Ireland

Irish legal advisor
William Fry Solicitors
6th Floor

2 Grand Canal Square
Dublin 2

Ireland

Registered office

6th Floor

2 Grand Canal Square
Dublin 2

Ireland

Independent auditors
PricewaterhouseCoopers
One Spencer Dock

North Wall Quay

Dublin 1

Ireland

Registered No: 390324



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Organisation (continued)

Distributors

Axeltis S.A.

8-12 rue des Pirogues de Bercy
CS 91235 75580

Paris Cedex 12

France

Barclays Bank PLC

5 The North Colonnade
Canary Wharf

London, E14 4BB
United Kingdom

Barclays Bank PLC
Isle of Man Branch
Barclays House
Victoria Street
Douglas

Isle of Man, IM99 1A]

Barclays Investment Solutions Limited
1 Churchill Place

Canary Wharf

London, E14 5HP

United Kingdom

Sub-Investment Managers
AllianceBernstein
Devonshire House

One Mayfair Place

London W1) 8A|

United Kingdom

Artemis Fund Managers Limited
42 Melville Street

Edinburgh EH3 7HA

United Kingdom

BNY Mellon ARX Investimentos
Avenge Borges de Medeiros
633 40 andar

Offices Shopping Leblon

Rio de Janeiro CEP 22430-041
Brazil

Bankinter S.A. — Sucursal em Portugal
Praga Marqués de Pombal

n.13, 2nd Floor

1250-162 Lisboa

Portugal

Barclays Bank PLC
Guernsey Branch
Le Marchant House
St Peter Port
Guernsey, GY1 3BE
Channel Islands

Barclays Bank Suisse SA
Chemin de Grange-Canal 18-20
P.O. Box 3941

1211 Geneva 3

Switzerland

SMBC Nikko Securities Inc
3-1 Marunouchi 3-chome
Chiyoda-ku

Tokyo 100 -8325

Japan

Allianz Global Investors
199 Bishopsgate
Shoreditch

London EC2M 3TY
United Kingdom

Baillie Gifford & Co
Calton Square

1 Greenside Row
Edinburgh EH1 3AN
United Kingdom

Ceredex Value Advisors LLC
333 Piedmont Road NE
Suite 1500

Atlanta GA 30305

United States

Bank of Singapore

63 Market Street

22-00 Bank of Singapore Centre
Singapore 048942

Barclays Bank PLC
Jersey Branch

13 Library Place
St Helier

Jersey, JE4 8NE
Channel Islands

Barclays Bank PLC
1 Churchill Place
Canary Wharf
London, E14 5HP
United Kingdom

Arrowstreet Capital, L.P.
200 Clarendon Street
The John Hancock Centre
30t Floor

Boston 02116-5021
United States

BlackRock Inc.

55 East 52nd Street
New York

NY 10055

USA

Colchester Global Investors
20 Saville Row

London W1S 3PR

United Kingdom



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Organisation (continued)

Sub-Investment Managers (continued)

Fidelity International Ltd
Pensions Management
Oakhill House

130 Tonbridge Road
Hildenborough

Kent TN119DZ

United Kingdom

Invesco Global Asset Management
43-45 Portman Square
Marylebone

London W1H 6LY

United Kingdom

Kennedy Capital Management
10829 Olive Boulevard

Suite 100

Saint Louis

Missouri 63141

United States

Lindsell Train Limited

2 Queen Anne’s Gate Buildings
Dartmouth Street

London SW1H 9BP

United Kingdom

Merian Global Investors
(formerly Old Mutual
Global Investors)

2 Lambeth Hill

London EC4P 4WR
United Kingdom

Payden & Rygel

333 South Grand Avenue
32nd Floor

Los Angeles CA90071
United States

Pzena Investment Management LLC
120 West 45t Street

20th Floor

New York NY 10036

United States

Hermes Investment Management
Limited

Lloyds Chambers

1 Porsoken Street

London E1 8HZ

United Kingdom

J O Hambro Capital Management
Limited

Ground Floor

14 Ryder Street

London SW1Y 6QB

United Kingdom

Kleinwort Benson Investors
3rd Floor

2 Harbourmaster Place
IFSC

Dublin 1

Ireland

London Company of Virginia LLC
1800 Bayberry Court

Suite 301

Richmond VA 23226

United States

Nomura Corporate Research and
Asset Management, Inc.

2 World Financial Center
Building B

New York NY 10281-1198
United States

PIMCO Europe Ltd
103 Wigmore Street
London W1U 1QS
United Kingdom

Schroders Investment Management
(Japan) Ltd

31 Gresham Street

London WC2V 7QA

United Kingdom

Heronbridge Investment
Management LLP

1 Queen Street

Bath BA1 THE

United Kingdom

Jupiter Asset Management Limited
1 Grosvenor Place

London SW1X 7))

United Kingdom

Lazard Asset Management Limited
50 Stratton Street

London W1) 8LL

United Kingdom

Majedie Asset Management
10 Old Bailey

London EC4M 7NG

United Kingdom

Oaktree Capital Management L.P.
333 South Grand Avenue

28th Floor

Los Angeles

CA 90071

United States

Principal Global Investors (Europe)
Limited

Level 1

1 Wood Street

London EC2V 7B

United Kingdom

Somerset Capital Management LLP
28 Ely Place

London ECIN 6TD

United Kingdom



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Organisation (continued)

Sub-Investment Managers (continued)

T. Rowe Price

100 East Pratt Street
Baltimore

Maryland 21202
United States

Counterparty

Wellington Management Company LLP

75 State Street
Boston MA 02109
United States

At the financial year end, one or more of the 15 Funds entered into futures contracts and forward currency contracts

with the following counterparties:

ANZ Bank

40 Bank Street
Canary Wharf
London E14 5E])
United Kingdom

BNP Paribas PLC
60 London Wall
London EC2M 5TQ
United Kingdom

Credit Agricole

91-93 Boulevard Pasteur
Paris

75015

France

Goldman Sachs International
Peterborough Court

133 Fleet Street

London EC4A 2BB

United Kingdom

Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc
25 Cabot Street

Canary Wharf

London E14 4QA

United Kingdom

The Northern Trust Company,
Singapore Branch

1 George Street

Singapore 049145

Singapore

Bank of America Merrill Lynch
5 Canada House

London E14 5AQ

United Kingdom

Citibank International plc
Citigroup Centre

33 Canada Square
Canary Wharf

London E14 5LB

United Kingdom

Credit Suisse International
1 Cabot Street

Canary Wharf

London E14 4Q)

United Kingdom

HSBC Bank plc2
8 Canada Square
Canary Wharf
London E14 5HQ
United Kingdom

The Northern Trust Company,
Chicago Branch

50 South Lasalle Street
Chicago, lllinois 60675

United States

The Toronto-Dominion Bank
55 King St W

Toronto

ON M5K 1A2

Canada

Barclays Bank PLC
1 Churchill Place
Canary Wharf
London E14 5HP
United Kingdom

Commonwealth Bank of Australia
Ground Floor

Tower 1

201 Sussex Street

Sydney, NSW

Australia

Deutsche Bank AG

1 Great Winchester Street
London EC2N 2DB

United Kingdom

JP Morgan Chase Bank3
25 Bank Street

Canary Wharf

London E14 5JP

United Kingdom

The Northern Trust Company,
50 Bank Street

Canary Wharf

London E14 5NT

United Kingdom

Royal Bank of Canada
Riverbank House

2 Swan Lane

London EC4R 3BF
United Kingdom



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Organisation (continued)

Counterparty (continued)

Royal Bank of Scotland Societe Generale
36 St Andrew Square S G House
Edinburgh 41 Tower Hill

EH2 2YB London EC3N 4SG
United Kingdom United Kingdom
State Street Bank UBS

20 Churchill Place 1 Finsbury Avenue
Canary Wharf London EC2M 2PP
London E14 5H) United Kingdom

United Kingdom

2 Marine Midland Bank is owned by HSBC Bank plc
3 Chase Manhattan Bank is owned by JP Morgan Chase Bank

Standard Chartered Bank
1 Basinhall Avenue
London EC2V 5DD
United Kingdom



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Background to the Company

The below details are in summary form only and must be read in conjunction with the detailed information contained in
the Prospectus of the Company.

Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC (the “Company") is an open-ended investment company, with variable capital and
limited liability organised under the laws of Ireland (the "Central Bank"). The Company was incorporated in Ireland on 27
September 2004. The Company is authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland as a Undertakings for Collective Investment
in Transferable Securities ("UCITS") within the meaning of the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective
Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (as amended) (the “UCITS Regulations”) and the Central Bank
(Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable
Securities) Regulations 2019 (as amended) (the "Central Bank UCITS Regulations").

The Company is structured as an umbrella Fund in that different sub-funds (each a “Fund”, collectively the “Funds”)
thereof may be established with the prior approval of the Central Bank. In addition, each Fund may have more than one
share class. The shares of each class in a Fund will rank pari passu with each other in all respects except as to all or any
of the following:

currency denomination of the class;

— dividend policy;

— the level of fees and expenses to be charged;

— the minimum subscription, minimum holdings and minimum redemption applicable; and
— the hedging strategy of the class.

The net assets of each Fund will be separate from one another and will be invested in accordance with the investment
objectives and policies applicable to each such Fund.

Shares are currently available as Class A shares, Class B shares, Class | shares, Class M shares and Class Z shares. The
Class A, Class B, Class I, Class M and Class Z shares are available as accumulation and distribution shares for all Funds in
US dollars, British pound and euro, and for the GlobalAccess Japan Fund, also in Japanese yen.

The Class Y shares are only available in the euro accumulation share class for all Funds.

The Distributors (stated on page 2 "Organisation") also act as paying agents. The Prospectus, the annual and semi-
annual reports, and a list of all fund transactions of the portfolios can be obtained free-of-charge from your local
distributor.

When a reference is made to the Company in the financial statements, it refers to any of the 15 live Funds within the
umbrella.

All Funds with exception of the GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund are listed on the Global Exchange Market
(GEM) of Euronext Dublin (formerly the Irish Stock Exchange).

Investment objectives

The Company appoints Sub-Investment Managers to provide investment management and advisory services in respect
of part or all of the assets of the Funds. The Investment Manager will select high quality Sub-Investment Managers and
monitors their performance and can make replacements if they feel it necessary. Details of the Sub-Investment
Managers operating during the financial year from 1 June 2019 to 31 May 2020 are outlined in the "Organisation" on
pages 2 to 4.

Any alteration to the investment objectives or any material change to the investment policies of any Fund at any time will
be subject to the prior approval in writing of a majority of Shareholders of such Fund. The individual Funds’ investment
objectives and strategies are briefly outlined in the investment manager report and detailed in the prospectus and
supplements to the Funds.
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Background to the Company (continued)

Calculation of net asset value per share in accordance with the Prospectus

The net asset value of each Fund is expressed in its base currency. The net asset value attributable to any class of shares
within a Fund will be determined by deducting the share of liabilities of that class from its share of the assets of the Fund.
The net asset value of each share of each class will be determined by dividing the net asset value attributable to the class
by the number of shares of that class in issue.

In determining the net asset value in accordance with the Prospectus, the value of an investment which is quoted, listed
or normally dealt in on a Regulated Market, including units or shares in an open-ended investment fund, shall be the
closing mid-market price on such Regulated Market as at the Valuation Point or the last traded price when no closing
mid-market price is available. The value of any investment which is not quoted, listed or normally dealt in on a Regulated
Market shall be the probable realisable value estimated with care and in good faith by a competent person, firm or
association making a market in such investment (approved for the purpose by the Depositary) and/or other competent
person, in accordance with the opinion of the Directors (and approved for the purpose by the Depositary).

The value of any futures contracts and options which are dealt in on a Regulated Market shall be the settlement price as
determined by the market in question, provided that if such settlement price is not available for any reason or is
unrepresentative, same shall be valued at the probable realisation value estimated with care and good faith by a
competent person (approved for the purpose by the Depositary).

The value of any over the counter (“OTC”) derivatives contracts such as forward contracts shall be valued at least daily at
a price obtained from the counterparty or by an alternative valuation provided by a competent person (which may be the
administrator or the investment manager) appointed by the Directors and approved by the Depositary for such purpose.

Distribution policy

It is intended that each distributing share class of each Fund will declare and pay its investment income return to
Shareholders as dividends on a quarterly basis, usually within 10 business days following the end of the relevant quarter
(i.e. within 10 business days of the end of February, May, August and November of each year).

In determining the net asset value in accordance with the Prospectus, the fees and expenses of all the "Bond Funds", as
defined below and in the Prospectus and Supplements, will be charged to the income of the Funds. The "Equity Funds",
as defined below and in the Prospectus and Supplements (with the exception of the GlobalAccess Global Equity Income
Fund and GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund), will charge all of their fees and expenses to available income in
the first instance and where there is insufficient income, then to capital of the Funds. Fees and expenses of the
GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund and the GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund will be charged to the
capital of the Fund.

Single swinging prices

Shares will be issued and redeemed at a single price. The net asset value per share may be adjusted on any Dealing Day
depending on whether or not a Fund is in a net subscription position or in a net redemption position on such Dealing Day
to arrive at the price. The adjustment relates to costs which impact on the value of the Fund.

For valuation purposes the securities are valued as outlined above. When these values are compared with the actual cost
of buying or selling assets for a Fund differences arise due to dealing charges and spreads from buying or selling of the
underlying investments. These costs have an adverse effect on the value of a Fund and are known as "dilution".

To mitigate the effects of dilution, the Directors have determined to make a dilution adjustment to the net asset value per
share. The Directors have determined to make a dilution adjustment as, in their opinion, the existing Shareholders, in
case of subscriptions, or remaining Shareholders, in case of redemptions, are adversely affected. The dilution adjustment
involves adding to, when the Fund is in a net subscription position, and deducting from, when the Fund is in a net
redemption position, the net asset value per share such a figure as the Directors consider represents an appropriate
figure to meet duties, charges and spreads. When the dilution adjustment is made, it increases the price where the Fund
is in a net subscription position and decreases the price where the Fund is in a net redemption position.
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Single Swinging Prices (continued)

The threshold for applying the dilution adjustment on daily dealing is 1% of a Fund’s net asset value. This is a daily

process. The Directors review on a periodic basis the size of the dilution adjustment.

Funds at a glance

Fund size Launch date
31 May 2020
GlobalAccess UK Opportunities 354,155,243 17 Aug 2004

Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B accumulating USD shares™
Class | accumulating shares

Class | distributing shares

Class | accumulating EUR shares
Class | accumulating USD shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class M distributing EUR shares™*
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

GlobalAccess Global Government 141,495,985 18 Aug 2004
Bond Fund

Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class B distributing shares

Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class | accumulating shares

Class | accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR Shares
Class M distributing GBP Shares
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex- 73,889,321 12 Aug 2004
Japan) Fund

Class A accumulating shares

Class B accumulating shares

Class B accumulating GBP shares™*

Class | accumulating GBP shares

Class | distributing GBP shares

Class M accumulating shares

Class M distributing shares

Active
or
indexed
Active

Active

Active

Fund
currency

GBP

usb

usbD

Investment
management
feet

1.50%
1.50%
1.25%

0.90%
0.90%
0.90%
0.90%
0.73%
0.73%
0.74%
0.74%

2.00%
2.00%

1.15%
0.95%
0.95%
0.60%
0.60%
0.60%
0.45%
0.45%
0.45%
0.45%
0.45%
0.45%
1.15%
1.15%

1.50%
1.25%

0.90%
0.90%
0.75%
0.75%

Ongoing
charges

1.59%
1.63%
1.34%

0.99%
0.99%
1.03%
1.03%
0.83%
0.83%
0.87%
0.88%

2.09%
2.13%

1.39%
1.16%
1.19%
0.81%
0.85%
0.85%
0.66%
0.66%
0.70%
0.70%
0.70%
0.70%
1.36%
1.40%

1.82%
1.57%

1.26%
1.26%
1.07%
1.07%
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Funds at a glance (continued)

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-
Japan) Fund (continued)

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
(Unhedged)

Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

GlobalAccess Emerging Market
Equity Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A distributing EUR shares
Class A distributing GBP shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B distributing shares™*
Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class B distributing GBP shares
Class | accumulating shares

Class | accumulating EUR shares
Class | accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares” ~
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
(Unhedged)

Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

GlobalAccess High Yield Bond
Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A distributing shares

Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A accumulating GBP shares
Class A distributing EUR shares
Class A distributing GBP shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B distributing shares

Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares

Fund size
31 May 2020

73,889,321

489,937,929

584,299,825

Launch date

12 Aug 2004

29 Aug 2007

27 Nov 2007

Active
or
indexed
Active

Active

Active

Fund
currency

usb

usb

usb

Investment
management
feet

0.75%
0.75%
0.75%

0.46%
2.00%
2.00%

1.50%
1.50%
1.50%
1.50%
1.25%

1.25%
1.25%
1.25%
1.10%
1.10%
1.10%
1.10%
0.94%
0.94%
0.94%
0.94%
0.94%
0.94%

0.65%
2.00%
2.00%

1.25%
1.25%
1.25%
1.25%
1.25%
1.25%
1.05%
1.05%
1.05%
1.05%

Ongoing
charges

1.11%
1.11%
1.11%

0.79%
232%
2.36%

1.63%
1.67%
1.67%
1.67%
1.38%

1.42%
1.42%
1.42%
1.23%
1.27%
1.27%
1.27%
1.08%
1.08%
1.12%
1.12%
1.12%
1.12%

0.79%
2.13%
2.17%

1.34%
1.34%
1.38%
1.38%
1.38%
1.38%
1.14%
1.14%
1.18%
1.18%
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Funds at a glance (continued)

GlobalAccess Global High Yield
Bond Fund (continued)

Class B distributing EUR shares
Class B distributing GBP shares
Class | accumulating shares
Class | distributing shares

Class | accumulating EUR shares
Class | accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing EUR shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z distributing shares

Class Z accumulating EUR shares
Class Z distributing EUR shares
Class Z distributing GBP shares

GlobalAccess Global Corporate
Bond Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A distributing GBP shares™*
Class B accumulating shares
Class B distributing shares

Class B distributing EUR shares
Class | accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares
Class Z accumulating GBP shares

GlobalAccess Emerging Market
Debt Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A distributing EUR shares
Class A distributing GBP shares™*
Class B accumulating shares
Class B distributing shares

Fund size
31 May 2020

584,299,825

479,308,398

266,459,110

Launch date

27 Nov 2007

4 Dec 2007

4 Dec 2007

10

Active
or
indexed
Active

Active

Active

Fund
currency

usb

usb

usb

Investment
management
feet

1.05%
1.05%
0.80%
0.80%
0.80%
0.80%
0.80%
0.80%
0.70%
0.70%
0.70%
0.70%
0.70%
0.70%
1.65%
1.65%
1.65%
1.65%
1.65%

1.15%

0.95%
0.95%
0.95%
0.70%
0.70%
0.55%
0.55%
0.55%
0.55%
0.55%
0.55%
1.65%
1.65%
1.65%

1.35%
1.35%
1.35%

1.15%
1.15%

Ongoing
charges

1.18%
1.18%
0.89%
0.89%
0.93%
0.93%
0.93%
0.93%
0.79%
0.79%
0.83%
0.83%
0.83%
0.83%
1.74%
1.74%
1.78%
1.78%
1.78%

1.26%

1.07%
1.07%
1.10%
0.86%
0.86%
0.67%
0.67%
0.71%
0.71%
0.71%
0.71%
1.76%
1.80%
1.80%

1.51%
1.55%
1.55%

1.31%
1.31%
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Funds at a glance (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market
Debt Fund (continued)

Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class | accumulating shares

Class | accumulating EUR shares
Class | accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z distributing shares™*
Class Z accumulating EUR shares
Class Z distributing EUR shares
Class Z distributing GBP shares

GlobalAccess Global Property
Securities Fund

Class A accumulating shares™*
Class A distributing GBP shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class B distributing GBP shares™
Class | accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

GlobalAccess Global Short
Duration Bond Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class B distributing GBP shares™"
Class | accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares

Fund size
31 May 2020

266,459,110

182,472,927

185,472,343

Launch date

4 Dec 2007

16 Dec 2009

30 Nov 2010

11

Active
or
indexed
Active

Active

Active

Fund
currency

usb

usb

usb

Investment
management
feet

1.15%
1.15%
0.80%
0.80%
0.80%
0.80%
0.70%
0.70%
0.70%
0.70%
0.70%
0.70%
1.65%

1.65%
1.65%
1.65%

1.50%
1.25%
1.25%

0.75%
0.75%
0.88%
0.82%
0.87%
0.87%
0.86%
2.00%

0.80%
0.65%
0.65%

0.65%
0.65%
0.55%
0.55%
0.55%

Ongoing
charges

1.35%
1.35%
0.96%
1.00%
1.00%
1.00%
0.87%
0.87%
0.91%
0.91%
0.91%
0.91%
1.81%

1.85%
1.85%
1.79%

1.80%
1.51%
1.55%

1.15%
1.16%
1.15%
1.08%
1.18%
1.17%
1.16%
2.29%

0.94%
0.79%
0.83%

0.83%
0.83%
0.69%
0.69%
0.73%
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Background to the Company (continued)

Funds at a glance (continued)

Fund size Launch date  Active Fund Investment Ongoing
31 May 2020 or currency management charges
indexed feet

GlobalAccess Global Short 185,472,343 30 Nov 2010  Active usD
Duration Bond Fund (continued)
Class M accumulating GBP shares 0.55% 0.73%
Class M distributing EUR shares 0.55% 0.73%
Class M distributing GBP shares 0.55% 0.73%
Class Z accumulating shares 0.80% 0.94%
Class Z accumulating EUR shares 0.80% 0.98%
GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap 94,121,073 1Jun 2011 Active usbD
Equity Fund
Class A accumulating shares 1.50% 1.77%
Class A accumulating GBP shares 1.50% 1.81%
Class B accumulating shares 1.25% 1.52%
Class B distributing shares 1.25% 1.52%
Class B accumulating EUR shares 1.25% 1.56%
Class B accumulating GBP shares 1.25% 1.56%
Class | accumulating GBP shares 1.05% 1.36%
Class | distributing GBP shares 1.05% 1.36%
Class M accumulating shares 0.90% 1.17%
Class M distributing shares 0.90% 1.17%
Class M accumulating EUR shares 0.90% 1.21%
Class M accumulating GBP shares 0.90% 1.21%
Class M distributing EUR shares 0.90% 1.21%
Class M distributing GBP shares 0.90% 1.21%
Class Z accumulating shares 2.00% 2.26%
Class Z accumulating EUR shares 2.00% 2.30%
GlobalAccess US Equity Fund 254,261,241 3 Nov 2011 Active usbD
Class A accumulating share 1.50% 1.63%
Class A accumulating EUR shares 1.50% 1.67%
Class A accumulating GBP shares 1.50% 1.64%
Class B accumulating shares 1.25% 1.38%
Class B accumulating GBP shares 1.25% 1.42%
Class | accumulating GBP shares 0.70% 0.87%
Class | distributing GBP shares 0.70% 0.87%
Class M accumulating shares 0.50% 0.63%
Class M distributing shares 0.50% 0.63%
Class M accumulating EUR shares 0.50% 0.67%
Class M accumulating GBP shares 0.50% 0.67%
Class M Distributing GBP shares
(Unhedged) 0.50% 0.49%
Class M distributing GBP shares 0.50% 0.67%
Class Z accumulating shares 2.00% 2.12%
Class Z accumulating EUR shares 2.00% 2.16%
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Background to the Company (continued)

Funds at a glance (continued)

Fund size Launch date  Active Fund Investment Ongoing
31 May 2020 or currency management charges
indexed feet

GlobalAccess Global Equity 116,419,509 13 Dec 2011 Active usbD

Income Fund

Class A accumulating shares 1.50% 1.83%
Class A distributing shares 1.50% 1.83%
Class A accumulating EUR shares 1.50% 1.87%
Class A accumulating GBP shares 1.50% 1.87%
Class A distributing EUR shares 1.50% 1.87%
Class A distributing GBP shares 1.50% 1.87%
Class B accumulating shares 1.25% 1.58%
Class B distributing shares 1.25% 1.58%
Class B accumulating EUR shares 1.25% 1.62%
Class B accumulating GBP shares 1.25% 1.62%
Class B distributing EUR shares 1.25% 1.62%
Class B distributing GBP shares 1.25% 1.61%
Class | accumulating shares 0.90% 1.23%
Class | accumulating EUR shares 0.90% 1.27%
Class | accumulating GBP shares 0.90% 1.27%
Class | distributing GBP shares 0.90% 1.27%
Class M accumulating shares 0.75% 1.08%
Class M distributing shares 0.75% 1.08%
Class M accumulating EUR shares 0.75% 1.12%
Class M accumulating GBP shares 0.75% 1.12%
Class M distributing EUR shares 0.75% 1.12%
Class M distributing GBP shares 0.75% 1.12%
Class Z accumulating shares 2.00% 2.32%
Class Z distributing shares 2.00% 2.32%
Class Z accumulating EUR shares 2.00% 2.36%
Class Z accumulating GBP shares 2.00% 2.36%
Class Z distributing EUR shares 2.00% 2.36%

GlobalAccess Emerging Market 595,429,238 13 Nov 2012  Active usbD
Local Currency Debt Fund

Class B accumulating share 1.15% 1.29%
Class | distributing GBP shares 0.80% 0.98%
Class M accumulating shares 0.75% 0.89%
Class M distributing shares 0.75% 0.89%
Class M accumulating EUR shares 0.75% 0.93%
Class M accumulating GBP shares™ - -
Class M distributing EUR shares~ 0.75% 0.93%
Class M distributing GBP shares~ 0.75% 0.93%
GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) 119,530,913 12 Aug 2004  Active EUR

Alpha Fund

Class A accumulating share 1.50% 1.75%
Class A distributing shares 1.50% 1.75%
Class A accumulating GBP shares 1.50% 1.79%
Class A accumulating USD shares 1.50% 1.79%
Class B accumulating shares 1.25% 1.50%
Class B accumulating GBP shares 1.25% 1.54%
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Background to the Company (continued)

Funds at a glance (continued)
Fund size
31 May 2020

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) 119,530,913
Alpha Fund (continued)

Class B accumulating USD shares
Class | accumulating shares

Class | accumulating GBP shares
Class | accumulating USD shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
(Unhedged)

Class M distributing USD shares™*
Class Z accumulating shares

GlobalAccess Japan Fund 23,992,961,652

Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A accumulating USD shares
Class B accumulating USD shares
Class | accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class M distributing EUR shares™*
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Launch date

12 Aug 2004

17 Aug 2004

The GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund terminated on 31 March 2020.
The GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond terminated on 27 November 2019.

~ Class launched during the financial year
~MC(lass terminated during the financial year

~ ~Class terminated and relaunched during the financial year

+ The investment management fee rates shown above are the rates as at 31 May 2020.

Active
or
indexed
Active

Active

Fund
currency

EUR

JPY

Investment
management
feet

1.25%
0.90%
0.90%
0.90%
0.90%
0.75%
0.75%
0.75%
0.75%
0.75%
0.75%

2.00%

1.50%
1.50%
1.25%
0.90%
0.90%
0.80%
0.80%
0.80%
0.80%
0.80%

0.80%
2.00%
2.00%

Ongoing
charges

1.54%
1.15%
1.19%
1.19%
1.19%
1.00%
1.00%
1.04%
1.04%
1.04%
1.04%

2.24%

1.70%
1.70%
1.45%
1.10%
1.10%
0.96%
0.96%
1.00%
1.00%
1.00%

1.00%
2.14%
2.19%

The investment manager can charge rates in excess of the figures above. A full list of the investment management fee
rates that can be charged against share classes within the Funds are listed in the Prospectus of the Company.

Ongoing charges may be distorted where share classes have been in existence for less than 1 year or where the assets
under management have a very low value. Such ongoing charges have been annualised.
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Investment manager’s report for the financial year ended 31 May 2020
Product overview

The sub-funds are managed using a multi-manager approach leveraging off Barclays expertise in manager selection. We
look to select a blend of active third party managers to generate out-performance against their market mandates.
Different managers have different skills and specialise in different areas. No single manager will be a leader in all areas
and through all stages of the market cycle. Within Multi Manager Funds, different managers are appointed to manage
Funds within the same asset class. So, as well as giving you access to the best-of-breed institutional managers, Multi
Manager Funds also diversifies the risk from any one manager underperforming.

When selecting managers, the Manager and Funds Research Team first develops a list of managers arranged in peer
groups. On the quantitative side, we look at managers regionally, split into peer groups according to investment style.
Then, using a proprietary multi-factor screening method, we can evaluate past risk-adjusted performance on a relative
and absolute basis. That allows us to assess each manager’s ability to match our investment targets.

When awarding mandates, we aim to blend those managers ideally suited to each level of risk and performance. The
next step is to define qualitative requirements for managers, so that the team has a clear view of the sort of manager
combinations it would ideally like to appoint. The team employs a rigorous selection process, judging the managers
against its multiple criteria, including but not limited to: investment style, resources, processes for stock selection and
research, portfolio construction, risk controls, strategy assessment and investment processes. This may entail several
interviews with each manager.

A number of changes were brought to the GlobalAccess Funds during the period under review:

In June 2019 we added Payden & Rygel to the GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund. Payden & Rygel has a
strong heritage in managing short duration strategies. The strategy is a team based approach that combines both top-
down and bottom-up ideas with a focus of delivering an absolute total return. The approach builds a core portfolio of
both defensive and opportunistic income generating exposures from across the fixed income opportunity set. These
positions are then augmented with a small number of tactical themes and tail hedging strategies.

In September 2019 we removed Jupiter Asset Management Limited from the GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund.
In November 2019 we closed the GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund.

In January 2020 we removed Artemis Fund Managers Limited from the GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund.

In March 2020 we closed the GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund.

Market overview

While the narratives of Brexit and the US-China trade war kept markets and commentators guessing throughout the first
half of the period, the second half of the period was dominated by the spread of Covid-19 and the resulting devastating
impact on human lives, economies and markets across the world.

Having risen steadily for the first half of the period, and after a positive start to the year in 2020, the spread of Covid-19
and simultaneous oil price war saw equity markets fall sharply in March in a correction faster than any seen since 1987.
The pandemic has forced governments to adopt strict containment measures and many countries have effectively
locked down their economies. With investors uncertain as to how long this might last, a sense of panic briefly set in
across global markets. In tandem, oil prices reached their lowest levels since 2002, as negotiations over oil supply
between Saudi Arabia and Russia broke down, adding further downward pressure on energy and commodity related
sectors and companies. We have seen a fast and coordinated response from central banks and governments in order to
stabilise markets. Interest rates have been dramatically cut and liquidity injected into the financial system, while policy
makers introduced a raft of measures to support businesses and consumers in hardship. Markets have bounced recently
as a result of these actions, although the threat of a potential deep global recession remains and the risk of further
spread of the virus provides further uncertainty.
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Investment manager’s report for the financial year ended 31 May 2020 (continued)
Market overview (continued)

Throughout all this, returns from global equities were broadly positive over the period. US and Japanese equity markets
were among the top performers, while UK equities and listed property securities have struggled.

In terms of sector performance, using the MSCI AC World Index, energy was among the main laggards, reflecting the
sharp fall in the oil price, while health care and information technology outperformed. Returns from more cyclical sectors
were mixed with consumer discretionary outperforming and materials underperforming. We continued to see marked
divergence in sector performance with information technology as the top returning sector returning 33.1% over the
period, while energy was the main laggard declining by 29.6%. Typically defensive sectors such as consumer staples and
utilities delivered positive returns but still lagged the broader market.

Bond returns were also positive over the period despite many fixed income yields across the developed world continuing
to remain in negative territory. Over the period total returns from both developed government bonds and corporate
bonds were positive with global government bonds delivering the highest positive returns. The Bloomberg Barclays
Clobal Aggregate Treasuries Index returned 6.1% on a total return basis over the period while returns on high yield
bonds were less impressive, delivering a total return of 0.3%. Emerging market bonds were also able to deliver positive
returns over the period and outperformed high yield bonds.

(Source: Barclays, Bloomberg)
Performance overview

The GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund was closed on 31st March 2020. Until that point, the fund had marginally
outperformed the FTSE All Share benchmark index.

Markets made steady progress during 2019. Issues that faced investors included the ongoing discussions between China
and the US over trade. Tensions rose in Hong Kong over how much influence mainland China would have on how the
former British colony would be governed in the future. Closer to home, politics and Brexit were on the minds of investors.
A change of UK Prime Minister led to a different approach in getting Parliament to agree a solution to ongoing
negotiations. In the end, a general election was seen to be the only way of resolving the deadlock. The Conservative
Government remained in power, earning an 80 seat majority. ‘Get Brexit Done’ was the mantra repeated ad nauseam
during its campaign and the UK left the European Union in January 2020.

News of what became known as Covid-19, or Coronavirus, was first noticed in the UK in January. The UK stock market
peaked in mid-January, and declined until mid-March. The Chancellor announced plans in his first March budget to
mitigate the effect of the virus on the economy. But after the country was placed in lockdown towards the end of the
month greater financial support was provided. The FTSE 100 index fell by almost 35% and the domestically focused
FTSE 250 index fell by over 40% from the middle of January to the middle of March. The loss of life and the human cost
of the tragedy far exceeds the financial impact and our thoughts are with all those affected.

Larger companies, as measured by the FTSE 100 Index, performed the best over the fund’s financial year. The UK’s
largest listed companies typically operate in many different countries, earning in many different currencies. But within
the FTSE 100, sectors performed very differently. The Healthcare sector was the best performing part of the wider
market over the financial year, led by AstraZeneca. Consumer staples shares also performed well, but energy and
financial companies continued to be weak. A falling oil price and ongoing global pressure to shift to renewable energy is
a headwind for the UK’s listed oil companies. Interest rates and concerns of a recession led to very poor performance
from most UK bank shares. The market staged a recovery in April 2020, but remains well below the level it started the
reporting period at. Smaller companies — perhaps the most at risk from a recession — underperformed large and medium
sized businesses over the year.
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Investment manager’s report for the financial year ended 31 May 2020 (continued)
Performance overview (continued)

Artemis Fund Managers Limited were terminated at the end of January 2020. Artemis Fund Managers Limited had
performed well in the last quarter of 2019. In the final few months of the year, value outperformed growth as an
investment style. It was a short-lived recovery for the approach, but Artemis Fund Managers Limited benefitted from
very strong share prices in the likes of Rank Group, Easyjet and Flutter Entertainment.

The Fund closed at the end of March 2020. The Fund had shrunk in size in recent years. This made the size of the
underlying mandates managed by the sub investment managers, and the fund itself, too small to be managed in a viable,
cost efficient way. We wish to thank the managers for their service in the Fund.

Majedie Asset Management outperformed until the Fund closed. Gold rose in price over the year, as did the share price
of the gold mining companies such as Barrick Gold. Majedie Asset Management has owned shares in gold mining
companies for some years, believing that the shares themselves are cheaply valued, and that gold itself normally rises in
value in times of economic difficulty. Being underweight Royal Dutch Shell and HSBC Bank plc were some of the better
decisions made by the Sub-Investment Manager, as was holding Tesco. Merian Global Investors had a disappointing
period. It underperformed the Fund’s FTSE All Share benchmark, as it held a number of companies that were very
exposed to the economic effects that the coronavirus shutdown brought about. It was a shame that the manager’s
patience with the likes of Pets at Home, which performed well over the period to the end of March 2020, was more than
offset by weakness in the prices of SSP, Lloyds Banking Group and Microfocus.

The GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund outperformed the FTSE All-Share benchmark over the period.

Markets made steady progress during 2019. Issues that faced investors included the ongoing discussions between China
and the US over trade. Tensions rose in Hong Kong over how much influence mainland China would have on how the
former British colony would be governed in the future. Closer to home, politics and Brexit were on the minds of investors.
A change of UK Prime Minister led to a different approach in getting Parliament to agree a solution to ongoing
negotiations. In the end, a general election was seen to be the only way of resolving the deadlock. The Conservative
Government remained in power, earning an 80 seat majority. ‘Get Brexit Done’ was the mantra repeated ad nauseam
during its campaign and the UK left the European Union in January 2020.

News of what became known as Covid-19, or Coronavirus, was first noticed in the UK in January. The UK stock market
peaked in mid-January, and declined until mid-March. The Chancellor announced plans in his first March budget to
mitigate the effect of the virus on the economy. But after the country was placed in lockdown towards the end of the
month greater financial support was provided. The FTSE 100 index fell by almost 35% and the domestically focused
FTSE 250 index fell by over 40% from the middle of January to the middle of March. The loss of life and the human cost
of the tragedy far exceeds the financial impact and our thoughts are with all those affected.

Larger companies, as measured by the FTSE 100 Index, performed the best over the fund’s financial year. The UK’s
largest listed companies typically operate in many different countries, earning in many different currencies. But within
the FTSE 100, sectors performed very differently. The Healthcare sector was the best performing part of the wider
market over the financial year, led by AstraZeneca. Consumer staples shares also performed well, but energy and
financial companies continued to be weak. A falling oil price and ongoing global pressure to shift to renewable energy is
a headwind for the UK’s listed oil companies. interest rates and concerns of a recession led to very poor performance
from most UK bank shares.

The market staged a recovery in April, but remains well below the level it started the reporting period at. Smaller
companies — perhaps the most at risk from a recession — underperformed large and medium sized businesses over the
year. The impact of coronavirus was most deeply felt in the ] O Hambro Capital Management Limited mandate. Until the
start of the year in 2020, performance had been slightly ahead of its benchmark. The manager was cautious on the
prospects for equity markets when we met with him in early January 2020, but there was little sign then of the difficulties
the portfolio would experience in the months ahead. The size of the underperformance in this mandate more than offset
the good performance enjoyed over the year by Heronbridge Investment Management LLP and particularly Lindsell Train
Limited.
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Investment manager’s report for the financial year ended 31 May 2020 (continued)
Performance overview (continued)

Four shares owned by ] O Hambro Capital Management Limited — Restaurant Group, Aviva, Hammerson and ITV -
contributed around half of its underperformance from the start of January to the end of May 2020. Those, and other
holdings including Barclays, Centrica and SIG Group all have in common large exposure to consumer spending. With
consumers no longer able to eat at restaurants, or buy products advertised on TV, these companies, which had fixed
costs but no income during the lockdown period, were likely to struggle. In most cases, the manager decided to keep
holding the shares for the long term. But in some, like Hammerson, he felt the problems were likely to be long-lived and
so sold his holding. Heronbridge Investment Management LLP performed well in 2019, but found the first few months of
2020 harder to navigate. The manager owned some shares — such as Senior, the aerospace company, publisher
Euromoney and building company Mitie which each performed poorly. But it also was hurt by not owning any shares in
the likes of AstraZeneca and GlaxoSmithKline, the pharmaceutical businesses which both performed very well.
Pharmaceuticals are seen as defensive investments, and often outperform when stock markets are falling. AstraZeneca
also developed a potential Coronavirus vaccine, and so investors bought its shares, anticipating its share price
performing well in future years.

As has been the case for some time, Lindsell Train Limited performed exceptionally well over the financial year. The
manager owns a concentrated portfolio of consumer, technology and financial company shares. Many of these
performed well as equity markets fell in early 2020. For instance, the London Stock Exchange benefitted from higher
trading volumes, which saw its share price rise. The manager also made two well timed purchases in the portfolio,
Fevertree Drinks and PZ Cussons. Fevertree rose by just less than 50% after it was bought early in the year by Nick Train.
But not owning banks and oil companies — big parts of the UK stock market which performed poorly — were as important
to Lindsell Train Limited’s performance as was what it actually holds.

The GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund outperformed the MSCI Europe ex-UK benchmark over the period.

European equity market returns over the period were marginally positive on a total net return basis with the MSCI Europe
ex UK index up 1.3% over the 12 months to end May in Sterling terms. The market rose nicely, albeit in fits and starts,
until March this year when, of course, the Coronavirus pandemic arrived and stock-markets globally plummeted. To the
low point, European equities lost over a quarter of their value with huge volatility exhibited. The continent became the
epicentre for the COVID-19 pandemic with the rapid growth in cases in northern ltaly really being the catalyst for the
panic. The entire continent effectively went into lockdown.

A variety of economic records across Europe were broken — all for the wrong reasons. For example, March’s Composite
PMI fell to 34.1 compared to 51.6 in February, whilst the Services component fell to the lowest level ever recorded at 28.4
(almost half the reading of just a month previously!). In response the ECB kept rates on hold but launched an emergency
Eur750bn bond buying programme whilst the EU announced a Eur37bn support package and guaranteed Eur8bn in
loans to support the corporate sector. Even Germany broke with its strict “black zero” fiscal policy issuing new debt and
establishing a bailout fund. Of course, the Eurozone economy shrunk in quarter 1 - but it was by -3.8% - the largest
quarterly drop since records began in 1995.

Yet within a couple of months, more than half of those losses were recovered and the fund and asset class were back in
positive territory over one year. The market reacted positively to the very early signs of the easing of lockdown and
plentiful monetary and fiscal measures globally.

The combination of managers within the GlobalAccess fund remained unchanged with Invesco Perpetual providing a
defined value style, Allianz Global Investors providing a defined quality growth style and Blackrock Inc. having a focus on
income and returns from dividend yield. These styles are complementary and we expect all three to outperform over the
long-term with manager specific stock outperformance, driven by stock selection, layered on top.

Sector divergence was huge, with the likes of Energy and Financials down over 10% and yet the likes of Technology and

Healthcare were up over 20%. Again Growth sectors strongly outperformed Value sectors and it is against this
background that the reasons for the fund’s performance becomes clear.
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Investment manager’s report for the financial year ended 31 May 2020 (continued)
Performance overview (continued)

Invesco Global Asset Management underperformed the benchmark significantly but not by as much as Allianz Global
Investors outperformed. This was not a surprise given the strong bias that the Invesco Global Asset Management
mandate has away from growth and towards value stocks. Its long-standing over-weights include Financials and
underweights include Healthcare. The Allianz Global Investors mandate outperformed the index. This was due to having
negligible exposure to Energy and being overweight IT. Blackrock Inc. also outperformed well. Sector positioning such as
being overweight Utilities, given their yield characteristics, was helpful as were a number of positive stock selections.

The GlobalAccess Japan Fund underperformed the TOPIX benchmark during the period.

Early in the period Japanese equities delivered positive returns as market weakness in early August was more than
reversed in September 2019. TDK, the electronic component maker, was among the better performers on reduced
concerns over supply chain issues within the smartphone market. Baillie Gifford & Co underperformed the benchmark
index early in the period with overweight positions in communication services and energy both detracting from returns.
At the stock level, telecom conglomerate, Softbank, was the main detractor. The stock unwound a large proportion of
the gains seen earlier in the year, with renewed weakness in September 2019 prompted mainly by problems encountered
by WeWork, in which Softbank is a major investor.

The Fund outperformed towards the end of 2019 as Japanese equities delivered positive returns in each month during
the fourth quarter of 2019. At the sector level, an underweight position to consumer staples and overweight position in
IT were the largest positive contributors to performance while stock selection within technology, financials and health
care was also positive. Schroders Investment Management (Japan) Ltd was the best performing manager and
outperformed the index over the quarter. A position in Disco, which provides specialist equipment used in
semiconductor production added value again in the fourth quarter. Baillie Gifford & Co underperformed the index in the
fourth quarter 2019 primarily driven by stock selection in consumer discretionary and communication services. At the
stock level, leading online advertising and gaming platform Cyber Agent was among the main detractors having
appeared to have lost some momentum in its core advertising business. Overweight positions in Rakuten and Zozo also
detracted while overweight positions in Murata manufacturing and recruit were the main positives.

The Fund underperformed the index in the first quarter of 2020 as Japanese equities fell sharply along with other global
equity markets. At the sector level, an underweight position in consumer staples, healthcare and utilities were the main
detractors as traditional defensive sectors held up better in the sell off. An underweight position to materials and
overweight position in IT were the largest positive contributors to performance while stock selection within both sectors
was also positive. TDK, was among the largest detractors having been one of the best performers throughout the second
half of 2019. A position in Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group was also among the main negatives as bank stocks were
particularly weak in the first quarter 2020. An overweight position in retailer Pan Pacific International, and an overweight
in Otsuka Corp, which designs computer systems and supplies associated hardware, were among the main positives.
Baillie Gifford & Co was the best performing manager but also underperformed the index in the first quarter primarily
driven by negative stock selection in communication services and energy. At the stock level, an overweight position in oil
and gas producer Inpex was the single largest detractor as energy stocks fell significantly on the back of the collapse in
the oil price. Leading online advertising and gaming platform Cyber Agent was among the main positives, with the
shares delivering a positive return in the quarter, and recovering from weakness in the fourth quarter of 2019.

More recently Japanese equities have rebounded somewhat from their lows in March 2020 with investors cheered by an
assumed reopening of global economic activity. The Fund has broadly kept pace with a strong market. Stock selection in
Industrials, communication services and financials were the main positive drivers, although this was largely offset by
negative stock selection in health care. Overweight positions in internet conglomerate GMO Internet, and internet
advertising company CyberAgent, were among the main positive contributors. The largest individual negative stock
impact came from Daiichi Sankyo, a major pharmaceutical stock, which is also not held in the portfolio. An overweight
position in Disco, which manufactures specialist equipment for semiconductor production, also detracted.
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Investment manager’s report for the financial year ended 31 May 2020 (continued)
Performance overview (continued)
The GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex Japan) Fund underperformed the MSCI AC Asia Pacific ex-Japan benchmark.

Early in the period, the Fund outperformed the benchmark index as Asian equity markets fell in the third quarter of 2019
amid renewed trade tensions between the US and China and rising concerns over global growth. Hong Kong was the
weakest index market, as demonstrations continued amid social unrest. Malaysia, Singapore and Thailand all posted
negative returns, while Taiwan posted a positive return, underpinned by strong performance from technology stocks.
Strong stock selection in Indian financials, materials companies in Australia and technology companies in Taiwan were
the main contributors to the positive performance of the Fund. Sector allocation was also positive with an overweight
position in technology the main positive contributor.

Schroders Investment Management (Japan) Ltd slightly outperformed in this environment as core technology holdings
including TSMC, ASM Pacific and Largan Precision all posted solid gains over the third quarter of 2019 despite the
challenging geopolitical environment. The share prices of TSMC and ASM Pacific were buoyed by accelerated 5G
activities and the related demand outlook while Largan benefited from the next Apple smartphone cycle kick-starting
again. Hermes Investment Management Limited also outperformed, driven by positive stock selection in the technology
sector. An overweight position in technology and an underweight position in financials were among the main positives in
terms of sector allocation while at the stock level, an overweight position in ASE Technology, a Taiwan semiconductor
packaging and testing services company, was the main positive contributor. Fidelity International Ltd outperformed the
MSCI Australia index and the broader regional Asia market index. Performance was boosted by positions in global wine
producer, Treasury Wine Estates and retailer Coles, the latter benefitting from positive investor sentiment around its
latest results. Positions in property and infrastructure developer Landlease Group were also positive.

Asian equities delivered a strong return in quarter 4 2019, supported by easing geopolitical risk as the US and China
reached a phase one trade deal, and the Fund outperformed the benchmark index in this environment. China, South
Korea and Taiwan all outperformed, underpinned by strong performance from technology stocks. By contrast, Thailand
recorded a negative return and was the weakest index market, while India also underperformed. Performance of the
Fund was boosted by positive stock selection in Hong Kong industrials and technology companies in Taiwan, while
underweight positions in Thailand and Malaysia also helped. Sector allocation was also positive with an overweight
position to technology and an underweight position to financials the main positives.

Schroders Investment Management (Japan) Ltd outperformed in this environment with consumer and industrial
holdings among the key positives. At the individual stock level, Chinese online retailer Vipshop soared on the news of a
potential sale of its logistics operation, boosting hopes for margin improvement in the medium term. Hermes Investment
Management Limited also outperformed during the quarter, driven by positive country allocation and stock selection,
particularly within consumer staples. An overweight to Taiwan and underweights to India and Hong Kong were among
the main positives. At the stock level, an overweight in ASE Technology, a Taiwan semiconductor packaging and testing
services company, was among the main positive contributors, while an overweight to Mediatek in Taiwan was also
positive. Fidelity International Ltd performed broadly in line with the MSCI Australia index but Australian equities
underperformed the broader regional Asia market index as concerns over the impact of massive bushfires and subdued
growth limited stock market gains. Performance was boosted by exposure to BlueScope Steel, which rose amid news of
a potential rationalisation in US steel supply. A position in Sydney Airport was also among the main positives. Rare earths
miner Lynas was among the detractors. The share price slid as an increase in the supply of rare earths by China weighed
on the commodity’s prices.

In the first quarter of 2020, the Fund underperformed the benchmark index as Asian equities fell sharply along with other
global equity markets. China, Hong Kong and Taiwan all outperformed, although still fell sharply in absolute terms. By
contrast, Indonesia, Thailand and Australia all underperformed and were among the weakest index markets. The
underperformance of the Fund was primarily driven by stock selection, particularly within financials health care and IT.
An overweight to small cap stocks, which underperformed noticeably during the quarter, also detracted from
performance, although this was partially offset by good stock selection within small cap. Sector allocation was positive
with an overweight to technology and an underweight to financials the main positives.
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Schroders Investment Management (Japan) Ltd underperformed with stock selection in financials and healthcare among
the key negatives. At the individual stock level, positions in banks were among the largest detractors, with Indusind Bank,
HDFC Bank and Kasikornbank all among the main negatives during the quarter. In China, online retailer Vipshop
continued to perform strongly, while an overweight in Tencent was among the main positives as the company
outperformed driven by expectations its services will be continued to be used indoors as the spread of the virus led to
quarantine measures. Hermes underperformed, driven by stock selection, particularly within IT industrials and
healthcare. At the stock level, an overweight in ASE Technology, a Taiwan semiconductor packaging and testing services
company, was among the main negative contributors, having outperformed for the second half of 2019, while zero
exposure to Tencent was also a notable negative. Fidelity International Ltd underperformed the MSCI Australia index as
Australian equities underperformed the broader regional Asia market index. Performance was boosted by underweight
positions in index heavy weights National Australia Bank and Westpac Banking Corp as share prices of banks were
amongst the hardest hit in the sell off. Overweight exposure to BlueScope Steel, and a position in Sydney Airport were
among the main detractors as materials and travel stocks also declined sharply. Energy exploration company Oil Search
was the single largest detractor as the share price sunk on the back of the collapse in the oil price.

More recently Asian equities have rebounded sharply, supported by expansionary fiscal and monetary policy across the
globe. The fund kept pace with the rebound, with strong stock selection in Australia, Taiwan and Hong Kong among the
main positives. Fidelity International Ltd was the best performing manager as Australian equities outperformed, while
Schroders Investment Management (Japan) Ltd and Hermes Investment Management Limited lagged. Exposure to Hong
Kong real estate company Swire Properties, and conglomerate Jardine Matheson, detracted from performance while an
overweight in power tool manufacturer Techtronic Industries was a notable positive. A position in Australian miner Rio
Tinto was also a positive, with the stock rallying on stronger iron ore prices as infrastructure demand picked up again in
China.

The GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund underperformed versus the MSCI Emerging Markets USD benchmark
over the period.

Early in the period, the Fund outperformed the benchmark index and emerging markets equities fell in the third quarter
of 2019 as renewed trade tensions and a strong U.S. dollar weighed on markets. Markets in Turkey, Egypt and Taiwan
were among the best performers, while markets in Argentina, South Africa and Poland underperformed. Stock selection
within technology and financials was the main driver of positive returns for the Fund in the third quarter of 2019, while
sector allocation was also a positive contributor, with an overweight position in technology and an underweight position
in materials among the most helpful. Among the underlying managers, Somerset Capital Management LLP
outperformed, primarily driven by stock selection within financials and technology, Pzena Investment Management LLC
underperformed, with an overweight position in Sasol among the main detractors. Strong stock selection was the key
contributor to performance as Arrowstreet Capital, L.P. outperformed during the third quarter of 2019. Stock selection in
consumer discretionary names in Taiwan and IT stocks in both Korea and Taiwan were among the main positives.
Schroders Investment Management (Japan) Ltd also outperformed as core technology holdings including TSMC, ASM
Pacific and Largan Precision all posted solid gains despite the challenging geopolitical environment. BNY Mellon ARX
Investimentos outperformed the MSCI Brazil index, despite the Brazilian market being among the laggards. A large
overweight position in consumer discretionary and an underweight position in financials were among the largest
positives.

The Fund slightly outperformed the benchmark index as emerging markets equities rallied in the fourth quarter of 2019,
supported by easing geopolitical risk as the US and China reached a phase one trade deal. Markets in Hungary, Taiwan
and Russia were among the best performers, while markets in Chile and Thailand and India underperformed. Stock
selection within industrials and materials was the main driver of positive returns, while an underweight position in China
detracted. Among the underlying managers, Somerset Capital Management LLP underperformed, primarily driven by an
underweight to China and an overweight to Chile. Stock selection in Taiwan and Russia also detracted but was largely
offset by strong stock selection in Turkey and India. Pzena Investment Management LLC performed broadly in line with
the index in quarter 4.
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An overweight position in China-Agri Industries was the single largest positive contributor as the share price surged on
news that Cofco Hong Kong plans to take the company private at a significant premium. Arrowstreet Capital, L.P.
outperformed, driven by strong stock selection in materials, utilities and industrials, while Schroders Investment
Management (Japan) Ltd outperformed with consumer and industrial holdings among the key positives. BNY Mellon
ARX Investimentos outperformed the MSCI Brazil index, which was among the best performing in emerging markets
over the fourth quarter of 2019. Good stock selection in utilities, materials and consumer discretionary names were the
main drivers of outperformance.

In the first quarter of 2020, the Fund underperformed the benchmark index as emerging markets equities fell sharply
along with other global equity markets, which saw their steepest declines since the global financial crisis in 2008.
Perhaps surprisingly, given that it is the epicenter of the outbreak, the Chinese market has been amongst the strongest in
the world so far in 2020. Markets in China, Taiwan and Qatar were among the best performers in the first quarter of
2020, while markets in Brazil, Colombia and Greece underperformed. Stock selection within China and India, were
among the main drivers of the underperformance for the Fund, although this was somewhat offset by good stock
selection in Brazil. Stock selection within financials and consumer discretionary detracted, while underweight positions in
energy and materials were positive. An underweight to China was among the main detractors while an overweight to
Hungary also detracted. Underweights to Thailand, South Africa and Saudi Arabia were positive contributors.

Among the underlying managers, Somerset Capital Management LLP underperformed the benchmark index, primarily
driven by an underweight to China and stock selection within financials and consumer discretionary. Positions in
Sperbank in Russia, Alpha Bank in Greece and OTP Bank in Hungary were among the largest detractors as financials
notably underperformed. Pzena Investment Management LLC also underperformed as stock selection in South Africa,
where South African energy and chemicals producer Sasol was particularly weak, and Russia, where shares in Rosneft
and Lukoil (Russian oil & gas producers) were down on the back of the collapse in the oil price, were among the main
detractors. Arrowstreet Capital, L.P. outperformed, driven by strong stock selection in Brazil and China. Stock selection
was positive in health care and IT while an overweight to IT and underweight to financials was also positive. Schroders
Investment Management (Japan) Ltd outperformed the benchmark index as Asian equities outperformed, primarily
driven by China. BNY Mellon ARX Investimentos outperformed the MSCI Brazil index, which was among the worst
performing in emerging markets, falling more than 49% in USD terms. Good stock selection in consumer staples and an
underweight to energy were the main drivers of outperformance.

More recently, emerging markets have rallied, supported by strong commodities prices and easing of lockdown
restrictions. Russia was among the best performers, supported by a surge in the oil price, while Mexico and Brazil also
both outperformed. The Fund has broadly kept up with the recent rally. An underweight position in China was positive,
as were overweight positions in Russia and Brazil.

The GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund slightly underperformed the Russell 2500 benchmark over the
period.

Early in the period, the US economy remained resilient despite elevated geopolitical uncertainties and slowing global
growth. US-China trade relations were particularly volatile in the absence of meaningful compromises on key structural
issues, and expectations for a protracted trade war and the potential for a longer-term decoupling of the world’s two
largest economies has eroded consumer and business confidence and curtailed capital spending. The Fed lowered its
benchmark interest rate in July and September by a combined 0.50% in an effort to sustain economic expansion and
mitigate the risks of moderating growth and trade frictions. In October, the Fed lowered interest rates for a third time in
2019 by 0.25% and signalled its intention to pause further changes in policy. US equity markets recorded solid gains in
the last quarter of 2019 amid waning recession fears, US-China trade optimism, better-than-expected third-quarter
earnings, and some encouraging economic indicators. Stock selection in the materials, industrials and information
technology sectors drove the positive returns while selection in the health care and energy sectors detracted.
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The start of 2020 saw US equities ending sharply lower, as the coronavirus caused unprecedented societal and market
disruptions, heightening fears of a severe economic downturn. The severity of the virus outbreak overshadowed investor
optimism about a phase-one trade deal between the US and China. U.S. equities plunged in March as the coronavirus
spread rapidly. This prompted government officials to close schools, non-essential businesses, and public facilities.
Federal Reserve rate cuts and asset purchases initially seemed to have little effect on stopping the equity market decline.
Stocks did pare some losses over the first quarter of the year, however, as the Trump administration and Congress
passed into law a massive economic stimulus bill and the Federal Reserve rolled out a variety of programs and “facilities”
intended to support the flow of credit to consumers and businesses. US equities ended the period on a higher note.
Sentiment was aided by progress toward reopening the economy, promising developments on a potential coronavirus
vaccine, and fiscal and monetary policy tailwinds; however, optimism was tempered by a lack of market breadth, high
valuations, and concerns about the potential for a second wave of infections.

During the period, small and mid cap stocks (as measured by the Russell 2500 Index) continued to trail large cap US
stocks (as measured by the S&P500). The portfolio is more biased towards defensive stocks that lagged in a strong up
market but did provide good downside protection during the selloff. London Company performed strongly as their
portfolio is biased towards quality and defensive stocks. These stocks tend to outperform during a market sell-off and lag
in strong rallies. Kennedy Capital Management was the worst performing manager as has a value bias and was impacted
by the noticeable underperformance of value stocks during the period. Stock selection in industrials, real estate and
consumer discretionary sectors drove the positive returns while selection in the health care and financials detracted.

The GlobalAccess US Equity Fund outperformed its S&P 500 benchmark over the period.

Early in the period, the US economy remained resilient despite elevated geopolitical uncertainties and slowing global
growth. US-China trade relations were particularly volatile in the absence of meaningful compromises on key structural
issues, and expectations for a protracted trade war and the potential for a longer-term decoupling of the world’s two
largest economies has eroded consumer and business confidence and curtailed capital spending. The Fed lowered its
benchmark interest rate in July and September by a combined 0.50% in an effort to sustain economic expansion and
mitigate the risks of moderating growth and trade frictions. In October, the Fed lowered interest rates for a third time in
2019 by 0.25% and signalled its intention to pause further changes in policy. US equity markets recorded solid gains in
the last quarter of 2019 amid waning recession fears, US-China trade optimism, better-than-expected third-quarter
earnings, and some encouraging economic indicators. Stock selection in the materials, industrials and information
technology sectors drove the positive returns while selection in the health care and energy sectors detracted.

The start of 2020 saw US equities ending sharply lower, as the coronavirus caused unprecedented societal and market
disruptions, heightening fears of a severe economic downturn. The severity of the virus outbreak overshadowed investor
optimism about a phase-one trade deal between the US and China. U.S. equities plunged in March as the coronavirus
spread rapidly. This prompted government officials to close schools, non-essential businesses, and public facilities.
Federal Reserve rate cuts and asset purchases initially seemed to have little effect on stopping the equity market decline.
Stocks did pare some losses over the first quarter of the year, however, as the Trump administration and Congress
passed into law a massive economic stimulus bill and the Federal Reserve rolled out a variety of programs and “facilities”
intended to support the flow of credit to consumers and businesses.

US equities ended the period on a higher note. Sentiment was aided by progress toward reopening the economy,
promising developments on a potential coronavirus vaccine, and fiscal and monetary policy tailwinds; however,
optimism was tempered by a lack of market breadth, high valuations, and concerns about the potential for a second
wave of infections.

During the period, small and mid cap stocks (as measured by the Russell 2500 Index) continued to trail large cap US
stocks (as measured by the S&P500). AllianceBernstein performed strongly as their portfolio is biased towards high
conviction large cap growth stocks. Ceredex Value Advisors LLC was the worst performing manager as has a value bias
and was impacted by the noticeable underperformance of value stocks during the period. Overall, relative
outperformance was driven by stock selection. The healthcare and industrials sector contributed the most from relative
performance whilst selection in energy and information technology detracted.
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The GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund underperformed its MSCI World benchmark over the period.

Early in the period, the dramatic reversal in monetary expectations around the globe was supportive. While this was most
evident in the US, where expectations of continued rate hikes at the beginning of the year gave way to a series of rate
cuts, the belief that interest rates globally are now tethered close to historic lows for a prolonged period also hardened.
Towards the end of 2019, the recessionary fears which dominated for much of the summer continued to dissipate. The
balance of macro and corporate data turned more positive and the fear that policy may be impotent in the face of
overwhelmingly negative structural forces lessened. Finally, the more benign news emanating from the US/China trade
talks also provided a powerful tailwind for global stocks. All the major regions posted gains over the fourth quarter
helped by much of the geopolitical risks seen earlier in the year fading.

The start of 2020 equity markets started the year strongly. Share prices worldwide rose in anticipation of the signing of a
long-awaited trade deal between the US and China. Sadly, this milestone was very short-lived, as it became clear that the
coronavirus outbreak prevalent in China during January was spreading rapidly around the world. Initial hopes that the
region could contain the virus in a relatively short time, such as in the manner of SARS in 2002-2003 and MERS in 2012,
quickly dissipated. March saw a further widespread fall in market levels as the impact of government responses to
coronavirus hit. Global equities fell as the new coronavirus outbreak quickly evolved into a worldwide pandemic. In an
effort to slow the rate of infection, many countries shut down all but the most essential activities, and in response, equity
markets grew increasingly volatile as investors struggled to assess the scale and duration of the resulting economic
damage.

Central banks and governments stepped in with dramatic combinations of monetary stimulus to offset liquidity
concerns, particularly in the credit markets, and fiscal stimulus to provide businesses with enough time to get through
the economic trough that was forming. These measures allowed investors to take a breath and markets experienced a
strong rally in the last week of the quarter. Overall, the MSCI World fell significantly in the first quarter, representing the
fastest bear market on record. Cyclicals (primarily the value industry groups), fell to their widest ever differential, with the
value slump accelerated over the quarter, underperforming growth significantly. Smaller cap names also struggled.

Following sharply negative returns across equity markets in quarter 1 2020, equities recovered during April and May as
the rate of growth in COVID 19 cases decelerated and as markets absorbed the exceptional level of fiscal and monetary
measures of recent months

During this period the Fund benefitted from positive stock selection in industrials, Hong Kong and UK. This was offset by
stock selection in information technology, the US and Japan. Sector allocation was negative due to an underweight
position in information technology and an overweight to financials. An underweight positioning to the US was also a
notable drag on performance. Positive contributors were underweight positions to real estate and energy alongside an
overweight to China and Denmark.

The GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund outperformed the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Market Index over
the period.

Early in the period, REITS were up. Renewed concerns over trade and decelerating global economic data favoured
defensives despite large swings between risk on/off during the quarter. Asia Pacific delivered the weakest returns,
weighed down by the ongoing turmoil in Hong Kong and weaker regional currencies against the USD. In HK, the peaceful
protests against the botched extradition bill escalated into violence with damage to property, closure of transport
infrastructure and multiple injuries. As such, no surprise that HK property stocks were pummelled across the board.
Japan outperformed on safe haven defensive flows with JREITs posting the strongest returns within the region. Australia
and Singapore both saw profit taking after strong performance in the first half of the year. Both regions were also hurt by
adverse currency movements.
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Towards the end of the period, European Markets performed strongly overall, but Eurozone macroeconomic data
continues to be mixed. German third quarter gross domestic product (GDP) data beat consensus and avoided a technical
recession, but growth remained weak overall with the U.K. growing at a similar pace. Political uncertainty combined with
poor quarterly retail results saw the U.K. majors and retail-exposed names falling heavily, but niche plays such as U.K.
industrial, self-storage, and student housing outperforming. The bad retail news also prompted further retail weakness
across Europe. Swedish stocks outperformed, rebounding after a sharp sell-off in October.

The start of 2020 saw REITS start positively whilst equities fell with the outbreak of the Coronavirus sparking concerns
that the fragile green shoots of a trade truce-induced global growth recovery would relapse given the draconian travel
restrictions and shutdown of economic activity imposed by China to combat the virus. This led to governments taking
draconian containment measures over the first quarter which included a raft of lockdowns, quarantine orders, and social
distancing measures being implemented in unprecedented scale around the world in March. Qil prices and financial
assets tumbled across the world. Global real estate investment trusts fell underperforming both global equities (MSCI
World Index) and global bonds (JPM Global Bond Index). REITs failed to display their typical defensive characteristics in
an environment of government-mandated social distancing. Concern over cashflow pressures on tenants impacted by
distancing measures and credit market dislocations from an anticipated spike in bankruptcies pressured the capital-
intensive REIT sector. Consequently, guidance cuts and dividend suspensions became more common during the first
quarter. Lower levered stocks with lower volatility meaningfully outperformed, reflecting the risk-off sentiment and
concern over balance sheet risk.

April and May saw equity markets recover driven by Central Banks’ policies to re-fire growth, as well as signs that the
global economy is emerging from lockdown. Global REITS continued to lag on continued concern over the impact of
social distancing and lockdowns

The portfolio outperformed the benchmark mainly due to asset allocation. Being underweight to retail and industrial
REITS whilst overweight to Ireland contributed. Good stock selection in the US, UK, offices and hotel REITS contributed.
The largest detractors came from stock selection in diversified REITS and an overweight to Japan.

The GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund underperformed the Bloomberg Barclays Global Treasury USD
Hedged Benchmark.

The global government bond market delivered a positive return in USD hedged terms during the reporting period. The
first half of the reporting period began with major central banks stepping up their dovish rhetoric amid deteriorating
economic data, trade tension between the US and China and Brexit uncertainties. In August, a series of negative
headlines sent shockwave to the market, including a re-escalation of the US-China trade dispute early August, a collapse
in the Italian coalition between the Five Star and the League, a surprise defeat for the market-friendly President Macri
during the Argentina primary election, and heightened risk for a no-deal Brexit as Prime Minister Boris Johnson
announced intension to suspend the Parliament. The clouded market sentiments, coupled with seasonally reduced
liquidity, led to a flight to safe-haven assets in August. By September though the market began to calm as concerns over
US-China trade relations and the risk for a no-deal Brexit receded, risk sentiment reduced the appetite for safe haven
assets for the remainder of the year as returns turned negative. The emergence of the coronavirus became the primary
driver of markets in 2020. Sovereign bond markets generally performed well as central banks eased policy aggressively
where possible and introduced additional quantitative easing measures to help restore liquidity to the fixed income
markets which had evaporated by mid-March. The first half of March represented the fastest drawdown in risk assets as
governments introduced social distancing measures and shut down parts of the economy in an attempt to prevent the
spread of the virus. Sovereign bonds in both the US and the UK delivered the strongest returns during this period whilst
returns from Japan and Europe were more muted given the starting point for yields in those markets were already
extremely low. Markets recovered a large proportion of the drawdown very rapidly as policy from central banks and
government restored confidence for investors and so liquidity also improved.
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The Fund has a structural underweight to the Japanese government bond market, which represents approximately 30%
of the index. In general, we view the risk reward of investing in Japanese government bonds as unattractive. Payden &
Rygel manage a mandate within the Fund in place of investing structurally in Japan.

The purpose of this mandate is to provide a return in excess of the carry that we are forgoing for not investing in Japan,
with better risk characteristics. This strategy should protect the relative performance of the Fund in the event of a selloff
in the Japanese government bonds. The remainder of the Fund is managed by PIMCO, who look to outperform the ex-
Japan portion of the Bloomberg Barclays Global Government Bond index.

The Fund underperformed the benchmark during the reporting period. The main period of underperformance for the
fund occurred during February and March. The small exposure to high quality corporate credit had a materially negative
effect on performance as credit performed very poorly in light of the evolution of the covid-19 pandemic. This was
exacerbated by the dramatic decline in the oil price, increasing speculation of a large wave of issuer downgrades
combined with some of the worst liquidity conditions in the history of the market. Sovereign positioning also detracted
from performance despite the fund holding an overweight in the US. Within Europe the fund is underweight core Europe
and overweight peripheral Europe which had a negative impact and in addition, the exposure to Qatar detracted from
performance. Finally, the fund was underweight the US Dollar during the period which funded small exposures in the
Russian Ruble, the Mexican Peso and the Indonesian Rupiah which all detracted from performance. However, following
the reaction from the Central Banks and global governments risk assets have recovered strongly in April and May which
did benefit the relative performance of the fund.

The GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund underperformed the Bloomberg Barclays Global Corporate USD Hedged
Benchmark.

The credit market enjoyed a good run during the first half of the reporting period. Credit spreads, as defined by extra
yields that investors demand for holding corporate credits over safe-haven assets, tightened in every month except
August. The dovish stance from global central banks boosted risk sentiments. As the trade tension between the US and
China eased and the risk for a no-deal Brexit receded, investors also resumed appetite for risk. However, the situation
changed in the second half of the reporting period. The first quarter of 2020 was a very challenging period for
investment grade corporate bonds. The market experienced a very significant drawdown as the ramifications of the
global pandemic was felt by the majority of asset classes. The first half of March represented the fastest drawdown in
risk assets as governments introduced social distancing measures and shut down parts of the economy in an attempt to
prevent the spread of the virus. In addition, the global corporate bond market had to contend with the dramatic decline
in the oil price, increasing speculation of a large wave of issuer downgrades to sub-investment grade combined with
some of the worst liquidity conditions in the history of the market. Markets recovered a large proportion of the
drawdown very rapidly in April and March following policy action from Central Banks and government which restored
confidence for investors and so liquidity also improved.

The fund delivered a strong positive return during the month driven primarily by the fall in government bond yields
although the fund did modestly underperform the index after fees. Overall Wellington Management Company LLP
performed very well during the period and contributed very positively to performance over the reporting period.
Performance was particularly strong during the last 3 months of the reporting period when the market experienced a
very fast drawdown followed by a very fast recovery. Wellington Management Company LLP reduced risk in the mandate
coming into the crisis which benefitted performance however, selection decisions within the energy sector was a notable
drag on performance. Following the action from global central banks, Wellington Management Company LLP increased
risk and participated actively in the new issue market which combined with the small allocation to sub-investment grade
credit contributed significantly to performance as credit markets rebounded.

Pimco by contrast underperformed during the period despite performing well during the first nine months of the
reporting period before the impact of Coronavirus was felt by markets, the mandate had performed well and had
outperformed the index. However, during the crisis, Pimco were impacted by interest rate positioning, most notably
through an underweight to the US which performed well as yields fell sharply.
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The strategy held exposure in some emerging markets sovereign in the middle east as well as some Asian gaming issuers
which were impacted negatively by the crisis. In addition, the overweight allocation to financials detracted from
performance despite a positive contribution from an underweight to issuers across the industrial sector.

The GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund underperformed the Bloomberg Barclays World Government
Inflation-Linked Bond USD Hedged benchmark from the start of the period to the point of the Fund closure.

The global inflation linked bond market, as represented by the reference index, delivered a positive return of 2.6% during
the reporting period. Market returns were positive during the summer, as a dovish tone from the Federal Reserves (the
Fed) and the European Central Bank (ECB) drove both real and nominal interest rates lowers. Additionally, a series of
political tensions, including a re-escalation of the US-China trade tension in August and Brexit uncertainties, drove a
heightened demand for safe-haven assets. However, market returns turned negative from September onwards, with
mixed performance across regions. In September, an attack on Saudi Arabian oil facility caused disruption to its oil
production. Oil prices saw a sharp spike of 20%, marking the biggest intraday oil price rally since 1988. However, a
smaller-than-expected disruption and faster-than-anticipated restoration to the oil production led to a quick recovery in
oil price. Brent crude futures price ended September broadly unchanged. Meanwhile, weak global macro data and
disappointing inflation print in the US drove market-based inflation expectations lower. The US Treasury Inflation
Protected Securities (TIPS) led the sell-off in inflation linked bonds in September. In October and November, hopes for a
Phase-One trade deal between the US and China loomed large, as the two sides made positive progress in their
negotiation. An improved risk sentiment drove inflation expectation higher in the US, and US TIPS delivered positive
return in both months. Across the Atlantic, a de-escalation in no-deal Brexit risk led to a 5% appreciation of the British
Pound against US Dollar in October. Inflation expectations in the UK hence dropped meaningfully with a stronger
currency, leading to significant sell-off in the UK inflation linked bonds.

Despite delivering a positive absolute return, the Fund underperformed the reference index net of fees. Off-benchmark
positions in financials corporate credits and securitised assets including agency mortgage backed securities and covered
bonds contributed, as risk assets benefitted from a generally risk-on environment. An overweight allocation to US TIPS
with medium-to-long term maturities added value, as real interest rates dropped over the period. An underweight
allocation to medium-term UK inflation linked bonds also contributed, as real interest rate moved marginally higher in
the UK. However, the gains were partially offset by the underweight exposure to short-term and long-term nominal
bonds in the US, as nominal rates generally moved lower. An underweight to medium-term nominal bonds in France also
detracted from performance.

The Fund experienced a large redemption earlier in the year, after which the Fund had become too sub-scaled to be run
efficiently. A decision was thus made that it was in the best interest of investors to close the Fund. The Fund was
subsequently closed on 27th November 2019.

The GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund underperformed the ICE BofA Merrill Lynch US High Yield Constrained
index.

The high yield market generated a mixed return over the period. In the first half of the period up to year end 2019 the
asset class benefited from by the Federal Reserve’s dovish tone towards monetary policy at the start of 2019, which
supported the demand for risk assets. Higher quality debt was the main driver of the market, benefiting from both the
tailwind from the rally in rates and also from investors becoming concerned about taking on risk so late in the credit
cycle. The market performed well up until mid February 2020, but dramatically changed direction as the number of
Coronavirus cases grew globally and as many countries employed lockdowns, resulting in a dramatic slowdown in
economic activity. Consistent with other risk assets, high yield sold off sharply, with spreads in March reaching levels last
seen in 2009. Market volatility increased exponentially throughout most of March, before subsiding slightly during the
last week of the month, as news of aggressive global fiscal stimulus packages provided some support. In addition, the
production war between Saudi Arabia and Russia sent crude oil to its lowest level in 18 years, adding further to volatility.
Understandably, there was a high degree of dispersion between sectors. The energy sector was the worst performer,
suffering from a steep decline in demand and supply issues.
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Other sectors heavily affected by the virus included leisure, hospitality and gaming. Investors flocked to more stable
sectors that were deemed better positioned to navigate through the downturn with cable, utilities, healthcare and
technology holding up more. Unsurprisingly, CCC rated credits led market declines.

Oaktree was the better performer, significantly outperforming the index over the full period. The portfolio’s defensive
positioning, with overweight positions in packaging, telecom cable and support services and the low exposure to lower
rated credits helped relative returns. In addition, both the credit selection and the underweight within gas distribution
names added meaningfully. The European segment of the portfolio also enhanced returns by avoiding some of the
challenged names in the retail sector. The main detractors over the period included the lack of exposure to banks in the
first half of the period and the overweight to gaming, technology and hardware names and the underweight to software
services in the latter part of the review period.

The period under review has been challenging for Nomura Corporate Research and Asset Management, Inc. The
portfolio was adversely affected by an underweight to higher rated credits, which outperformed in 2019 and also this
year. The first half of the review period saw underperformance from select energy names, particularly within exploration
and production credits as well as stressed names in coal, chemical and telecom sectors. Contributors included security
selection in Food-Wholesale and the portfolio’s overweight to the gaming sector. Moving to performance this year, the
overweight to credit risk hurt the portfolio, as the higher-rated segments of the market were down much less than
lower-rated names. The main sector detractors included the overweight to gaming and hotels and security selection
within oil field equipment & services. The top contributors on a relative basis included the overweight to
software/services and positive security selection in banking, wireline telecom, and electronics. However, more recently
positive security selection within B and CCC rated names within energy and other cyclical sectors has helped relative
performance, as the rally has transitioned from quality-led to risk-led. These sectors have rebounded strongly as
restrictions are being eased and economies are starting to re-open.

Portfolio activity in the first half of the period included Nomura Corporate Research and Asset Management Inc., adding
to select longer duration BB rated bonds, which were still seen to offer upside potential, despite the rally in this segment
of the market. Energy exposure was reduced, particularly within the exploration and production space along with
positions in chemicals and other cyclical sectors. The team added to those areas of the market where they felt earnings
visibility was better such as select leisure and gaming credits. Oaktree took profits in select metals and mining names
and energy credits. The team also reduced exposure to the pharmaceutical sector driven by concerns over continuing
opioid lawsuits. More recently, both managers have been concentrating on finding bargains in the secondary market,
which today includes billions of dollars of downgrades from the investment grade market, known as fallen angels and
existing BB names that were indiscriminately hit during the sell-off. The focus has been on higher quality, more defensive
sectors including cable, TMT, packaging, and food. In addition, the production war between Saudi Arabia and Russia in
early March sent crude oil to its lowest level in 18 years. The widespread selling of risk assets in a market with poor
liquidity caused external emerging market debt valuations to move to levels not seen since 2009. Focus has also been on
looking at oversold sectors, such as gaming, aerospace, and restaurants. The team have sold issuers which are likely to
face liquidity problems, in addition to select deep cyclicals, and energy names. Oaktree have taken profits in some
defensive areas such as food and select pharmaceutical names that traded well during the crisis and where the team
believe the potential for continued upside is capped.

The GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund underperformed its JPMorgan Emerging Market Bond Global Diversified
benchmark.

External emerging market debt generated a mixed return over the review period. In the first half of the period the asset
class benefited from by the Federal Reserve’s dovish tone towards monetary policy at the start of 2019, which supported
the demand for risk assets. Returns were driven by both spread compression and lower US Treasury yields. Investment
grade countries outperformed high yield sovereigns. The market performed well up until mid February 2020, but
dramatically changed poise as the number of Coronavirus cases grew globally and as many countries employed strict
lockdowns, resulting in a dramatic slowdown in economic activity.
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Market volatility increased exponentially throughout most of March, before subsiding slightly during the last week of the
month, as news of aggressive global fiscal stimulus packages provided some support. In addition, the production war
between Saudi Arabia and Russia in early March sent crude oil to its lowest level in 18 years. The widespread selling of
risk assets in a market with poor liquidity caused external emerging market debt valuations to move to levels not seen
since 2009. The Fund outperformed the index in the first half of the period, but lagged during the sell-off in March 2020,
resulting in the Fund underperforming the index over the full period.

Wellington Management Company LLP was the better performing manager over the review period, comfortably
outperforming the index. Country allocation drove relative outperformance with security selection also contributing. The
underweight to Lebanon was a significant contributor to returns. Looking at the early part of the period, the off index
exposure to local currency bonds and EMFX added value. The overweight to external sovereign bonds in Russia and
external quasi sovereign debt in the oil and gas sector in Mexico was also beneficial. During the early part of this year
Wellington Management Company LLP benefitted from overweight positions in Romania and Croatia, particularly to euro
denominated debt. The underweight to Lebanon, which finally defaulted in early March, and Nigeria also added value.
Detractors included a lack of exposure to Uruguay and an underweight to Peru. Negative security selection in Brazil,
specifically the allocation to external corporate debt in the chemicals and metals and mining sectors and the
underweight to external sovereign debt across the curve detracted.

Lazard Asset Management Limited outperformed in the first half of the review period, with relative performance
benefiting from the underweight to Lebanon last year as well as an overweight position in Mozambique, but lagged
considerably in March of this year. The portfolio suffered from a general underweight in the safer investment grade
credits, such as some of the emerging European countries and also to China. These markets were avoided due to tight
valuations. While exposure to high yield countries had been reduced over the course of last year, positions in the Ukraine,
Ecuador, Argentina and Lebanon weighed meaningfully on performance. In addition, an overweight position in the front
end of Mexican state-owned oil company, PEMEX also detracted from performance as fundamentals continued to
worsen amid the collapse in oil prices. More recently, performance has rebounded as the portfolio benefited from
rotating down in quality in May.

Portfolio activity over the period saw Lazard Asset Management Limited actively trading Argentina after the
unfavourable outcome of the primary election in August, moving to a neutral weight. The team moved to an overweight
towards the end of the third quarter on the view that the sell-off was overdone and that the bonds were trading at an
attractive valuation. The main portfolio activity this year has been the move from an underweight to an overweight in
Lebanon post the default in March. The team had a long standing underweight to Lebanon which had been a contributor
to performance in 2019 and the first two months of 2020. The team expect bond prices to offer significant upside
potential from their current levels and also expect the negotiation process with bondholders to be relatively credit
friendly. Profits were taken in some medium and longer dated investment grade sovereigns as well as adding to short
duration bonds in select high yield countries. The team recently added to PEMEX following the downgrade and took
advantage of the selling pressure as the issuer exited investment grade indices. The exposure is mainly in shorted dated
PEMEX bonds. Exposure to Brazil, Turkey and South Africa was also reduced on the increased risk of deteriorating
fundamentals.

In the first half of the review period Wellington Management Company LLP added to select investment grade EM
corporate bonds as spreads became attractive. The off index EM FX exposure to a basket of currencies was reduced and
the team added to local bonds in Russia on the view that inflation is likely to fall further and the central bank is expected
to continue cutting rates. Early this year the team further reduced the off index position in EM currencies, but added a
very small position in select LC sovereign debt in Mexico and Russia. Exposure to external debt in China was reduced, as
valuations became expensive. Positions were also scaled down in Angola and Ecuador and also in PEMEX. The team
added to longer dated sovereign bonds in Qatar and in the UAE as well as to corporate bonds issued by protein
producers in Brazil. Following the March sell-off in EMFX, the team added slightly to the off index position in EM
currencies and reduced the exposure to local currency debt and to EM corporates at the margin.
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Within external sovereign debt, exposure was reduced in Russia and increased in Mexico, moving to a slight overweight
on valuation grounds. The team also reduced the extent of the underweight in China by adding a high quality corporate
bond. Both managers have been active in the new issue market which opened up in the last week of March.

The GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund outperformed the Bloomberg Barclays Global Treasuries 1-3 Years
Index USD Hedged benchmark over the period.

The market for short dated fixed income securities was very mixed during the period. In the sovereign space, the market
delivered positive performance every month. The reporting period began with major Central Banks stepping up their
dovish rhetoric amid deteriorating economic data, trade tension between the US and China and Brexit uncertainties. In
August, a series of negative headlines sent shockwaves through the market and led to further strong performance from
short maturity government assets. The market, was relatively stable as the period progressed until the global pandemic
impacted markets. Up until this point, corporate credit markets had performed well benefitting both from falling
government bond yields and falling credit spreads.

However, the first quarter of 2020 was a very challenging period for all fixed income asset classes with the exception of
US and UK sovereign debt. Most non sovereign sectors experienced significant drawdowns as the ramifications of the
global pandemic impacted financial markets. In addition, the fixed income markets had to contend with the dramatic
decline in the oil price, increasing speculation of a large wave of issuer downgrades combined with some of the worst
liquidity conditions in the history of the market.

The impact of poor liquidity was felt acutely in the short maturity bonds space as investors desperate to raise cash were
forced to sell what they could rather than what they should. This often meant that short duration bonds were used to
raise cash as they were marginally more liquid and in absolute price terms had delivered a less negative return. This led
short maturity bonds in both developed markets and emerging markets to underperform longer maturity bonds on a risk
adjusted basis. Markets recovered a large proportion of the drawdown very rapidly in April and March following policy
action from central banks and government which restored confidence for investors and so liquidity also improved. That
said, emerging market debt and securitized assets reacted far slower in recovering the losses from the pandemic than
corporate credit markets which were direct beneficiaries of the quantitative easing programs from the global central
banks.

The fund experienced a very significant draw down in March but still managed to deliver a positive total return over the
period. Payden & Rygel were added to the Fund in late June 2019. The group has a strong heritage in managing short
duration strategies. The strategy is a team based approach that combines both top-down and bottom up ideas with a
focus of delivering an absolute total return. The approach builds a core portfolio of both defensive and opportunistic
income generating exposures from across the fixed income opportunity set. These positions are then augmented with a
small number of tactical themes.

Payden & Rygel delivered a negative return since inception of the mandate. Payden & Rygel were added to the portfolio
to increase the defensive nature of the fund. The fund would continue to allocate opportunistically to sectors across the
fixed income landscape however, the mandate reduced the average maturity of the fund and reduced the emphasis in
emerging market and high yield credit in favour of a higher allocation to investment grade credit and securitized debt.
The mandate performed well initially but suffered a draw down during the sell off as lower maturity assets
underperformed on a risk adjusted basis and in addition the exposure to securitized debt detracted from performance as
the sector came under significant liquidity pressure from investors liquidating positions to raise cash.

Despite the volatility, T. Rowe Price were able to deliver a small positive return over the period. The mandate performed
well during the first half of the reporting period as positive security selection within both global investment grade credit
and high yield corporate bonds drove the outperformance. The team had taken advantage of weaker markets to add risk
to the portfolio, which paid off over the review period. Within interest rate strategies, the portfolio benefited from an
overweight in the US as Treasury rates declined. The move to an underweight later in the period also added value, as
yields rose. FX trades were mixed.
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The long position in the Egyptian pound added to performance, while the long position in the Chilean peso hurt on the
back of social unrest following a hike in transport costs. The mandate came under pressure in the second half of the
period. The strategy does have some exposure to high quality assets including US treasuries and agency mortgage
backed securities which did cushion the impact from the selloff in fixed income risk but not enough to prevent a negative
return during the second half of the reporting period.

The exposure to corporate credit in both investment grade and high yield as well as the exposure to emerging market
debt all contributed to the drawdown in February and March. The market rebounded quickly following action from
global Central Banks which benefitted the strategy significantly.

The GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund underperformed the JP Morgan GBI-EM Clobal
Diversified benchmark.

Similar to other risk assets, emerging market local currency debt delivered mixed performance over the review period.
The first half of the period saw the asset class continuing to benefit from the supportive monetary policy from the major
central banks along with some easing of geopolitical tensions, which helped risk assets. However, the environment
changed in the third quarter of 2019. Market sentiment was adversely impacted by the increasing uncertainty
surrounding the US-China trade deal as well as idiosyncratic events in South America, most notably in Argentina.

Following the shock results of the PASO (primary elections) in August, in which the market friendly President Mauricio
Macri lost heavily against the more populist candidate Alberto Fernandez. This resulted in Argentine assets selling off
sharply. Elsewhere, Chile saw social unrest following a hike in transport costs and other countries such as Ecuador and
Colombia also saw protests. However, the year ended on a positive note for local emerging market debt, as performance
was supported by the positive sentiment that accompanied an easing in longstanding risks over the US-China trade war,
Brexit and the slowing global economy. The market performed well up until mid February 2020, but dramatically
changed direction as the number of Coronavirus cases grew globally and as many countries employed strict lockdowns,
resulting in a dramatic slowdown in economic activity. Market volatility increased exponentially throughout most of
March, before subsiding slightly during the last week of the month, as news of aggressive global fiscal stimulus packages
provided some support. Consistent with other risk assets, emerging market local debt also suffered a sharp sell-off in
March. The flight to quality supported the USD and a depreciation of emerging market currencies compounded negative
returns for local currency debt over the period. The widespread selling of risk assets, was further exacerbated by the
production war between Saudi Arabia and Russia in early March, which sent crude oil to its lowest level in 18 years,
resulting in the oil price going into free fall as the supply of oil rose at a time when demand was already suffering.

Colchester Global Investors was the better performing manager over the review period, delivering a positive absolute
return. The portfolio performed well in the first half of the period, supported by overweight positions in Russian nominal
bonds, Brazilian inflation linked bonds and the underweight in Chilean nominal rates. Within FX, the top contributors
included the overweight to the Mexican peso and the Colombian peso and the underweight in the Chilean peso, which
was hit by the social unrest in the country towards the end of 2019. The portfolio outperformed in January and February
of this year, but lagged significantly in March, with both bond and currency selection detracting. The main bond
detractors for the period included the overweight positions in South Africa, Indonesia and Brazil. Within currencies, the
overweight to the Mexican and Colombian peso and the off index position in the Korean won detracted. These offset
gains from being underweight rates in Peru, Thailand and Turkey as well as underweight positions in the Thai baht,
Polish zloty and Czech koruna. More recently, the manager has delivered strong performance, with the overweight to the
Mexican peso, Colombian peso and South African rand adding value. Within bonds, overweight positions in South Africa,
which the best performing country in the index May and in Colombia and Mexico were positive for relative performance.

It was a mixed performance period for Blackrock Inc. The portfolio lagged in the first half due to the underweight to high
beta currencies such as the Mexican peso, Russian rouble and South African rand, which detracted amidst broad EMFX
strengthening against the US dollar. The underweight to rates hurts also hurt against the backdrop of global monetary
easing. However, the underweight to Argentine local debt added value in August following the sell-off, post the primary
elections.
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The underweight to Turkish bonds also detracted, as the bonds repriced higher following a strong inflation print in
September.

Towards the end of 2019, FX selection drove returns, as the high beta names outperformed. Specific contributions came
from the overweight to commodity currencies such as the Colombian peso and the Russian rouble, which were held as
part of the ‘Global Growth Goldilocks’ theme. Rate positions were broadly flat. This year, both bond and currency
selection have largely hurt relative returns for Blackrock Inc..

Towards the end of 2019, FX selection drove returns, as the high beta names outperformed. Specific contributions came
from the overweight to commodity currencies such as the Colombian peso and the Russian rouble, which were held as
part of the ‘Global Growth Goldilocks’ theme. Rate positions were broadly flat. This year, both bond and currency
selection have largely hurt relative returns for Blackrock Inc..

In the first part of the period, exposure to off index external sovereign debt in Turkey added value, as did tactically
trading higher beta currencies. However, as volatility increased in March, the overweight positions in the Mexican peso,
Russian rouble, Indonesian rupiah and the Brazilian real and the off index position in the Kazakh tenge detracted. Within
bonds, the underweight to Malaysia and Peru hurt, while an off index position in US duration offset some of the negative
performance.

More recently, the outperformance in the rates segment was offset by mixed performance from the FX portion of the
portfolio. Outperformance came from overweight exposure to the Russian rouble and European currencies such as the
Hungarian forint and Czech koruna, whilst underperformance occurred form the portfolio’s significant underweight
exposures, to the Colombian peso, Thai baht and Turkish lira.

Both managers were active over the period. Blackrock Inc. added to high beta currencies in the first half of the review
period. Profits were also taken following the broad rally in duration by reducing the overweight to both high and low
yielding positions. The team reduced the ‘Global Growth Goldilocks’ theme of higher beta EMFX in quarter 1 2020 and
introduced a new theme ‘Short term Growth Fears’, which is overweight developed market currencies including the USD
and euro vs the South African rand, Turkish lira and Mexican peso. Towards the end of March, risk was marginally
increased and a new FX theme ‘Economic wave from East to West’ was opened. This theme is overweight CEE and Asian
currencies versus Latin American and the US dollar.

More recently the team increased the underweight to Turkish local rates on policy concerns. The underweight to bonds
and FX in Brazil was also increased on the back of concerns that the developing political crisis could impact the fiscal
account. The team also reduced the portfolio’s overweight exposure to Asian currencies such as CNH given increased
tensions between the US and China. The underweight exposure to Latin America was also raised on the back of rising
virus numbers. In the rates segment, the team added to duration through a small allocation to off index hard currency
bonds, including EUR denominated Romania. Colchester Global Investors actively traded the Brazilian real, and Malaysian
ringitt. The team also added to the off index position in the Korean won in the first half of the review period. During the
early part of the year, the team reduced exposure to the Indonesian rupiah and the Mexican peso, using the proceeds to
add to the Thai baht, Brazilian real and Chilean peso. As currencies sold off in March, the team added to high beta
currencies including the Mexican peso, Brazilian real and South African rand, while reducing exposure to the Czech
koruna, Polish zloty and Korean won. Within bonds, exposure was increased to Poland, Hungary, Russia, Mexico, Brazil,
South Africa, Colombia, while reducing Thailand. More recently, the manager reduced exposure to rates in Poland,
Thailand and Hungary and added to Brazil, Colombia and South Africa. Within FX, the off index position in the Korean
won was eliminated and exposure was reduced in the Polish zloty, other CEE currencies and the Thai baht in favour of
adding to the Brazilian real and Indonesian rupiah.

32



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Investment manager’s report for the financial year ended 31

May 2020 (continued)

The following managers are responsible for managing assets as of 31 May 2020.

ClobalAccess UK Alpha Fund

Jupiter Asset Management Limited - terminated 6
September 2019

Majedie Asset Management — terminated 31 March 2020
Merian Global Investors — terminated 31 March 2020
Artemis Fund Managers Limited — terminated 16 January
2020

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund

Lindsell Train Limited
Heronbridge Investment Management LLP
) O Hambro Capital Management Limited

GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund

Payden & Rygel
Pimco

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund

Hermes Investment Management Limited
Fidelity International Ltd
Schroders Investment Management (Japan) Ltd

ClobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund

Pzena Investment Management LLC

Schroders Investment Management (Japan) Ltd
Arrowstreet Capital, L.P.

Somerset Capital Management LLP

BNY Mellon ARX Investimentos

ClobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund

Oak Tree
Nomura Corporate Research and Asset Management, Inc.

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund

Pimco
Wellington Management Company LLP

GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund

Pimco — terminated 27 November 2019

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund

Wellington Management Company LLP
Lazard Asset Management Limited

GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund

Principal Global Investors (Europe) Limited

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund

T. Rowe Price
Payden & Rygel

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund

Kennedy Capital Management
Wellington Management Company LLP
London Company of Virginia LLC

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund

Ceredex Value Advisors LLC
T. Rowe Price
AllianceBernstein

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund

Artemis Fund Managers Limited
Baillie Gifford & Co
Kleinwort Benson Investors

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund

Colchester Global Investors
Blackrock Inc.

ClobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund

Allianz Global Investors
Blackrock Inc.
Invesco Global Asset Management

GlobalAccess Japan Fund

Baillie Gifford & Co
Schroders Investment Management (Japan) Ltd

Barclays Investment Solutions Limited, acting through its Wealth & Investment Management Division

24 September 2020
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We, Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited, appointed Depositary to Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC (the
“Company"), provide this report solely in favour of the Shareholders of the Fund for the financial year ended 31 May
2020 (“the Annual Accounting Period). This report is provided in accordance with the UCITS Regulations — European
Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011(SI No 352 of 2011)
(as amended) which implemented Directive 2009/65/EU into Irish Law (“the Regulations”). We do not, in the provision
of this report, accept nor assume responsibility for any other purpose or person to whom this report is shown.

In accordance with our Depositary obligation as provided for under the Regulations, we have enquired into the conduct
of the Company for this period and we hereby report thereon to the Shareholders of the Company as follows;

We are of the opinion that the Company has been managed during the Annual Accounting Period, in all material
respects:

(i.) in accordance with the limitations imposed on the investment and borrowing powers of the Company by the
constitutional documents and by the Regulations; and

(ii.)  otherwise in accordance with the provisions of the constitutional document and the Regulations.

For and on behalf of Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited

24 September 2020
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Directors’ report

The board of Directors (the “Board”) present herewith the annual report and audited financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 May 2020.

Statement of Directors' responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union ("IFRS") and those parts of the Companies
Act 2014 (as amended) applicable to companies reporting under IFRS and the European Communities (Undertakings for
Collective Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (as amended) (“the UCITS Regulations”) and the
Central Bank (Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in
Transferable Securities) Regulations 2019 (as amended) (the "Central Bank UCITS Regulations").

The Companies Act 2014 (as amended) requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year
which give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company for that
financial year.

In preparing each of the financial statements, the Directors are required to:

e select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

¢ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e state whether the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with applicable accounting standards and
identify the standards in question, subject to any material departures from those standards being disclosed and
explained in the notes to the financial statements; and

e prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Company
will continue in business.

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparing the financial statements.
The Directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to:

e correctly record and explain the transactions of the Company;

e enable, at any time, the assets, liabilities, financial position and profit or loss of the Company to be determined with
reasonable accuracy; and

e enable the Directors to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2014 (as amended) and
enable those financial statements to be audited.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and thereby for taking reasonable steps
for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The measures taken by the Directors to ensure compliance with the Company’s obligation to keep accounting records
are the appointment of an experienced administrator Northern Trust International Fund Administration Services (Ireland)
Limited (the “Administrator”’) and through such appointment, the use of appropriate systems and procedures to
maintain proper accounting records. The accounting records are held at the office of the Administrator. The address at
which this business is conducted is as follows:

Georges Court

54-62 Townsend Street
Dublin 2

Ireland

35



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Directors’ report (continued)

Statement of Directors' responsibilities (continued)

Audited annual reports and unaudited interim reports are available on www.barclaysinvestments.com. The Directors are
responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the financial statements published on this website. Information
published on the internet is accessible in many countries with different legal requirements. Legislation in Ireland
governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
The work carried out by the auditors does not involve consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors
accept no responsibility for any changes that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially
presented on the website.

Statement of relevant audit information
Each of the persons who are Directors at the time when this Directors’ report is approved has confirmed that in the
context of Section 330 of the Companies Act 2014 (as amended):

(i.)  so far as each Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are
unaware; and

(ii.)  that the Directors have taken all reasonable steps that ought to have been taken as Directors in order to be
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s Auditors are aware of that
information.

Directors’ compliance statement
The Directors acknowledge that they are responsible for securing the Company’s compliance with the relevant
obligations as set out in section 225 of the Companies Act 2014 (as amended).

The Directors confirm that:

(i.)  a compliance policy document has been drawn up that sets out policies, that in our opinion are appropriate to
the Company, respecting compliance by the Company with its relevant obligations;
(ii.)  appropriate arrangements or structures are in place that are, in our opinion, designed to secure material
compliance with the Company's relevant obligations; and
(iii.)  during the financial year, the arrangements or structures referred to in (ii) have been reviewed.

Audit committee

The Directors acknowledge that they are required, under Section 167 of the Companies Act 2014 (as amended), to
consider the establishment of an audit committee. The Directors have decided not to establish an audit committee
because in the Directors' opinion, at this time, the responsibilities of an audit committee, under Section 167 (i.e. the
monitoring of internal control, internal audit, risk management, the financial reporting process, statutory audit and
statutory financial statements, the review and monitoring of the independence of the auditors and the provision by the
auditors of additional services to the Company) are already being fulfilled by the Board by virtue of the Board’s corporate
governance regime and the existing arrangements and structures in place designed to secure compliance with the
extensive legal and regulatory obligations imposed on UCITS investment companies in connection with the Company’s
management.

Remuneration policy
The UCITS V Directive requires the financial statements of the Company to include certain remuneration information, for
details refer to Appendix 1.

Corporate governance report
Although there is no specific statutory corporate governance code applicable to Irish collective investment undertakings,
the Company is subject to corporate governance practices imposed by:

(i)  The Companies Act 2014 (as amended) which is available for inspection at the registered office of the Company
(6th Floor, 2 Grand Canal Place, Dublin 2, Ireland) and may also be obtained at: www.irishstatutebook.ie;

36



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Directors’ report (continued)

Corporate governance report (continued)
(ii.)  The Articles of Association of the Company which are available for inspection at the registered office of the
Company and at the Companies Registration Office in Ireland;
(iii.)  The Central Bank of Ireland in its Central Bank UCITS Regulations, which can be obtained from the website at:
www.centralbank.ie and are available for inspection at the registered office of the Company;
(iv.)  The Euronext Dublin continuing obligations requirements for open ended funds which can be obtained from the
Euronext Dublin website at: www.ise.ie.

A voluntary corporate governance code for Irish-domiciled collective investment undertakings, was published by Irish
Funds (“IF”) the industry association for investment funds in Ireland in December 2011 (the "Code"). The Code is
available from the IF website (www.irishfunds.ie). The Directors adopted the Code in November 2012. The Company
does not apply additional corporate governance requirements beyond those required by the above.

The Company currently has no direct employees. Consistent with the regulatory framework applicable to investment
fund companies such as the Company (and in contrast to normal operating companies with a full time executive
management and employees), the Company operates under a model whereby it has delegated investment management,
administration and distribution functions to third parties without abrogating the Directors’ overall responsibility. The
Directors have in place mechanisms for monitoring the exercise of such delegated functions, which are always subject to
the supervision and direction of the Directors. These delegations of functions and the appointment of regulated third
party entities are detailed in the Company’s Prospectus. The Company has also appointed Northern Trust Fiduciary
Services (Ireland) Limited (the “Depositary”) as depositary of its assets. This entity has responsibility for the safekeeping
of such assets in accordance with the UCITS Regulations and for exercising independent oversight over how the
Company is managed. The depositary is regulated by and under the supervision of the Central Bank.

The Directors receive reports on a regular (and at least quarterly) basis from each of its delegate service providers and
the depositary which enable them to assess the performance of the delegate service providers and the depositary (as the
case may be).

Diversity report

In accordance with Regulation 6 of the European Union (Disclosure of Non-Financial and Diversity Information by certain
large undertakings and groups) Regulations 2017, the Board has adopted a diversity policy which sets out the approach
to diversity on the Board ("Diversity Policy"). The Diversity Policy acknowledges that the Board recognises and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board and that a truly diverse Board will include and make good use of differences in
skills, industry experience, background, race, age, gender, education, professional backgrounds and other distinctions
between directors.

The objective of the Diversity Policy is to ensure that diversity is considered in determining the optimum composition of
the Board and when possible should be balanced appropriately. The Board has considered the diversity of the Board and,
whilst acknowledging the importance of diversity and its many aspects has not set specific targets in respect of diversity.

The Diversity Policy states that all Board appointments will be made on merit, in the context of the skills, experience,
independence and knowledge which the Board as a whole requires to be effective. In identifying suitable candidates, the
Board will consider the benefits of all aspects of diversity including but not limited to, those described above, in order to
enable it to discharge its duties and responsibilities effectively.

Internal control and risk management systems

The Board is responsible for overseeing the establishment and maintenance of adequate internal control and risk
management systems of the Company in relation to the financial reporting process. The Board is comprised of three
independent Directors and one appointed by the promoter, Barclays Investment Solutions Limited. The Board meets on a
quarterly basis, or more frequently as required. The Company has no employees and all Directors with the exception of
Kishor Mandalia serve in a non-executive capacity. As a result all functions relating to the Company’s financial reporting
process, including the preparation of the Company’s financial statements, have been outsourced.
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Internal control and risk management systems (continued)

The Company has appointed the administrator (consistent with the regulatory framework applicable to investment fund
companies such as the Company) to maintain the accounting records of the Company independently of the investment
manager and the depositary. Through this appointment the Directors have procedures in place to ensure that all relevant
accounting records are properly maintained and are readily available, including production of annual and half yearly
financial statements. The Administrator has functional responsibility for the preparation of the Company’s annual and
semi-annual financial statements and the maintenance of its books and records. On appointing the Administrator, the
Board noted that it is regulated by the Central Bank of Ireland and, in the Board’s opinion, has significant experience as
an administrator.

The Board has delegated the day to day responsibility for monitoring the controls applied by the administrator to
Barclays Investment Solutions Limited, acting through its Wealth Management Division (the "investment manager"),
which performs day to day monitoring activities and formally reports to the Board on a quarterly basis (or more
frequently as required). The Board also noted the independence of the administrator from the Company’s investment
manager. The Board has satisfied itself that the administrator has sufficient knowledge, skills and resources to produce
the financial statements in accordance with the relevant rules and regulations. The appointment of the administrator is
intended to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve the Company’s financial reporting objectives and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The annual and semi-annual financial statements of the Company are required to be approved by the Board and filed
with the Central Bank of Ireland and the Euronext Dublin within the relevant respective time periods. The statutory
financial statements are required to be audited by independent auditors who report annually to the Board on their
findings.

The Board evaluates and discusses significant accounting and reporting issues as the need arises, these are documented
in minutes of meetings of the Board. The Board reviews the financial statements prior to their approval, though it should
be noted that such review does not include verification of information in the financial statements to underlying
documents. The annual financial statements are subject to independent audit by PricewaterhouseCoopers (the
“auditors”) who report annually to the Board on their findings and on the audit process.

This report includes observations as to the extent to which the annual financial statements provide a true and fair view.
The auditors present this report at the Board meeting at which the financial statements are presented to the Board for
approval. The Board also invites the auditors to attend the Board meeting prior to the commencement of the audit, at
which the auditors present the audit plan to the Board. The Directors evaluate and discuss significant accounting and
reporting issues as the need arises.

The Directors have no power to amend the financial statements, with the exception of the provisions set out in Sections
366 to 379 of the Companies Act 2014 (as amended).

Shareholders’ meetings

The convening and conduct of Shareholders’ meetings are governed by the Memorandum and Articles of Association of
the Company and the Companies Act 2014 (as amended). Although the Directors may convene an extraordinary general
meeting of the Company at any time, the Directors are required to convene an annual general meeting of the Company
within eighteen months of incorporation and at least within fifteen months of the date of the previous annual general
meeting thereafter. Annual general meetings are held once in each year, generally within six months of the end of the
financial year.

Shareholders representing not less than one-tenth of the paid up share capital of the Company may also request the
Directors to convene a Shareholders’ meeting. Not less than twenty one clear days’ notice of every annual general
meeting and any meeting convened for the passing of a special resolution must be given to Shareholders and fourteen
clear days’ notice must be given in the case of any other general meeting unless the auditors of the Company and all the
Shareholders of the Company entitled to attend and vote agree to shorter notice.
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Shareholders’ meetings (continued)

Two Shareholders present either in person or by proxy constitutes a quorum at a general meeting. Every holder of shares
present in person or by proxy who votes on a show of hands is entitled to one vote and the holders of participating
shares shall have one vote in respect of all of the subscriber shares in issue. On a poll, every holder of shares present in
person or by proxy is entitled to one vote in respect of each share held by them.

The Chairman of a general meeting of the Company or at least three Shareholders present in person or by proxy, or any
Shareholders present representing at least one tenth of the total voting rights of all the Shareholder concerned having
the right to vote at the meeting or Shareholder(s) holding shares conferring the right to vote at the meeting, being shares
on which an aggregate sum has been paid up equal to not less than ten per cent of the total sum paid up on all the
shares conferring the right to vote at such meeting may demand a poll.

Shareholders may resolve to pass an ordinary resolution or special resolution at a Shareholders’ meeting. An ordinary
resolution of the Company or of the Shareholders of a particular fund or class requires a simple majority of the votes cast
by the Shareholders voting in person or by proxy at the meeting at which the resolution is proposed. A special resolution
of the Company or of the Shareholders of a particular fund or class requires a majority of not less than 75% of the
Shareholders present in person or by proxy and voting in general meeting in order to pass a special resolution including a
resolution to amend the Memorandum and Articles of Association.

Connected persons' transactions

In accordance with the Central Bank’s UCITS Regulation 41(1), any transaction carried out with a UCITS by a
management company or depositary to the UCITS, the delegates or sub-delegates of the management company or
depositary, and any associated or group of such a management company, depositary, delegate or sub-delegate
(“connected persons”) must be carried out as if conducted at arm’s length. Such transactions must be in the best
interests of the shareholders. In addition to those transactions, there are also transactions carried out by connected
persons on behalf of the Company to which the Directors have no direct access and in respect of which the Directors
must rely upon assurances from the Company’s delegates that the connected person carrying out those transactions do
carry them out on a similar basis.

Shareholders should have regard to the governance structure of the Company as more particularly described in the
corporate governance statement report (above) and the roles and responsibilities of the Company’s respective delegates
subject to the overall supervision of the Board. Further, Shareholders should refer to the Prospectus which identifies
many of the connected persons' transactions and the general nature of the contractual arrangements with the principal
connected persons but it is not exhaustive of all connected persons' transactions. Shareholders should also refer to the
provisions of the Prospectus dealing with conflicts of interest.

Therefore, having regard to confirmations from the Company’s management and its relevant delegates, the Board is
satisfied that:

(i.)  there are arrangements (as evidenced by written procedures documented by the investment manager) in place
to ensure that the obligations described above are applied to all transactions with connected persons; and

(ii.)  transactions with connected persons entered into during the financial year complied with these obligations, as
attested through regular updates to the Directors.

Risk management objectives and policies

Risk management is carried out under policies approved by the Board. The Board provides written principles for overall
risk management as well as written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk,
credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investing excess liquidity.
A detailed review of the risk exposure is detailed in note 2, on pages 83 to 92 of the financial statements.
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Principal activities

The Company has been authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland as a UCITS (Undertakings for Collective Investment in
Transferable Securities) within the meaning of the UCITS Regulations and the Central Bank UCITS Regulations. It is
structured as an umbrella fund consisting of different Funds each comprising one or more Share Classes. The assets of
each Fund are invested separately on behalf of each Fund in accordance with the investment objective and policies of
each Fund. At 31 May 2020, the Company had 15 Funds in operation.

Review of business and future developments
The net asset values per share decreased in the financial year as detailed in note 11 on pages 132 to 148 of the financial
statements.

The assets under management in the Company decreased to GBP 3,443,397,284 from CBP 4,057,583,618 during the
financial year. The investment manager's report contains a review of the factors that contributed to the performance for
the financial year. The Directors do not anticipate any change in the structure or investment objectives of the Company.

Results
The results for the financial year and the appropriation thereof are set out in the Statement of comprehensive income on
pages 48 to 53.

Dividends

The Directors recommend the payment of quarterly dividends out of each Fund's investment income attributable to the
distributing share class Shareholders. These distributions are usually declared and paid within 10 business days following
the end of the relevant quarter, i.e. within 10 business days of the end of February, May, August and November each
year. Dividends paid during the financial year are detailed in note 12, on pages 149 to 151.

Directors
The Directors of the Company, who all served for the full financial year, are shown below

Sean Blake (Irish) (Independent non-executive Director)

David Kingston (lIrish) (Independent non-executive Director)
Hugh Paul Shovlin (Irish) (Independent non-executive Director)
Kishor Mandalia (British)

Directors’ and secretary's interests
None of the Directors, secretary or their connected persons had any interest in the share capital of the Company during
the financial years ended 31 May 2020 or 31 May 2019.

Transactions involving Directors and company secretary

There are no contracts or arrangements of any significance in relation to the business of the Company in which the
Directors, Secretary or their connected persons had any interest as defined in the Companies Act 2014 (as amended), at
any time during financial years ended 31 May 2020 and 31 May 2019.

Details of transactions with Barclays' related entities are disclosed in note 17 "Related Party Transactions" on pages 173
to 174 of the financial statements.

Significant events during the financial year
A number of share class terminations occurred within the Funds during the financial year. Please refer to 'Funds at a
glance section within 'Background to the Company' on pages 8 to 14 for details.

A new Prospectus was issued on 11 February 2020, replacing the previous Prospectus dated 18 February 2019. The new
Prospectus added, among others, specific disclosures related to investing in fixed income securities listed on the China
Interbank Bond Market, changes in the naming of the hedged share classes in the share classes schedule, a sub-
custodian appendix and changes to eligible markets.
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Significant events during the financial year (continued)

Beginning in January 2020, global financial markets have experienced and continue to experience significant volatility
resulting from the spread of COVID-19. The effects of COVID-19 have and may continue to adversely affect the global
economy all of which may negatively impact the Company’s performance. The Company is comfortable that it has
reserves to cope with the potential impact of COVID-19. In terms of operations, the Company has assessed its own
resilience and the resilience of all relevant third party service providers and have confirmed that there are business
continuity plans in place to mitigate the impact of COVID-19 across their operations. No operational disturbances have
been identified as of now. Management and the Board of Directors continue to assess and monitor the impact on the
underlying business of the global COVID-19 pandemic and take all possible steps to mitigate the risk to the business and
ensure that the Company can continue to operate as a going concern.

Further updates were made to the Investment Objective and Policy of the Funds on 14 February 2020 in order to make
these clearer to investors. Investors were notified of the changes in late February and the updated prospectus reflecting
these changes can be found at www.barclaysinvestments.com.

Other than noted above, there have been no significant events during the financial year, which, in the opinion of the
Directors of the Company, require an amendment to or disclosure in the financial statements for the financial year ended
31 May 2020.

Significant events since the financial year end
On 2 June 2020, the following dividends were declared by each Fund based on the net income available for distribution
as at the year-end date. These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.

Fund Currency Amounts paid
GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund GBP 1,831,942
GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund usb 138,794
GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund usD 224,979
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund usb 2,158,212
GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund usbD 7,161,444
GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund usD 2,883,911
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund usD 2,530,799
GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund usD 1,183,442
GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund usD 981,895
GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund usD -

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund usD 265,124
GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund usD 868,027
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund usb 5,200,034
GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund EUR 564,839
GlobalAccess Japan Fund JPY 138,889,338
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Significant events since the financial year end (continued)
Since the financial year end, the capital transactions and performance of the Funds were as follows:

Fund Currency  Subscriptions  Redemptions Performance*
GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund GBP 49,263,087 (19,668,231) (4.19%)
GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund usD 2,985,089 (2,271,644) 1.79%
GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund usb 1,383,082 (6,482,465) 17.05%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund usb 18,908,808 (24,563,208) 15.78%
GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund usD 19,785,233 {50,001,103) 3.45%
GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund usD 30,409,293 (16,104,778) 3.09%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund usb 10,936,989 (10,875,596) 4.85%
GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund usb 8,284,535 (11,127,857) 4.84%
GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund usb 5,064,186 (9,486,327) 2.31%
GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund usb 451,557 (5,634,843) 6.20%
GlobalAccess US Equity Fund usb 434,096 (20,131,112) 8.00%
GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund usb 96,814 (7,445,293) 7.94%
ClobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund usb 14,056,484  (248,055,879) 0.34%
GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund EUR 828,920 (6,793,392) 5.87%
GlobalAccess Japan Fund PY 1,249,832,892  (709,022,967) 7.22%

* Class M Distributing Shares’ performance which was deemed by the Directors of the Company as being the most
representative share class of each Fund.

There have been no other significant events since the financial year end through to 24 September 2020, which, in the
opinion of the Directors of the Company, require an amendment to or disclosure in the financial statements for the
financial year ended 31 May 2020.

Independent auditors
The Auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers, have indicated their willingness to continue in office and will be re-appointed in
accordance with Section 383, of the Companies Act 2014 (as amended).

On behalf of the board of Directors

Séan Blake
Director

David Kingston
Director

24 September 2020
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Barclays
Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion, Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC’s financial statements:

e give a true and fair view of the Company’s and Funds’ assets, liabilities and financial position as at 31
May 2020 and of their results and cash flows for the year then ended;

e have been properly prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”) as adopted by the European Union; and

e  have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014 and the
European Communities (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities)
Regulations 2011 (as amended).

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Audited financial statements,
which comprise:

e the Statement of financial position as at 31 May 2020;
e the Statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
e the Statement of cash flows for the year then ended;

e the Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares for
the year then ended;

e the Schedule of investments for each of the Funds as at 31 May 2020; and

o the notes to the financial statements for the Company and for each of its Funds, which include a
description of the significant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (“ISAs (Ireland)”)
and applicable law.

Our responsibilities under ISAs (Ireland) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our
audit of the financial statements in Ireland, which includes IAASA’s Ethical Standard as applicable to listed
entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.
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Our audit approach

Overview
Materiality
e  Overall materiality: 100 basis points (fixed income funds) and 50 basis
points (equity funds) of Net Asset Value ("NAV") for Funds in operation and
Average Net Assets ("ANA") for terminated Funds at 31 May 2020 for each
Materiality of the Company’s Funds.

Audit scope

e The Company is an open-ended investment Company with variable capital
) and engages Barclays Investment Solutions Limited acting through its
At vinpe Wealth Management Division (the “Investment Manager”) and other

sub-investment managers (the "Sub-Investment Managers") to provide
investment management and advisory services with regards to part or all of
the assets of the Funds. The Investment Manager monitors the

K;ﬁ;:fslf performance of the Sub-Investment Managers. We tailored the scope of
our audit taking into account the types of investments within the Funds, the
involvement of the third parties referred to overleaf, the accounting
processes and controls, and the industry in which the Company operates.
We look at each of the Funds at an individual level.

Key audit matters
e  Existence of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss.

e  Valuation of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss.

The scope of our audit

As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material misstatement in the
financial statements. In particular, we looked at where the directors made subjective judgements, for example
the selection of pricing sources to value the investment portfolio. As in all of our audits, we also addressed the
risk of management override of internal controls, including evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the
directors that represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditors’ professional judgement, were of most significance in
the audit of the financial statements of the current period and include the most significant assessed risks of
material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud) identified by the auditors, including those which had the
greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy; the allocation of resources in the audit; and directing the efforts of
the engagement team. These matters, and any comments we make on the results of our procedures thereon,
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. This is not a complete list of all risks
identified by our audit.

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Existence of financial assets and financial liabilities ~ We obtained independent confirmation from the
at fair value through profit or loss Depositary of the investment portfolios held at 31 May

Refer to the Schedule of investments for each of the 2020, agreeing the amounts held to accounting
Funds, the significant accounting policies set out in records.
note 1 and note 14 for further details. No material misstatements were identified as a result

The financial assets and financial liabilities at fair of the procedures we performed.

value through profit or loss included in the Statement
of financial position of each Fund are held in the
Fund's name at 31 May 2020.

This is considered a key audit matter as it represents a
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

principal element of the financial statements.

Valuation of financial assets and financial liabilities ~ We tested the investment portfolios by independently
at fair value through profit or loss agreeing the valuation of investments to third party

Refer to the Schedule of investments for each of the ~ Vendor sources.
Funds, the significant accounting policies set out in No material misstatements were identified as a result
note 1 and note 14 for further details. of the procedures we performed.

The financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss included in the Statement
of financial position of each Fund at 31 May 2020 are
valued at fair value in line with IFRS.

This is considered a key audit matter as it represents a
principal element of the financial statements.

How we tailored the audit scope

We tailored the scope of our audit to ensure that we performed enough work to be able to give an opinion on the
financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the Company, the accounting processes and
controls, and the industry in which it operates.

As at 31 May 2020 there are 15 Funds operating and 2 Funds terminated. The Company's Statement of financial
position, Statement of comprehensive income, Statement of cash flows and Statement of changes in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares are an aggregation of the positions and results of the
Funds.

The directors control the affairs of the Company and are responsible for the overall investment policy which is
determined by them. The directors have delegated certain responsibilities to the Investment Manager and to
Northern Trust International Fund Administration Services (Ireland) Limited (the "Administrator"). The
financial statements, which remain the responsibility of the directors, are prepared on their behalf by the
Administrator. The Company has appointed Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited (the
“Depositary”) to act as Depositary of the Company’s assets. In establishing the overall approach to our audit we
assessed the risk of material misstatement at a Fund level, taking into account the nature, likelihood and
potential magnitude of any misstatement. As part of our risk assessment, we considered the Company’s
interaction with the Administrator, and we assessed the control environment in place at the Administrator.

Materiality

The scope of our audit was influenced by our application of materiality. We set certain quantitative thresholds
for materiality. These, together with qualitative considerations, helped us to determine the scope of our audit
and the nature, timing and extent of our audit procedures on the individual financial statement line items and
disclosures and in evaluating the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on the financial
statements as a whole.

Based on our professional judgement, we determined materiality for the financial statements of each of the
Company’s Funds as follows:

Overall materiality and 100 basis points (fixed income funds) and 50 basis points (equity funds)

how we determined it (2019: 100 basis points (fixed income funds) and 50 basis points (equity
funds)) of Net Asset Value ("NAV") for Funds in operation and Average Net
Assets ("ANA") for terminated Funds at 31 May 2020 for each of the
Company’s Funds.

Rationale for benchmark  We have applied this benchmark because the main objective of the Company
applied is to provide investors with a total return at a Fund level.

We agreed with the Board of directors that we would report to them misstatements identified during our audit
above 10 basis points (fixed income funds) and 5 basis points (equity funds), for NAV per share impacting
differences (2019: 10 basis points (fixed income funds) and 5 basis points (equity funds), for NAV per share
impacting differences ) as well as misstatements below that amount that, in our view, warranted reporting for
qualitative reasons.
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Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (Ireland) require us to
report to you where:

e the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial
statements is not appropriate; or

e the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that
may cast significant doubt about the Company’s and Funds’ ability to continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial
statements are authorised for issue.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to
the Company’s and Funds’ ability to continue as going concerns.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report and Audited financial statements
other than the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other
information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we
do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of
assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If
we identify an apparent material inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform
procedures to conclude whether there is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material
misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
based on these responsibilities.

With respect to the Directors’ report, we also considered whether the disclosures required by the Companies Act
2014 have been included.

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, ISAs
(Ireland) and the Companies Act 2014 require us to also report certain opinions and matters as described
below:

e Inour opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the
Directors’ report for the year ended 31 May 2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has
been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

e Based on our knowledge and understanding of the Company and its environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the Directors’ report.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors' responsibilities set out on page 35 and 36, the directors
are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view.

The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s and Funds’
ability to continue as going concerns, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the IAASA
website at:

https://www.iaasa.ie/getmedia/b2389013-1¢f6-458b-9b8f-a98202dcgc3a/Description of auditors responsib
ilities for audit.pdf.

This description forms part of our auditors’ report.
Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members as a body in
accordance with section 391 of the Companies Act 2014 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these

opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is
shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing,.

Other required reporting

Companies Act 2014 opinions on other matters
e  We have obtained all the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes
of our audit.

e Inour opinion the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the financial
statements to be readily and properly audited.

¢ The financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

Companies Act 2014 exception reporting
Directors’ remuneration and transactions

Under the Companies Act 2014 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of directors’
remuneration and transactions specified by sections 305 to 312 of that Act have not been made. We have no
exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Mf o0

Mary Ruane

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Audit Firm
Dublin

24 September 2020
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Income

Operating income

Net (losses)/gains on financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4

1(c), 3

GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund*

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities

GlobalAccess Global Government

Total net (expense)/income

Operating expenses 5

Net operating (loss)/profit

Finance costs
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 1(e), 12
Interest expense

(Loss)/profit for the financial year before tax

Non-reclaimable withholding tax 1(q)

(Loss)/profit for the financial year after tax

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares

Fund Bond Fund
Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
GBP GBP GBP GBP usD usD
565,595 1,659,838 12,206,786 13,720,603 57,020 78,597
(2,077,856) (4,801,513) (59,262,816) (12,342,917) 12,053,891 7,625,400
(1,512,261) (3,141,675) (47,056,030) 1,377,686 12,110,911 7,703,997
(358,594) (540,631) (3,404,766) (3,382,647) (1,422,741) (1,618,250)
(1,870,855) (3,682,306) (50,460,796) (2,004,961) 10,688,170 6,085,747
(547,654) (1,162,594) (10,678,110) (8,858,429) (1,022,980) (1,057,603)
(331) (951) (345) (4,009) (48,000) (63,361)
(2,418,840) (4,845,851) (61,139,251) (10,867,399) 9,617,190 4,964,783
(4,299) (10,924) (64,604) (23,207) 924 (4,952)
(2,423,139) (4,856,775) (61,203,855) (10,890,606) 9,618,114 4,959,831
(2,423,139) (4,856,775) (61,203,855) (10,890,606) 9,618,114 4,959,831

* GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund ceased trading on 31 March 2020.

There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the (decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares of
the Company. In arriving at the results for the financial year, all amounts above relate to continuing operations, with the exception of GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund and
GlobalAccess Inflation Linked Bond Fund which ceased trading during the financial year.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Income

Operating income

Net (losses) on financial assets and financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss 4
Total net (expense)

1(c), 3

Operating expenses 5
Net operating (loss)

Finance costs

Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 1(e), 12
Interest expense

(Loss) for the financial year before tax

Non-reclaimable withholding tax 1(q)
(Loss) for the financial year after tax

(Decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-

GlobalAccess Emerging Market

GlobalAccess Global High Yield

Japan) Fund Equity Fund Bond Fund
Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usb usb usb usb
2,842,900 3,137,304 18,023,956 20,533,940 1,626,823 1,521,304
(5,148,963) (17,532,605) (53,121,809) (81,109,994) (19,370,099) (26,253,751)
(2,306,063) (14,395,301) (35,097,853) (60,576,054) (17,743,276) (24,732,447)
(1,044,229) (1,262,107) (6,514,501) (8,143,929) (6,243,330) (8,924,950)
(3,350,292) (15,657,408) (41,612,354) (68,719,983) (23,986,606) (33,657,397)
(1,347,244) (1,183,839) (9,038,971) (8,908,180) (36,037,987) (50,088,377)
(3,393) (2,266) (35,326) (60,573) (40,591) (38,848)
(4,700,929) (16,843,513) (50,686,651) (77,688,736) (60,065,184) (83,784,622)
(387,036) (428,037) (2,052,363) (2,410,426) 28,075 (157,184)
(5,087,965) (17,271,550) (52,739,014) (80,099,162) (60,037,109) (83,941,806)
(5,087,965) (17,271,550) (52,739,014) (80,099,162) (60,037,109) (83,941,806)

There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the (decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares of
the Company. In arriving at the results for the financial year, all amounts above relate to continuing operations, with the exception of GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund and
GlobalAccess Inflation Linked Bond Fund which ceased trading during the financial year.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Income

Operating income

Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4
Total netincome/(expense)

1(c), 3

Operating expenses 5
Net operating profit/(loss)

Finance costs

Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 1(e), 12
Interest expense

Profit/ (loss) for the financial year before tax

Non-reclaimable withholding tax 1(q)
profit/(loss) for the financial year after tax

Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

GlobalAccess Global Corporate

GlobalAccess Global Inflation

GlobalAccess Emerging Market

Bond Fund Linked Bond Fund* Debt Fund
Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usbD usb usb usbD usbD usbD
74,357 92,669 18,103 20,119 657,894 530,941
23,149,024 7,383,241 1,301,388 392,507 (5,605,336) 2,226,309
23,223,381 7,475,910 1,319,491 412,626 (4,947,442) 2,757,250
(3,669,554) (3,934,042) (346,043) (717,251) (2,783,837) (3,017,872)
19,553,827 3,541,868 973,448 (304,625) (7,731,279) (260,622)
(12,315,236) (12,798,785) (460,815) (924,583) (12,898,204) (13,713,900)
(46,214) (60,159) (7,814) (22,727) (18,977) (25,712)
7,192,377 (9,317,076) 504,819 (1,251,935) (20,648,460) (14,000,234)
(952) (10,665) - - 235 (4,553)
7,191,425 (9,327,741) 504,819 (1,251,935) (20,648,225) (14,004,787)
7,191,425 (9,327,741) 504,819 (1,251,935) (20,648,225) (14,004,787)

* GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund ceased trading on 27 November 2019.

There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the (decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares of
the Company. In arriving at the results for the financial year, all amounts above relate to continuing operations, with the exception of GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund and
ClobalAccess Inflation Linked Bond Fund which ceased trading during the financial year.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Income

Operating income

Net (losses)/gains on financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4
Total net (expense)/income

1(c), 3

Operating expenses 5
Net operating (loss)/profit

Finance costs

Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 1(e), 12
Interest expense

(Loss)/profit for the financial year before tax

Non-reclaimable withholding tax 1(q)
(Loss)/profit for the financial year after tax

(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares

GlobalAccess Global Property
Securities Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Short
Duration Bond Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap
Equity Fund

Financial year

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usD usD usD usD
3,479,675 2,873,891 274,938 323,350 1,821,829 2,487,199
(47,610,299) 7,046,117 (1,807,393) (1,726,282) 1,187,093 (13,429,497)
(44,130,624) 9,920,008 (1,532,455) (1,402,932) 3,008,922 (10,942,298)
(1,173,820) (1,112,535) (1,968,160) (2,412,980) (1,552,783) (2,231,965)
(45,304,444) 8,807,473 (3,500,615) (3,815,912) 1,456,139 (13,174,263)
(2,124,634) (2,430,766) (6,864,479) (8,589,379) (192) -
(3,183) (4,179) (58,365) (64,947) (3,577) (13,293)
(47,432,261) 6,372,528 (10,423,459) (12,470,238) 1,452,370 (13,187,556)
(666,982) (524,467) (8,409) (1,705) (491,820) (640,697)
(48,099,243) 5,848,061 (10,431,868) (12,471,943) 960,550 (13,828,253)
(48,099,243) 5,848,061 (10,431,868) (12,471,943) 960,550 (13,828,253)

There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the (decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares of
the Company. In arriving at the results for the financial year, all amounts above relate to continuing operations, with the exception of GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund and
GlobalAccess Inflation Linked Bond Fund which ceased trading during the financial year.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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GlobalAccess US GlobalAccess Global Equity GlobalAccess Emerging Market

Equity Fund Income Fund Local Currency Debt Fund
Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usb usb usb usb
Income
Operating income 1(c), 3 4,692,098 6,342,843 5,105,178 9,279,964 1,023,421 1,040,295
Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4 34,537,712 (4,865,657) (445,385) (38,488,226) (30,133,732) (2,113,599)
Total netincome/(expense) 39,229,810 1,477,186 4,659,793 (29,208,262) (29,110,311) (1,073,304)
Operating expenses 5 (2,182,183) (2,847,613) (1,907,303) (2,896,191) (5,562,156) (3,906,849)
Net operating profit/(loss) 37,047,627 (1,370,427) 2,752,490 (32,104,453) (34,672,467) (4,980,153)
Finance costs
Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 1(e), 12 (1,435,557) (2,280,018) (4,684,723) (7,118,190) (26,139,109) (21,546,520)
Interest expense (11,113) (2,702) (8,101) (9,289) (32,026) (16,727)
Profit/(loss) for the financial year before tax 35,600,957 (3,653,147) (1,940,334) (39,231,932) (60,843,602) (26,543,400)
Non-reclaimable withholding tax 1(q) (1,243,980) (1,650,107) (853,022) (1,405,521) (1,852,199) (1,272,529)
Profit/ (loss) for the financial year after tax 34,356,977 (5,303,254) (2,793,356) (40,637,453) (62,695,801) (27,815,929)
Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares 34,356,977 (5,303,254) (2,793,356) (40,637,453) (62,695,801) (27,815,929)

There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the (decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares of
the Company. In arriving at the results for the financial year, all amounts above relate to continuing operations, with the exception of GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund and
GlobalAccess Inflation Linked Bond Fund which ceased trading during the financial year.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Income

Operating income

Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 4
Total netincome/(expense)

1(c), 3

Operating expenses 5
Net operating profit/(loss)

Finance costs

Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares 1(e), 12
Interest expense

Profit/ (loss) for the financial year before tax

Non-reclaimable withholding tax 1(q)
Profit/ (loss) for the financial year after tax

Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) GlobalAccess Japan Fund Aggregated total
Alpha Fund

Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP
3,232,836 7,552,488 614,441,833 687,426,765 51,557,060 63,927,146
4,564,997 (12,861,753) 927,247,282 (4,170,299,124) (122,661,458) (181,106,161)
7,797,833 (5,309,265) 1,541,689,115 (3,482,872,359) (71,104,398)  (117,179,015)
(1,884,731) (2,912,104) (249,182,336)  (300,540,425) (36,055,815)  (41,678,311)
5,913,102 (8,221,369) 1,292,506,779 (3,783,412,784) (107,160,213)  (158,857,326)
(2,658,941) (4,150,661) (275,797,874)  (235,082,722) (106,190,451)  (115,837,790)
(14,640) (24,820) (3,623,314) (4,834,754) (290,941) (356,381)
3,239,521 (12,396,850) 1,013,085,591 (4,023,330,260) (213,641,605)  (275,051,497)
(51,613) 460,195 (92,116,679)  (103,077,694) (6,752,716) (6,891,915)
3,187,908 (11,936,655) 920,968,912 (4,126,407,954) (220,394,321) (281,943,412)
3,187,908 (11,936,655) 920,968,912  (4,126,407,954) (220,394,321)  (281,943,412)

There are no recognised gains or losses arising in the financial year other than the (decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares of
the Company. In arriving at the results for the financial year, all amounts above relate to continuing operations, with the exception of GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund and
GlobalAccess Inflation Linked Bond Fund which ceased trading during the financial year.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Current assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Margin cash due from broker

Cash held as collateral

Other receivables

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Bank overdraft

Margin cash due to broker

Cash pledged as collateral

Other payables

Total current liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

* GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund ceased trading on 31 March 2020.

1(b), 2
1(f), 2,6
1(9), 2,6
1(h), 6
1), 2,7

1(b), 2
1(), 8
1(9), 2,8
1(h), 8
1(k), 2,9

11

GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund*

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities

GlobalAccess Global Government

Fund Bond Fund
Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
GBP GBP GBP GBP usb usb
- 26,722,875 339,302,052 395,726,650 156,467,709 232,670,208
93,339 1,166,662 13,422,003 17,796,987 3,671,445 9,091,216
- 96,569 1,001,411 1,953,496 235,971 154,965
- - - - 400,000 2,753,000
4,556 248,458 2,338,119 3,607,001 36,150,653 1,867,463
97,895 28,234,564 356,063,585 419,084,134 196,925,778 246,536,852
- (13,952) (8,688) (147,258) (1,931,355) (4,295,667)
(8,052) - - - - (16,087)
- - - - (132,593) (595,549)
- - - - (554,000) (2,753,000)
(89,843) (240,488) (1,899,654) (2,946,498) (52,811,845) (16,032,965)
(97,895) (254,440) (1,908,342) (3,093,756) (55,429,793) (23,693,268)
- 27,980,124 354,155,243 415,990,378 141,495,985 222,843,584

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Current assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Margin cash due from broker

Cash held as collateral

Other receivables

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Bank overdraft

Margin cash due to broker

Cash pledged as collateral

Other payables

Total current liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

1(b), 2
1(f), 2,6
1(9), 2,6
1(h), 6
1), 2,7

1(b), 2
1(), 8
1(9), 2,8
1(h), 8
1(k), 2,9

11

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-
Japan) Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Emerging Market
Equity Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Global High Yield
Bond Fund

Financial year

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usD usD usD usD
70,356,681 97,686,834 474,419,600 564,724,421 580,231,479 871,004,140
3,034,204 2,939,524 15,787,655 38,781,562 6,487,964 39,027,023
239,800 126,596 614,852 4,537,260 - -
1,124,076 1,079,842 2,710,079 3,262,252 4,987,501 2,708,046
74,754,761 101,832,796 493,532,186 611,305,495 591,706,944 912,739,209
(6,210) (252,555) (14,137) (2,345,313) (574,102) (21,025,910)
(859,230) (419,814) (3,580,120) (3,410,534) (6,833,017) (12,065,000)
(865,440) (672,369) (3,594,257) (5,755,847) (7,407,119) (33,090,910)
73,889,321 101,160,427 489,937,929 605,549,648 584,299,825 879,648,299

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Current assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Margin cash due from broker

Cash held as collateral

Other receivables

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Bank overdraft

Margin cash due to broker

Cash pledged as collateral

Other payables

Total current liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

11

GlobalAccess Global Corporate

GlobalAccess Global Inflation

GlobalAccess Emerging Market

Bond Fund Linked Bond Fund* Debt Fund
Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usbD usb usD usbD usbD usbD
482,749,083 537,816,935 - 84,524,857 255,582,702 318,564,037
3,322,616 23,304,827 36,391 2,957,335 10,653,798 12,856,573
1,746,735 601,867 - 164,129 734,906 3,891,704
390,000 651,000 - 186,000 110,000 -
9,356,967 5,723,888 - 7,574,502 3,075,335 2,455,753
497,565,401 568,098,517 36,391 95,406,823 270,156,741 337,768,067
(2,954,764) (12,302,612) - (1,263,663) (587,123) (8,109,705)
- - - - - (34)
(40,846) (131,356) - (2,776) (127,149) (1,939,023)
(280,000) (651,000) - (186,000) (50,000) -
(14,981,393) (29,720,294) (36,391) (45,414,553) (2,933,359) (3,949,324)
(18,257,003) (42,805,262) (36,391) (46,866,992) (3,697,631) (13,998,086)
479,308,398 525,293,255 - 48,539,831 266,459,110 323,769,981

* GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund ceased trading on 27 November 2019.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Current assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Margin cash due from broker

Cash held as collateral

Other receivables

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Bank overdraft

Margin cash due to broker

Cash pledged as collateral

Other payables

Total current liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

1(b), 2
1(f), 2,6
1(9), 2,6
1(h), 6
1(), 2,7

1(b), 2
1(), 8
1(9), 2,8
1(h), 8
1(k), 2,9

11

GlobalAccess Global Property
Securities Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Short
Duration Bond Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap
Equity Fund

Financial year

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usbD uUsD usbD usD usD usbD
177,600,844 78,011,653 179,561,529 277,594,308 90,965,571 131,620,243
6,109,531 3,249,037 9,113,400 11,178,664 3,244,997 5,057,976

- - 1,969,041 1,942,559 316,944 70,277

- - 230,000 540,000 - -

1,014,388 443,973 1,951,502 5,409,474 207,985 619,596
184,724,763 81,704,663 192,825,472 296,665,005 94,735,497 137,368,092
(1,158) (117,291) (983,341) (4,251,506) (10,297) (550,960)

- - (37,308) - - -

- - (2,072,986) (1,667,753) - -

- - (260,000) (540,000) - -
(2,250,678) (1,718,005) (3,999,494) (9,056,221) (604,127) (1,112,332)
(2,251,836) (1,835,296) (7,353,129) (15,515,480) (614,424) (1,663,292)
182,472,927 79,869,367 185,472,343 281,149,525 94,121,073 135,704,800

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Current assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Margin cash due from broker

Cash held as collateral

Other receivables

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Bank overdraft

Margin cash due to broker

Cash pledged as collateral

Other payables

Total current liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

11

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Equity
Income Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Emerging Market
Local Currency Debt Fund

Financial year

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usD usD usD usD
241,825,681 280,527,030 113,253,584 182,826,011 601,887,101 407,701,538
10,660,674 19,353,732 3,699,695 8,651,076 26,242,081 25,730,981
787,837 631,415 138,380 483,491 20,529 -

- - - - 1,620,000 570,000

1,929,955 1,936,502 344,645 1,758,304 115,299,617 1,167,806
255,204,147 302,448,679 117,436,304 193,718,882 745,069,328 435,170,325
(20,721) (440,398) (29,527) (1,662,057) (18,527,546) (2,868,505)

- - (97,052) - - -

- - - - (1,156,000) (570,000)

(922,185) (3,681,503) (890,216) (1,825,435) (129,956,544) (6,061,819)
(942,906) (4,121,901) (1,016,795) (3,487,492) (149,640,090) (9,500,324)
254,261,241 298,326,778 116,419,509 190,231,390 595,429,238 425,670,001

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Current assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Cash and cash equivalents

Margin cash due from broker

Cash held as collateral

Other receivables

Total current assets

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Bank overdraft

Margin cash due to broker

Cash pledged as collateral

Other payables

Total current liabilities (excluding net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares

(b), 2
H,2,6
(9).2,6
1(h), 6
1(),2, 7

—_ e

1(b), 2
1(f), 8
1(9). 2,8
1(h), 8
1(k), 2,9

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) GlobalAccess Japan Fund Aggregated total
Alpha Fund

Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP
118,717,575 177,067,158 22,808,368,203  24,834,298,533 3,387,643,439  3,985,851,027
1,580,851 1,572,550 779,048,706 918,696,984 103,343,091 187,476,070
929 11,821 101,070,083 69,661,736 7,265,395 12,569,758
- - - - 2,224,379 3,728,971
381,984 154,098 430,457,578 349,183,457 150,019,687 35,111,514
120,681,339 178,805,627 24,118,944,570  26,171,840,710 3,650,495,991 4,224,737,340
(156,586) (145,069) (2,886,391) (38,949,573) (20,910,772) (47,770,274)
- - - - (116,732) (12,790)
- - - - (1,919,901) (3,440,536)
- - - - (1,860,390) (3,728,971)
(993,840) (1,166,468) (123,096,527) (177,407,273) (182,290,912)  (112,201,151)
(1,150,426) (1,311,537) (125,982,918)  (216,356,846) (207,098,707)  (167,153,722)
119,530,913 177,494,090 23,992,961,652  25,955,483,864 3,443,397,284  4,057,583,618

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the ﬂnaTmI statements.
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Dated: 24 September 2020
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Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities GlobalAccess Global Government

GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund*

Fund Bond Fund
Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
GBP GBP GBP GBP usD usD
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the financial
year 27,980,124 52,120,189 415,990,378 404,718,559 222,843,584 271,444,804
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares (2,423,139) (4,856,775) (61,203,855) (10,890,606) 9,618,114 4,959,831
Share transactions
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares 5,874 52,766 70,592,903 96,866,470 8,786,556 112,751,108
Payments on redemptions of redeemable participating
shares (25,562,859) (19,336,056) (71,224,183) (74,704,045) (99,752,269)  (166,312,159)
Net changes in net assets resulting from share
transactions (25,556,985) (19,283,290) (631,280) 22,162,425 (90,965,713) (53,561,051)
Net (decrease)/increase in shareholders' funds (27,980,124) (24,140,065) (61,835,135) 11,271,819 (81,347,599) (48,601,220)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year 11 - 27,980,124 354,155,243 415,990,378 141,495,985 222,843,584

* GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund ceased trading on 31 March 2020.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares (continued)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the financial
year

(Decrease) in net assets attributable to holders of
redeemable participating shares

Share transactions

Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares
Payments on redemptions of redeemable participating
shares

Net changes in net assets resulting from share
transactions

Net (decrease) in shareholders' funds

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year

11

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-

GlobalAccess Emerging Market

GlobalAccess Global High Yield

Japan) Fund Equity Fund Bond Fund
Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usbD usbD usb usb usbD usb
101,160,427 134,200,133 605,549,648 839,526,003 879,648,299  1,264,628,286
(5,087,965) (17,271,550) (52,739,014) (80,099,162) (60,037,109) (83,941,806)
3,090,241 43,655,556 59,127,854 135,481,678 86,071,117 257,397,881
(25,273,382) (59,423,712) (122,000,559)  (289,358,871) (321,382,482)  (558,436,062)
(22,183,141) (15,768,156) (62,872,705)  (153,877,193) (235,311,365)  (301,038,181)
(27,271,106) (33,039,706) (115,611,719)  (233,976,355) (295,348,474)  (384,979,987)
73,889,321 101,160,427 489,937,929 605,549,648 584,299,825 879,648,299

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares (continued)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the financial
year

Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares

Share transactions

Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares
Payments on redemptions of redeemable participating
shares

Net changes in net assets resulting from share

transactions

Net (decrease) in shareholders' funds

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year

11

GlobalAccess Global Corporate

GlobalAccess Global Inflation

GlobalAccess Emerging Market

Bond Fund Linked Bond Fund* Debt Fund
Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usbD usbD usb usb usbD usb
525,293,255 599,960,939 48,539,831 88,125,159 323,769,981 400,315,643
7,191,425 (9,327,741) 504,819 (1,251,935) (20,648,225) (14,004,787)
51,659,908 156,799,802 507,899 6,242,044 35,279,399 75,760,505
(104,836,190)  (222,139,745) (49,552,549) (44,575,437) (71,942,045)  (138,301,380)
(53,176,282) (65,339,943) (49,044,650) (38,333,393) (36,662,646) (62,540,875)
(45,984,857) (74,667,684) (48,539,831) (39,585,328) (57,310,871) (76,545,662)
479,308,398 525,293,255 - 48,539,831 266,459,110 323,769,981

* GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund ceased trading on 27 November 2019.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Property GlobalAccess Global Short GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap

Securities Fund Duration Bond Fund Equity Fund
Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usbD usbD usb usb usbD usb
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the financial
year 79,869,367 117,318,689 281,149,525 396,122,142 135,704,800 234,983,820
(Decrease)/increase in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares (48,099,243) 5,848,061 (10,431,868) (12,471,943) 960,550 (13,828,253)
Share transactions
Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares 179,421,359 11,396,839 65,769,089 223,237,747 5,049,184 86,157,865
Payments on redemptions of redeemable participating
shares (28,718,556) (54,694,222) (151,014,403)  (325,738,421) (47,593,461)  (171,608,632)
Net changes in net assets resulting from share
transactions 150,702,803 (43,297,383) (85,245,314)  (102,500,674) (42,544,277) (85,450,767)
Net increase/(decrease) in shareholders' funds 102,603,560 (37,449,322) (95,677,182) (114,972,617) (41,583,727) (99,279,020)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year 11 182,472,927 79,869,367 185,472,343 281,149,525 94,121,073 135,704,800

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

63



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited

Financial Statements 2020

Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares (continued)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the financial
year

Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares

Share transactions

Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares
Payments on redemptions of redeemable participating
shares

Net changes in net assets resulting from share
transactions

Net (decrease)/increase in shareholders' funds

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year

11

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund

GlobalAccess Global Equity

GlobalAccess Emerging Market

Income Fund Local Currency Debt Fund
Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usbD usbD usb usb usbD usb
298,326,778 316,324,506 190,231,390 299,163,903 425,670,001 456,853,158
34,356,977 (5,303,254) (2,793,356) (40,637,453) (62,695,801) (27,815,929)
6,463,276 264,148,593 2,751,003 177,221,220 408,399,227 92,070,872
(84,885,790)  (276,843,067) (73,769,528)  (245,516,280) (175,944,189) (95,438,100)
(78,422,514) (12,694,474) (71,018,525) (68,295,060) 232,455,038 (3,367,228)
(44,065,537) (17,997,728) (73,811,881)  (108,932,513) 169,759,237 (31,183,157)
254,261,241 298,326,778 116,419,509 190,231,390 595,429,238 425,670,001

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of changes in net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares (continued)

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the beginning of the financial
year

Notion foreign exchange adjustment

Increase/(decrease) in net assets attributable to holders
of redeemable participating shares

Share transactions

Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares
Payments on redemptions of redeemable participating
shares

Net changes in net assets resulting from share
transactions

Net (decrease) in shareholders' funds

Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares at the end of the financial year

11

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) GlobalAccess Japan Fund Aggregated total
Alpha Fund

Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP
177,494,090 306,257,281 25,955,483,864 33,089,029,269 4,057,583,618  5,026,802,416
59,099,901 207,733,824
3,187,908 (11,936,655) 920,968,912 (4,126,407,954) (220,394,321) (281,943,412)
1,142,499 74,121,055 3,608,229,565 8,031,571,741 820,896,909 1,481,620,791
(62,293,584)  (190,947,591)  (6,491,720,689) (11,038,709,192)  (1,273,788,823) (2,376,630,001)
(61,151,085)  (116,826,536) (2,883,491,124) (3,007,137,451) (452,891,914)  (895,009,210)

(57,963,177)

(128,763,191)

(1,962,522,212)

(7,133,545,405)

(673,286,235)

(1,176,952,622)

119,530,913

177,494,090

23,992,961,652

25,955,483,864

3,443,397,284

4,057,583,618

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows

GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund* GlobalAccess UK Opportunities GlobalAccess Global Government

Fund Bond Fund
Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
GBP GBP GBP GBP usbD usbD
Cash flows from operating profits
Proceeds from sale of financial assets 32,376,146 30,010,419 72,937,935 78,590,189 962,026,318 954,020,354
Purchases of financial assets (7,805,786) (12,196,188) (76,232,135)  (105,967,854) (876,095,585)  (896,781,290)
Interest received 176 1,948 2,269 1,589 2,948,714 76,148
Net dividends received 755,996 1,805,023 13,368,728 13,230,360 - -
Other income/ (expense) 5,036 80 13,444 (13,689) 416,997 (14,610)
Margin cash due from/(to) broker 96,569 41,246 952,085 (804,754) (543,962) (147,571)
Operating expenses paid (419,887) (585,782) (3,619,642) (3,328,928) (1,521,383) (1,154,056)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 25,008,250 19,076,746 7,422,684 (18,293,087) 87,231,099 55,998,975
Cash flows from financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares (547,654) (1,162,594) (10,678,110) (8,858,429) (1,022,980) (1,057,603)
Interest paid (297) (957) (348) (3,999) (47,626) (63,697)
Share transactions
Amounts received from issue of redeemable participating
shares 5,923 52,767 70,724,410 96,822,968 8,359,890 112,914,014
Amounts paid on redemption of redeemable participating
shares (25,562,859) (19,524,500) (72,171,141) (73,779,172) (99,903,612)  (166,269,034)
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities (26,104,887) (20,635,284) (12,125,189) 14,181,368 (92,614,328) (54,476,320)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (1,096,637) (1,558,538) (4,702,505) (4,111,719) (5,383,229) 1,522,655
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 1,166,662 2,755,068 17,796,987 21,559,903 9,075,129 9,544,537
Exchange on cash and cash equivalents 15,262 (29,868) 327,521 348,803 (174,455) (1,992,063)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 85,287 1,166,662 13,422,003 17,796,987 3,517,445 9,075,129

* GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund ceased trading on 31 March 2020.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

Cash flows from operating profits

Proceeds from sale of financial assets

Purchases of financial assets

Interest received

Net dividends received

Other income/ (expense)

Margin cash due from/(to) broker

Operating expenses paid

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares
Interest paid

Share transactions

Amounts received from issue of redeemable participating
shares

Amounts paid on redemption of redeemable participating
shares

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year

Exchange on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-

GlobalAccess Emerging Market

GlobalAccess Global High Yield

Japan) Fund Equity Fund Bond Fund
Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usb usb usb usb usD usD
49,548,842 45,897,540 211,485,588 383,654,147 999,571,230  1,002,299,302
(26,788,011) (31,367,367) (170,524,025)  (240,331,796) (760,861,334)  (691,990,442)
8,395 17,412 301,974 325,739 82,549 144,153
2,603,614 2,756,459 16,430,863 18,032,546 1,689,314 1,376,374
6,605 82 8,008 (2,907) 5,245,318 5,453,372
(113,204) 348,375 3,922,408 1,752,965 - -
(1,160,315) (1,340,803) (7,078,654) (8,799,582) (7,101,238) (9,783,944)
24,105,926 16,311,698 54,546,162 154,631,112 238,625,839 307,498,815
(1,347,244) (1,183,839) (9,038,971) (8,908,180) (36,037,987) (50,088,377)
(3,448) (2,200) (35,978) (60,947) (40,782) (38,722)
3,078,517 43,412,969 59,362,817 137,677,578 86,113,995 259,025,758
(25,133,599) (60,116,140) (122,189,497)  (290,538,739) (325,534,115)  (555,986,937)
(23,405,774) (17,889,210) (71,901,629)  (161,830,288) (275,498,889)  (347,088,278)
700,152 (1,577,512) (17,355,467) (7,199,176) (36,873,050) (39,589,463)
2,939,524 7,741,735 38,781,562 63,342,924 39,027,023 52,199,054
(605,472) (3,224,699) (5,638,440) (17,362,186) 4,333,991 26,417,432
3,034,204 2,939,524 15,787,655 38,781,562 6,487,964 39,027,023

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

Cash flows from operating profits

Proceeds from sale of financial assets

Purchases of financial assets

Interest received

Net dividends received

Other income/ (expense)

Margin cash due from/(to) broker

Operating expenses paid

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares
Interest paid

Share transactions

Amounts received from issue of redeemable participating
shares

Amounts paid on redemption of redeemable participating
shares

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year
Exchange on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

GlobalAccess Global Corporate

GlobalAccess Global Inflation

GlobalAccess Emerging Market

Bond Fund Linked Bond Fund* Debt Fund
Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usbD usb usD usbD usbD usbD
2,186,402,174  2,706,183,558 1,129,217,713  2,095,215,592 408,661,930 336,756,235
(2,136,159,723)  (2,627,963,763) (1,081,933,232) (2,054,011,885) (362,757,224)  (274,286,058)
72,689 5,317,319 10,725 19,548 58,510 105,733
2,289 - - - 722,299 295,527
891,689 (4,374,747) 92,130 26,632 1,158,099 1,169,326
(1,235,378) (63,452) 161,353 379,635 1,344,924 (1,072,371)
(3,914,112) (3,323,753) (641,436) (325,906) (2,942,878) (3,206,152)
46,059,628 75,775,162 46,907,253 41,303,616 46,245,660 59,762,240
(12,315,236) (12,798,785) (460,815) (924,583) (12,898,204) (13,713,900)
(46,136) (59,880) (7,852) (22,767) (18,973) (25,712)
50,166,333 158,223,979 507,899 6,502,690 35,491,559 76,075,140
(107,270,297)  (220,670,304) (49,890,155) (44,404,767) (72,854,739)  (137,721,904)
(69,465,336) (75,304,990) (49,850,923) (38,849,427) (50,280,357) (75,386,376)
(23,405,708) 470,172 (2,943,670) 2,454,189 (4,034,697) (15,624,136)
23,304,827 13,917,427 2,957,335 884,391 12,856,539 20,199,882
3,533,497 8,917,228 22,726 (381,245) 1,891,956 8,280,793
3,432,616 23,304,827 36,391 2,957,335 10,713,798 12,856,539

* ClobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund ceased trading on 27 November 2019.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Statement of cash flows (continued)

Cash flows from operating profits

Proceeds from sale of financial assets

Purchases of financial assets

Interest received

Net dividends received

Other income/ (expense)

Margin cash due from/(to) broker

Operating expenses paid

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares
Interest paid

Share transactions

Amounts received from issue of redeemable participating
shares

Amounts paid on redemption of redeemable participating
shares

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year

Exchange on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

GlobalAccess Global Property
Securities Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Short
Duration Bond Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap
Equity Fund

Financial year

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usD usD usD usD
70,598,074 90,383,441 830,321,257 634,070,136 111,390,129 344,622,250
(216,727,715) (44,573,120) (751,378,354) (570,018,620) (68,624,689) (257,926,838)
6,313 7,019 9,053,929 12,648,016 18,134 28,404
2,717,333 2,394,404 191,962 162,580 1,351,706 1,880,547
6,447 82 1,117,068 861,156 7,503 -

- - 378,751 1,302,402 (246,667) 340,199

(1,051,203) (1,203,965) (2,144,127) (2,583,909) (1,762,896) (2,477,660)
(144,450,751) 47,007,861 87,540,486 76,441,761 42,133,220 86,466,902
(2,124,634) (2,430,766) (6,864,479) (8,589,379) (192) -
(3,153) (4,177) (58,300) (74,676) (3,568) (13,285)
179,223,311 11,396,839 65,115,727 226,132,604 5,087,208 86,347,181
(29,543,687) (53,728,081) (151,262,229) (326,993,233) (47,804,815) (171,975,822)
147,551,837 (44,766,185) (93,069,281) (109,524,684) (42,721,367) (85,641,926)
3,101,086 2,241,676 (5,528,795) (33,082,923) (588,147) 824,976
3,249,037 2,181,957 11,178,664 38,452,068 5,057,976 11,990,078
(240,592) (1,174,596) 3,396,223 5,809,519 (1,224,832) (7,757,078)
6,109,531 3,249,037 9,046,092 11,178,664 3,244,997 5,057,976

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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GlobalAccess US Equity Fund GlobalAccess Global Equity

Income Fund

GlobalAccess Emerging Market
Local Currency Debt Fund

Financial year

Financial year

Financial year

Financial year

Financial year

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usb usb usD usbD usbD usbD
Cash flows from operating profits
Proceeds from sale of financial assets 367,653,817 1,047,717,884 183,567,206 495,073,448 525,239,352 658,103,429
Purchases of financial assets (297,489,113)  (1,020,219,520) (115,623,772)  (431,410,898) (845,124,322)  (632,629,079)
Interest received 66,854 69,649 28,268 50,355 94,174 117,147
Net dividends received 3,546,738 5,157,058 4,435,018 8,255,888 940,356 913,777
Other income/ (expense) 7,504 (22,868) 5,664 82 (5,274,532) 1,229,944
Margin cash due from/(to) broker (156,422) (17,634) 345,111 (85,948) (20,529) -
Operating expenses paid (2,425,174) (3,138,724) (2,139,863) (3,314,714) (3,790,537) (4,211,460)
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 71,204,204 29,545,845 70,617,632 68,568,213 (327,936,038) 23,523,758
Cash flows from financing activities
Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares (1,435,557) (2,280,018) (4,684,723) (7,118,190) (26,139,109) (21,546,520)
Interest paid (11,104) (2,690) (8,117) (9,365) (36,194) (12,445)
Share transactions
Amounts received from issue of redeemable participating
shares 6,457,490 264,152,999 2,749,788 177,221,220 407,336,172 92,696,475
Amounts paid on redemption of redeemable participating
shares (85,335,857)  (283,210,853) (73,950,126)  (245,561,045) (56,337,883) (94,606,876)
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities (80,325,028) (21,340,562) (75,893,178) (75,467,380) 324,822,986 (23,469,366)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (9,120,824) 8,205,283 (5,275,546) (6,899,167) (3,113,052) 54,392
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 19,353,732 7,950,092 8,651,076 14,494,430 25,730,981 25,605,670
Exchange on cash and cash equivalents 427,766 3,198,357 227,113 1,055,813 4,088,152 70,919
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 10,660,674 19,353,732 3,602,643 8,651,076 26,706,081 25,730,981

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Cash flows from operating profits

Proceeds from sale of financial assets

Purchases of financial assets

Interest received

Net dividends received

Other income/ (expense)

Margin cash due from/(to) broker

Operating expenses paid

Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities

Cash flows from financing activities

Distributions paid to holders of redeemable participating shares
Interest paid

Share transactions

Amounts received from issue of redeemable participating
shares

Amounts paid on redemption of redeemable participating
shares

Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year

Exchange on cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) GlobalAccess Japan Fund Aggregated total
Alpha Fund
Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year Financial year  Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP
169,863,837 299,257,680 9,856,496,054 6,704,714,053 6,692,990,684 8,725,124,448
(107,538,888)  (190,564,510) (6,922,823,885) (4,462,796,294) (6,337,655,195) (7,838,156,022)
1,481 3,124 273,968 232,288 10,108,547 14,573,167
3,229,591 8,352,892 567,769,293 573,830,955 48,550,450 58,085,045
6,743 - 255,207 (278,084) 2,948,655 3,313,252
10,892 (11,821) (31,408,347) 97,416,148 3,867,776 2,006,172
(2,125,277) (3,173,865) (272,636,963)  (310,661,849) (37,746,998) (43,384,754)
63,448,379 113,863,500 3,197,925,327 2,602,457,217 383,063,919 921,561,308
(2,658,941) (4,150,661) (275,797,874)  (235,082,722) (106,190,451)  (115,837,790)
(15,325) (26,236) (3,599,950) (4,666,455) (294,944) (360,907)
1,142,268 74,419,529 3,506,402,999  8,131,952,010 817,647,912  1,489,812,997
(62,333,733)  (191,512,268)  (6,534,735,632) (11,077,995,778)  (1,188,206,443) (2,379,277,248)
(63,865,731)  (121,269,636) (3,307,730,457) (3,185,792,945) (477,043,926) (1,005,662,948)
(417,352) (7,406,136) (109,805,130)  (583,335,728) (93,980,007) (84,101,640)
1,572,550 6,704,483 918,696,984 1,523,993,994 187,463,280 242,522,358
425,653 2,274,203 (29,843,148) (21,961,282) 10,107,075 29,042,562
1,580,851 1,572,550 779,048,706 918,696,984 103,590,348 187,463,280

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.
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Company information

Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC ("the Company") is an open-ended investment company, with variable capital and
with segregated liability between its Funds, organised under the laws of Ireland. The Company was incorporated in
Ireland on 27 September 2004. The Company is structured as an umbrella Fund in that different Funds thereof may be
established with the prior approval of the Central Bank of Ireland. The Company has been authorised by the Central Bank
of Ireland as an Undertaking for Collective Investment in Transferable Securities ("UCITS"). Please refer to the Section on
"Background to the Company" on pages 6 to 14 for additional details.

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 September 2020.

1. Significant accounting policies

a) Basis of preparation

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
interpretations adopted by the European Union ("EU") ("IFRS") and with those parts of the Companies Act 2014 (as
amended) applicable to companies reporting under IFRS and the European Communities (Undertakings for Collective
Investment in Transferable Securities) Regulations 2011 (as amended)(“the UCITS Regulations”) and the Central Bank
(Supervision and Enforcement) Act 2013 (Section 48(1)) (Undertakings for Collective Investment in Transferable
Securities) Regulations 2019 (the "Central Bank UCITS Regulations"). The financial statements are prepared under the
historical cost convention as modified by the revaluation of financial assets and financial liabilities held at fair value
through profit or loss.

The format and certain wordings of the financial statements have been adapted from those contained in IFRS and the
Companies Act 2014 (as amended) so that, in the opinion of the Directors, they more appropriately reflect the nature of
the Company’s business as an investment fund.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis as the Directors are of the view that the Company
can continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Please refer to note 2(d) for the liquidity profile and risks
of the Company.

The Company consists of 15 live Funds, comprising of GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund, GlobalAccess Global
Government Bond Fund, GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund, GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund,
GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund, GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund, GlobalAccess Emerging Market
Debt Fund, GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund, GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund, GlobalAccess
US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund, GlobalAccess US Equity Fund, GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund, GlobalAccess
Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund, GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund and GlobalAccess Japan Fund,
which were trading as at 31 May 2020. GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund ceased trading on 27 November
2019. GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund ceased trading on 31 March 2020.

The significant accounting policies are set out below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on
management's best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results ultimately may differ from those
estimates.

Standards and amendments to existing standards effective 1 June 2019

IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments (“IFRIC 23”) relates to the possible uncertainty in the recognition and
measurement of taxes. IFRIC 23 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019, with early
application permitted. The adoption of IFRIC 23 has not had an impact on the financial statements of the Company.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

b) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

(i) Classification

Assets

The Fund classifies its investments based on both the Fund’s business model for managing those financial assets and the
contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The portfolio of financial assets is managed and performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis. The Fund is primarily focused on fair value information and uses that information to
assess the assets’ performance and to make decisions. The Fund has not taken the option to irrevocably designate any
equity securities as fair value through other comprehensive income. The contractual cash flows of the Fund’s debt
securities are solely principal and interest, however, these securities are neither held for the purpose of collecting
contractual cash flows nor held both for collecting contractual cash flows and for sale. The collection of contractual cash
flows is only incidental to achieving the Fund’s business model’s objective. Consequently, all investments are measured
at fair value through profit or loss.

Liabilities

In accordance with the Central Bank requirements, the Fund may, though the use of futures or forwards, achieve
synthetic net short positions. Short positions are held for trading and are consequently classified as financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss. Derivative contracts that have a negative fair value are presented as liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss.

As such, the Fund classifies all of its investment portfolio as financial assets or liabilities as fair value through profit or
loss. The Fund’s policy requires the Investment Manager and the Board of Directors to evaluate the information about
these financial assets and liabilities on a fair value basis together with other related financial information.

Derivatives
Derivatives are categorised as FVTPL, as the Funds do not designate any derivatives as hedges for hedge accounting
purposes as described under IFRS 9.

(ii) Recognition, derecognition and measurement

Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date — the date on which the Fund commits to
purchase or sell the investment. Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are initially
recognised at fair value. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred in the statement of comprehensive income.

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or the Fund
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

When the Fund purchases an option, an amount equal to fair value which is based on the premium paid is recorded as
an asset. When the Fund writes an option, an amount equal to fair value which is based on the premium received by the
Fund is recorded as a liability. When options are closed, the difference between the premium and the amount paid or
received, net of brokerage commissions, or the full amount of the premium if the option expires worthless, is recognized
as a gain or loss and is presented in the statement of comprehensive income within net (losses)/gains on financial assets
and financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financial assets or financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss’ category are presented in the statement of comprehensive income within net
(losses)/gains on financial assets and financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income within dividend income when the Fund’s right to receive payments is established. Interest on
debt securities at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income within interest
income based on the effective interest rate. Dividend expense is included within net (losses)/gains on financial assets
and financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

b) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

(iii) Fair value estimation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active
markets (such as publicly traded derivatives and trading securities) are based on quoted market prices at the close of
trading on the reporting date. The Fund utilises the last traded market price for both financial assets and financial
liabilities where the last traded price falls within the bid-ask spread. In circumstances where the last traded price is not
within the bid-ask spread, the Directors will determine the point within the bid-ask spread that is most representative of
fair value.

If a significant movement in fair value occurs subsequent to the close of trading up to midnight in Dublin on the year-end
date, valuation techniques will be applied to determine the fair value.

A significant event is any event that occurs after the last market price for a security, close of market or close of the
foreign exchange, but before the Fund’s valuation time that materially affects the integrity of the closing prices for any
security, instrument, currency or securities affected by that event so that they cannot be considered ‘readily available’
market quotations.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter
derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques. The Fund uses a variety of methods and makes assumptions that
are based on market conditions existing at each reporting date. Valuation techniques engaged by the Fund include the
use of comparable recent ordinary transactions between market participants, reference to other instruments that are
substantially the same, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly
used by market participants making the maximum use of market inputs and relying as little as possible on entity-specific
inputs.

(iv) Fair value measurement principles
The Funds may from time to time invest in financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example in
over-the-counter derivatives such as forward contracts). The fair value is determined by using valuation techniques.

For open futures contracts, changes in the value of the contract are recognised as unrealised fair value gains or losses in
the statement of comprehensive income by "marking to market" the contract at the year-end date using quoted daily
settlement prices established by the exchange on which they trade. The unrealised gain on open futures contracts is
shown in the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss in the statement of financial position. The unrealised loss
on open futures contracts is shown in the financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the statement of
financial position. When the contract is closed, the difference between the proceeds from (or cost of) the closing
transactions and the original transaction is recorded as a realised gain or loss. Realised gains or losses are included in the
statement of comprehensive income.

For open forward contracts, the unrealised gain or loss is calculated by reference to the difference between the contract
rate and the rate to close out the contract as at the year-end date. Realised gains or losses, which are recognised on the
maturity of a contract, include net gains on contracts which have been settled or offset by other contracts. Realised gains
or losses and changes in unrealised gains or losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income. Unrealised
gains and losses are included in the statement of financial position. Foreign currency contracts that are held for up to five
business days are treated as spot forward currency contracts and are presented gross within other receivables and other
payables in the statement of financial position. Forward foreign currency contracts are positions held for greater than
five business days, these are disclosed on the statement of financial position under financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.

The fair value of any Investment which is a unit of or participation in an open-ended investment fund/mutual fund shall

be the latest available net asset value of such unit/participation or where such Investment is quoted, listed or dealt in on
a Regulated Market, it shall be the closing mid-market price on such Regulated Market as at the valuation point.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

b) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
(v) Specific Instruments

To be announced ("TBA") contracts

These are forward contracts on mortgage backed securities.

TBA purchase commitments

Certain Funds may enter into TBA purchase commitments to purchase securities for a fixed unit price at a future date
beyond customary settlement time. Although the unit price has been established, the principal value has not been
finalised. The Fund holds and maintains until settlement date, cash or high grade debt obligations in an amount
sufficient to meet the purchase price, or the Funds may enter into offsetting contracts for the forward sale of other
securities that they own. Income on the securities will not be earned until settlement date.

Unsettled TBA purchase commitments are valued at the current fair value of the underlying securities according to the
procedures described previously in the accounting policies. The contract is marked-to-market daily and the change in
the fair value is recorded by the Fund as an unrealised gain or loss. Although the Funds may enter into TBA purchase
commitments with the intention of acquiring for their portfolios or for delivery pursuant to options contracts they have
entered into, the Funds may dispose of a commitment prior to settlement if the Sub-Investment Manager considers it
appropriate to do so.

TBA sale commitments

Certain Funds may enter into TBA sale commitments to hedge their portfolio positions or to sell mortgage backed
securities they own under delayed delivery arrangements. Proceeds of TBA sales commitments are not received until the
contractual settlement date.

During the time a TBA sale commitment is outstanding, equivalent deliverable securities or an offsetting TBA purchase
commitment deliverable on or before the sale commitment date, are held as “cover” for the transaction. Unsettled TBA
sale commitments are valued at the current fair value of the underlying securities, generally according to the procedures
described previously in the accounting policies. The contract is marked-to-market daily and the change in the fair value
is recorded by the Fund as an unrealised gain or loss. If the TBA sale commitment is closed through the acquisition of an
offsetting purchase commitment, the Funds realise a gain or loss from the sale of the securities based on the unit price
established at the date the commitment was entered into.

Participatory notes ("P-Notes")

P-Notes are financial instruments usually issued by a broker such as an investment bank which provides an investor with
an indirect exposure to an organisation's financial instrument that they would otherwise not have been able to invest in
directly. The value of a P-Note is generally based on the value of the underlying security to which it is linked. Certain
Funds may invest in P-Notes which may be listed or unlisted and will be used to gain exposure to certain countries.
These investments are measured at fair value based on the closing mid-market price as at the Valuation Point on the
year end date or the last traded price when no closing mid-market price is available for the underlying security with any
changes in their values recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

Repurchase agreements

In a Repurchase agreement, the Funds sell a financial instrument to a counterparty with an agreement to buy the same
financial instrument back from the buyer at an agreed upon price and date. Securities sold under agreements to
repurchase are treated as collateralised borrowing transactions.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

b) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

(v) Specific instruments (continued)

Repurchase agreements (continued)

The securities continue to be carried at fair value and the loans are carried at the amount at which the securities were
sold under the agreement. The proceeds of the sale are reported as liabilities in the statement of financial position and
are carried at amortised cost. Interest expenses recognised under these agreements and interest income on collateral
securities are included in net gains/ losses on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in
the statement of comprehensive income.

Collateral on repurchase agreements is marked to market daily and additional collateral is acquired by the Funds as
needed to ensure that the value includes accrued interest equal to or exceeding the repurchase price.

In the event of default, the Funds have a contractual right to liquidate the collateral and apply the proceeds in satisfying
the obligation. If the counterparty defaults or enters into insolvency proceedings, realisation of the collateral by the
Funds may be delayed or limited.

Reverse repurchase agreements

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (reverse repurchase agreements) are reported not as purchases of the
securities, but as receivables and are carried in the statement of financial position designated at fair value. Interest
earned on reverse repurchase agreements is recognized as interest income, over the life of each agreement and is
included in net gains/losses on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss in the statement
of comprehensive income.

The Funds are also permitted to sell a financial instrument that has been received as collateral for a reverse repurchase
agreement, whether through the physical sale of the asset or as part of an onward repurchase agreement.

Warrants
The Funds may invest in warrants. Warrants which are fully paid up and have a zero strike price exhibit the identical risk

and return characteristics as in the case where the Fund had acquired the underlying equity directly. Such warrants are
valued at the Official Close/Last Trade price for the underlying equity quoted on the stock exchange or principal market
on which it is listed or, if the Official Close/Last Trade price is unavailable or unrepresentative, the last available mid-price
on such stock exchange or market. Warrants detailed in the Schedules of Investments at 31 May 2020 are fully paid and
have a zero strike price.

(vi) Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy
Transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy are deemed to have occurred at the beginning of the reporting
period.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

b) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

(vii)Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Financial instruments at fair value are either priced with reference to a quoted market price for that instrument or by
using a valuation model or recognised broker. Where the fair value is calculated using a valuation model, the
methodology is to calculate the expected cash flows under the terms of each specific contract and then discount these
values back to a present value. The expected cash flows for each contract are determined either directly by reference to
actual cash flows implicit in observable market prices or through modelling cash flows using appropriate financial
markets pricing models. Wherever possible these models use as their basis observable market prices and rates including,
for example, interest rate yield curves, equities and commodities prices, option volatilities and currency rates.

The process of calculating fair value on liquid instruments or from a valuation model may require estimation of certain
pricing parameters, assumptions or model characteristics. These estimates are calibrated against industry standards,
economic models and observed transaction prices. Changes to assumptions or estimated levels can potentially impact
the fair value of an instrument as reported.

Securities valued using stale prices are noted as such in the Funds' schedule of investments on pages 176 to 467.

Single broker price:

Management make estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are outlined below.

Barclays Investments Solutions Limited, acting through its Wealth Management division (the “investment manager”) and
Northern Trust International Fund Administration Services (lreland) Limited (the “Administrator”) have an agreed
documented pricing policy in place which sets out the policies, sources and approach to the pricing methodologies.

For certain assets, the lead broker, normally the counterparty the relevant Fund has transacted with, has supplied
indicative quotes as at the year-end date. Based on in-depth knowledge of the markets, the investment manager believes
that, for certain assets, using prices from a single broker source provides a more accurate price than that available from
third-party pricing providers.

Where unquoted or thinly traded securities are included in the portfolio of investments, the price will not be available
from a vendor. In these circumstances, the investment manager management nominates a reputable pricing source to
provide the primary price, possibly a market maker, broker or other competent party, who is independent of the
investment manager.

Prices calculated by the investment manager on behalf of the Directors:

The prices used at the year-end which have been valued by the Directors are the best estimate of fair value as at the
year-end date. However, there is a degree of uncertainty in respect of these prices. It may not always be possible to close
out the positions at the stated mark of the given counterparty. The Directors believe that the values arrived at are
reasonable and prudent, however actual results may differ from these estimates and the differences could be material.

¢) Income

i) Dividend income

Dividend income arising on the underlying investments of the Funds is recognised as income when the entity's right to
receive payment is established. Dividend income is reported gross of non-reclaimable withholding tax in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

¢) Income (continued)

ii) Deposit interest

Deposit interest is recognised as income of the Company on an effective interest basis in the statement of
comprehensive income.

iii) Bond income

Bond income arising on fixed interest securities and liquidity instruments is recognised as a component of the operating
income in the statement of comprehensive income under the heading "operating income". Further analysis of the
operating income is contained in note 3 of these financial statements.

d) Equalisation

The Company operates an equalisation account in respect of each of the Funds in order that dividends may be paid to all
Shareholders in a Fund at the same rate. If redeemable participating shares are acquired when the equalisation account
is in operation, otherwise than at the beginning of a distribution period, the first distribution after acquisition will include
a refund of capital, referred to as an equalisation payment. When a Shareholder subscribes during a distribution year the
return of capital is reflected as equalisation income in the financial statements. Where a Shareholder redeems shares
during a distribution year the return of capital is reflected as equalisation expense in the financial statements.

Net equalisation is included in distributions under finance costs in the statement of comprehensive income. A further
breakdown of the equalisation figures is included in note 12 of these financial statements.

e) Distributions

As outlined in the background to the Company each distributing share classes within the Funds will distribute quarterly
at the end of February, May, August and November each year. Proposed distributions to holders of redeemable
participating shares are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when they are appropriately authorised
and no longer at the discretion of the Fund. Distributions are classified as finance costs in the statement of
comprehensive income. See note 12 of these financial statements for distributions declared during the financial year and
note 12 for proposed distributions recognisable subsequent to financial year end.

f) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Cash and bank overdrafts are valued at
amortised cost, which approximates fair value and are reported in the statement of financial position. All Company cash
and cash equivalents are held with The Northern Trust Company (acting as global-custodian to Northern Trust Fiduciary
Services (Ireland) Limited) (31 May 2019: same), other than bank balances held as security by counterparties to
derivatives contracts (see notes 6 and 8). While cash and cash equivalents are also subject to the impairment
requirements of IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

g) Margin cash due from/(to) broker

Margin cash due from/(to) broker consists of cash collateral held as security by/for counterparties to futures. Cash
collateral is valued at amortised cost which approximates fair value and are reported in the statement of financial
position. Counterparty balances are held with Barclays Bank PLC, Goldman Sachs International, HSBC Bank plc, JP
Morgan Chase Bank and Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc (31 May 2019: Barclays Bank PLC, BNP Paribas Plc,
Goldman Sachs International, JP Morgan Chase Bank, Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc, Standard Chartered Bank
and UBS) (see notes 6 and 8). While margin cash due from/(to) broker is also subject to the impairment requirements of
IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was immaterial.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

h) Cash/securities held/pledged as collateral

Cash received as collateral is recorded as an asset on the statement of financial position and is valued at its fair value. A
related liability to repay the collateral is recorded as a liability on the statement of financial position and is also valued at
its fair value in line with the requirement of IAS 39. Cash pledged as collateral is recorded as an asset on the statement of
financial position and is valued at its fair value. Securities pledged as collateral to counterparties are disclosed in the
statement of financial position as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss pledged as collateral. Securities
received as collateral from counterparties are disclosed by way of note in the financial statements. There were no
securities received as collateral from counterparties at the financial year end.

As part of their investing in futures, the Funds may receive or pledge collateral either in the form of cash and cash
equivalents or securities. At 31 May 2020, cash and cash equivalents received and pledged as collateral by the Funds to
counterparties are disclosed within notes 6 and 8. At 31 May 2020, USD nil was pledged as collateral on the
GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund (31 May 2019: USD 186,000). At 31 May 2020, no security was received
as collateral on any of the Funds (31 May 2019: None).

i) Other receivables

Other receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Receivables are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to their
acquisition origination. They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
provision for impairment.

j) Impairment
The Funds recognise loss allowances for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on financial assets measured at amortised cost.

The Funds measure loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at
12-month ECLs:

- financial assets that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other financial assets for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the asset) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and
when estimating ECLs, the Funds consider reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Funds’
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information. The Funds assume that
the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30 days past due.

The Funds consider a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Sub-Funds in full, without recourse by the Sub-Funds to
actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The Funds consider a financial asset to have low credit risk when the credit rating of the counterparty is equivalent to the
globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’. The Funds consider this to be Baa3 or higher per Moodys or BBB or
higher per Standard and Poor’s. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the

reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months). The maximum period
considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the Funds are exposed to credit risk.
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1. Significant accounting policies (continued)

j) Impairment (continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash
shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Funds expect to receive). ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Funds assess whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-impaired. A
financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due; or

- it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.

Presentation of allowance for ECLs in the statement of financial position
Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the
assets.

Write-off
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when a Fund has no reasonable expectations of recovering a
financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.

k) Other payables
Other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently stated at amortised cost. The difference between
the proceeds and the amount payable is recognised over the year of the payable using the effective interest method.

I) Redeemable participating shares

Redeemable participating shares in the Company are redeemable at the option of the Shareholders, and are classified as
a financial liability in the statement of financial position. The shares are valued at the redemption amount that would be
payable if the Shareholder exercised the right to redeem shares in the Company and are classified as financial liabilities.

Shares are issued and redeemed at a single price (the "Price"), which is based on the net asset value per share plus or
minus dilution adjustments.

Dilution adjustments are levied, as in the opinion of the Directors, the existing shareholders, in the case of subscriptions,
or the remaining shareholders, in the case of redemptions, might otherwise be adversely affected. The dilution
adjustment involves adding to, when the Company is in a net subscription position, and deducting from when the
Company is in a net redemption position, the net asset value per share, such figure as the Directors consider appropriate
to meet duties and charges and spreads between buying and selling prices of the underlying investments.
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) Redeemable participating shares (continued)

The dilution levy is included in Proceeds from issue of redeemable participating shares in the Statement of changes in
net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares when the Company is in a net subscription position,
and is included in Payments on redemption of redeemable participating shares in the Statement of changes in net assets
attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares when the Company is in a net redemption position.

m) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net
basis, or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty. At 31 May 2020 (31 May 2019: same), no financial assets or financial
liabilities were offset in the statement of financial position. Spot currency contracts which are open for five business days
or less are presented gross within other receivables or other payables in the statement of financial position.

n) Sale and purchase of securities awaiting settlement

Sale and Purchase of securities awaiting settlement represent receivables for securities sold and payables for securities
purchased that have been contracted for but not yet settled or delivered respectively as at the reporting date. These are
recorded initially at amortized cost and subsequently measured at fair value.

0) Subscriptions and redemptions of shares awaiting settlement

Subscriptions and redemptions of shares awaiting settlement relate to receivables on share subscriptions and payables
on share redemptions that have been contracted for but not yet settled or delivered on the reporting date, respectively.
These are recorded initially at amortized cost and subsequently measured at fair value.

p) Fair value of net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares

In accordance with the provisions of the Prospectus and Supplements, listed investments are stated at the closing mid-
market price at the valuation point or the last traded price when no closing mid-market price is available on the valuation
day for the purpose of determining the net asset value per share for subscriptions and redemptions and for various fee
calculations.

Net assets attributable to redeemable participating shareholders represent a liability on the statement of financial
position, carried at the redemption amount that would be payable at the statement of financial position date if the
Shareholder exercised the right to redeem shares in the Company.

q) Taxation

Under current law and practice, the Company qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in Section 739B of the
Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended. On that basis, it is not chargeable to Irish tax on its income or gains. The
Company will not be liable for tax in respect of its income and gains, other than on the occurrence of a chargeable event.
A chargeable event includes any distribution or any redemption or transfer of shares.
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q) Taxation (continued)

However, some dividend and interest income received by the Company may be subject to withholding tax imposed in the
country of origin. Investment income is recorded gross of such taxes in the statement of comprehensive income.

r) Foreign exchange

The Company has adopted British pound as its functional and presentation currency, as the majority of the Company's
investors are based in the UK. A foreign currency transaction is recorded in the functional currency, by applying to the
foreign currency amount the actual exchange rate between the functional currency and the foreign currency at the date
of the transaction.

The functional and presentation currency of each Fund is:

Fund Currency
GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund British pound
GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund British pound
GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund us dollar
GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund us dollar
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund us dollar
GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund US dollar
GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund us dollar
GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund us dollar
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund us dollar
GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund us dollar
GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund us dollar
GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund us dollar
GlobalAccess US Equity Fund us dollar
GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund us dollar
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund us dollar
GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund Euro
GlobalAccess Japan Fund Japanese yen

s) Translation to presentation currency

For the purpose of combining the financial statements of the Funds to arrive at Company figures (required under Irish
Company Law), the amounts in the financial statements have been translated into the presentation currency which is
British pound, at the exchange rate ruling at 31 May 2020. The translation has no effect on the net asset value per share
attributable to the individual Funds.

The average exchange rates were used to convert balances in the statement of comprehensive income. The resulting
transaction gain of GBP 59,099,901 (31 May 2019: Gain GBP 207,733,824) is due to the movement in exchange rates
between 1 June 2019 and 31 May 2020. This is a notional gain which has no impact on the net asset value per share
attributable to the individual share class of the individual Funds.

Proceeds from subscriptions and amounts paid on redemption of redeemable participating shares are translated at
average rates, which approximate the rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Translation differences on non-
monetary items, such as equities, held at fair value through profit or loss are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss
in the statement of comprehensive income and as exchange gain on cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash
flows.
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t) Transaction costs

Transaction costs are costs incurred to acquire or dispose of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. They include fees and commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers and dealers. Transaction costs are
expensed when incurred and are included as part of the cost of such purchases or sales.

u) Valuation point
The valuation point used to value the securities for the purpose of the financial statements is that of 10 p.m. on 29 May
2020 (31 May 2019: 10 p.m. on 31 May 2019) per the prospectus.

2. Financial risk management

a) Strategy in using financial instruments

The Company is an umbrella Fund and consists of a series of 15 Funds at financial year end. Each Fund has its own
investment objectives and the Company appoints Sub-Investment Managers to provide investment management and
advisory services in respect of the assets of the Funds. The investment manager monitors the performance of the Sub-
Investment Managers. Each Fund's investment objectives are set out in the Prospectus to the Fund.

The Company trades in financial instruments, taking positions in traded and over-the-counter instruments, including
derivatives, to take advantage of short and long term market movements in the equity and bond markets. Investments
held at year end are representative of the type of investments held during the financial year.

In pursuing its investment objectives, each Fund is exposed to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including market
price risk, interest rate risk and currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk that could result in a reduction in a Fund's net
assets or a reduction of the profits available for distribution. The Funds devote considerable resources to maintaining
effective controls to manage, measure and mitigate each of these risks, and regularly reviews its risk management
procedures and systems to ensure that they continue to meet the needs of the business. The Fund's overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Funds' financial performance.

As part of the overall risk management process, the Company has appointed Arkus Financial Services ("Arkus") to
provide risk calculations for the Company. The output is provided to the investment manager's risk management
function for review.

Arkus provides independent, third-party monitoring of the relevant regulatory limits and provides certain information
that assists the Directors in understanding the risk positions of the securities held individually and how they behave at
the Fund Level.

Arkus undertakes daily reporting directly to the risk management function of the investment manager. The data used for
reporting purposes is taken directly from the Administrator, to ensure that reporting is at arm’s length from the
investment manager. Immediate escalation of items identified in daily reports will be provided to the Board, Depositary
and Regulator by the risk manager within the risk management function of the investment manager.

Where a Fund has more than one Sub-Investment Manager, the investment manager will prepare 'Objectives, Guidelines
and Reporting Requirements' which set maximum exposure limits per Sub-Investment Manager which seek to ensure
that the Fund as a whole does not breach any quantitative limits set out in the Prospectus. The Sub-Investment
Managers provide the investment manager with regular updates on their risk monitoring activities and makes available
all necessary information for the investment manager to assess the functioning of the control processes in place. At a
minimum, the investment manager reports quarterly to the Board.

The Sub-Investment Managers are chosen by the investment manager/Funds research team from a global market of
around 10,000 different fund-management companies. When selecting managers, the investment manager/Funds
research team first develops a list of investment managers arranged in peer groups according to regions and investment
style.

83



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued) for the financial year ended 31 May 2020

2. Financial risk management (continued)

a) Strategy in using financial instruments (continued)

Then, to assess each manager’s ability to match the investment targets, the investment manager/Funds research team
uses a proprietary multi-factor screening method to evaluate past risk-adjusted performance on a relative and absolute
basis. The performance and risk of the selected Sub-Investment Managers are monitored closely and regularly by the
investment manager/Funds research team.

The investment manager ensures that each Sub-Investment Manager is aware of, and agrees to, applicable
concentration limits and risk diversification rules for the Fund or portion of a Fund it manages. It ensures that controls
are established to monitor the inherent risks, examine the level and effectiveness of these controls, procure statements
and reports on the risk control activities, evaluate the findings and actively manage risk diversification breaches and
corrective actions.

The Funds make use of the following financial derivatives instruments:
(i) Futures (Involving debt and equity indices, currencies, interest rates and other asset categories and
combinations of these);
(i) Foreign exchange forward contracts; or,
(iii) Combinations of (i) and (ii) above.

The commercial purpose behind the use of all these financial derivatives instruments is:

(i) for the purposes of efficient portfolio management;

(ii) toincrease investment returns;

(iii) to hedge away unwanted investment risk; or,

(iv) exposure to new asset types.
The Funds are subject to a number of investment restrictions imposed by external regulators or self-imposed by the
Prospectus and Memorandum and Articles of Association. These restrictions are intended to reduce the risks associated
with the Funds' financial instruments. Compliance by the Funds with the investment restrictions imposed by the UCITS
Regulations is monitored weekly and reported to the Board monthly by the Depositary. The investment manager also
reports quarterly to the Board on whether the Funds have been operated in accordance with the investment guidelines
as defined in the Prospectus as well as any self-imposed limitations. These policies for managing risk have been applied
throughout the financial year.

b) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the value of an investment will decrease due to movements in market factors. Market risk
comprises three types of risk: market price risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk.

The Sub-Investment Managers mitigate market risk through asset allocation, security selection and hedging within
specified limits. Risk exposures are monitored on a daily basis by the Company’s investment manager and are reviewed
on a quarterly basis by the Board.

At 31 May 2020, each Fund's market risk is affected by three main components:
(i) changes in actual market prices,
(ii) foreign currency movements, and,
(iii) interest rate movements.

(i) Market price risk

Market price is defined as the prevailing price at which the financial instruments held by the Funds may be sold within a
public arena. It is the estimated amount for which an investment should exchange between a willing buyer and a willing
seller in an arms-length transaction wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, prudently, and without
compulsion. Market price risk is the risk of financial loss resulting from movements in market prices.
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

b) Market risk (continued)

(i) Market price risk (continued)

The Board manage the market price risks inherent in the investment portfolios by ensuring full and timely access to
relevant information from the investment manager. The Board meets regularly and at each meeting reviews investment
performance and overall market positions. They monitor the investment manager’s compliance with the Funds’
objectives. There were no material changes to the Company’s policies and processes for managing market price risk and
the methods and assumptions used to measure risk during the financial year.

Value at risk

A key metric used to measure market risk is Value-at-Risk (“VaR”) which encompasses currency, interest rate and price
risk. VaR is a statistical risk measure that estimates the potential portfolio loss from adverse market movements in an
ordinary market environment. VaR analysis reflects the interdependencies between risk variables, unlike a traditional
sensitivity analysis.

The VaR calculations are based on an adjusted historical simulation model with a confidence level of 99%, a holding
period equivalent to one month and a historical observation period of not less than one year (250 days). A VaR number is
defined at a specified probability and a specified time horizon. A 2% one month VaR means that the expectation is that
99% of the time over a one-month period the Fund will lose no more than this number in percentage terms. Therefore,
higher VaR numbers indicate higher risk.

Value-at-Risk as at Value-at-Risk as at

31 May 2020 31 May 2019

Portfolio Name Portfolio VaR (%) Portfolio VaR (%)
GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund* - 7.04
GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund 9.48 6.84
GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund 3.18 1.61
GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund 10.67 7.26
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund 10.56 7.59
GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund 3.35 2.79
GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund 2.66 1.96
GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund** - 3.79
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund 4.64 292
GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund 9.19 6.50
GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund 0.90 0.82
GlobalAccess US Equity Fund 10.28 6.25
GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund 9.21 5.94
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund 7.04 5.23
GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund 11.06 7.93
GlobalAccess Japan Fund 12.15 10.02
GlobalAccess US Small and Mid Cap Equity Fund 13.91 7.96

Some limitations of VaR analysis:

- the methodology is based on historical data and cannot take account of the fact that future market price
movements, correlations between markets and levels of market liquidity in conditions of market stress may bear
no relation to historical patterns; and

- theVaRis a point-in-time calculation, and does not necessarily reflect the risk position of the Funds at any time
other than the date and time at which it is calculated.

VaR is presented for the purposes of financial reporting. The investment manager also calculates each Fund’s global
exposure using the commitment approach as prescribed in the UCITS notices, as detailed in ESMA paper 10-788.

* GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund ceased trading on 31 March 2020.
** GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund ceased trading on 27 November 2019.
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b) Market risk (continued)

(ii) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates. Certain of the Funds' assets, liabilities and income are denominated in currencies
other than their functional currency. They are, therefore, exposed to currency risk as the value of the securities
denominated in other currencies will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. Income denominated in foreign
currencies is converted to the appropriate functional currency on receipt.

Where appropriate, as defined in the Funds' investment policies and Prospectus, the Company can employ techniques
and instruments intended to hedge currency risk in the context of the management of its assets and liabilities. In this
regard, the Company utilises hedged exposure to one currency by entering into forward foreign currency transactions.
The details of forward foreign currency contracts which are open for greater than five business days are disclosed in the
Funds' schedule of investments, where applicable. Spot currency contracts which are open for five business days or less
are presented gross within other receivables or other payables in the statement of financial position. All foreign currency
contracts can either be settled net or gross at the discretion of the investment manager and where the terms of the
agreement permits positions to be settled net. During the financial year all foreign currency contracts settled gross.

The currency hedging is executed at the Sub-Investment Manager level using currency Forwards, in line with the
guidelines of the portfolio of investments. It is the responsibility of the Sub-Investment Manager to execute these trades
and monitor the resulting currency exposure of their portfolio of investments.

In accordance with Company policy, the investment manager monitors the Funds' currency position on a daily basis and
the Board reviews it on a regular basis. There were no material changes to the Company’s policies and processes for
currency risk and the methods used to measure risk during the financial year. The Funds' foreign currency exposure is
shown in the schedule of investment by disclosing the currency of the underlying positions. The current year exposure
currencies are representative of the prior year.

The Funds’ sensitivity to changes in foreign exchange rates is included in the calculation of VaR disclosed earlier.

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that an investment's value will change due to a change in the absolute level of interest rates,
in the spread between two rates, in the shape of the yield curve or in any other interest rate relationship. The Funds'
interest bearing financial assets and financial liabilities expose them to risks associated with the effects of fluctuations in
the prevailing levels of market interest rates on their financial position and cash flows. The Funds are also exposed to
interest rate risk through their bank balances where interest is earned and interest expense of overdrafts.

Interest rate risk affects the value of bonds more directly than equities and as such, will affect different Funds based on
their constituent securities. For GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund, GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund,
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund, GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund, GlobalAccess US Small & Mid
Cap Equity Fund, GlobalAccess US Equity Fund, GlobalAccess Clobal Equity Income Fund, GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK)
Alpha Fund and GlobalAccess Japan Fund, the majority of the financial assets are equity shares and other investments
which neither pay interest nor have a maturity date and therefore, there is no significant interest rate exposure.

The interest rate exposure for the fixed income Funds is disclosed for each holding in the Funds’ schedules of

investments. The Funds’ sensitivity to changes in interest rates is incorporated into the calculation of VaR disclosed
earlier.
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¢) Creditrisk

The Company takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty or an issuer will be unable to pay
amounts in full when due. Financial assets which potentially expose the Company to credit risk consist principally of
bonds, cash balances and deposits with and receivables from the Depositary and the counterparties to derivative
contracts as well as equities. The carrying amounts of financial assets best represent the maximum credit risk exposure
at the statement of financial position date.

All transactions in listed securities are settled/paid for upon delivery using approved brokers. The risk of default is
considered minimal, as delivery of securities sold is only made once the broker has received payment. Payment is made
on a purchase once the securities have been received by the broker. The trade will fail if either party fails to meet its
obligation.

All details of counterparties, and amounts/collateral held as security, are disclosed in the schedule of investments. Nil
securities held as collateral on the as 31 May 2020 (2019: Nil).

The Sub-Investment Managers assess all counterparties and brokers separately as part of their risk management
process, for credit risk before contracting with them. Counterparties for foreign exchange forwards and spot forward
currency contracts entered into by Barclays are approved internally as part of the trading and best execution policy for
the Funds. At present, counterparties are all major international banking institutions and it is not envisaged that this
policy will change in the near future. Approval is reviewed if a counterparty's credit rating deteriorates. Counterparty
exposure is monitored through the daily generation of a compliance report to test that the exposure to counterparties
does not exceed limits required by legal and Prospectus rules.

Credit risk arising on transactions with brokers relates to transactions awaiting settlement. Risk relating to unsettled
transactions is considered small due to the short settlement period involved and the high credit quality of the brokers
used. The Sub-Investment Managers monitor the credit rating and financial positions of the brokers used to further
mitigate this risk. Where the investment manager has entered into transactions with brokers directly on behalf of the
Funds, the credit rating and financial positions of the brokers used will be monitored by them.

Certain Funds invest into forward contracts which expose the Funds to counterparty risk, should they default. The
maximum credit exposure to these counterparties equals the unrealised gain on the contracts as at 31 May 2020 and 31
May 2019 as disclosed in each Fund's schedule of investments where this is settled net or the notional amount where
this is settled gross. Although the Sub-Investment Managers employ appropriate procedures to ensure that the
counterparties are reputable institutions and that the credit risk to the Fund is acceptable, the Funds may incur a loss if a
counterparty were to default on its obligations. The Fund mitigates this risk through ensuring that the exposure to over-
the-counter derivative counterparties does not exceed 5% of the net asset value ("NAV") of the Fund. This limit is raised
to 10% in the case of credit institutions.

Certain Funds invest in participatory notes ("P-Notes") which also exposes them to counterparty risk whereby the
primary exposure is to the issuer(s) of those notes. Although the Sub-Investment Managers employ appropriate
procedures to ensure that the counterparties are reputable institutions and that the credit risk to the Fund is acceptable,
the Funds may incur a loss if a counterparty were to default on its obligations. The Fund mitigates this risk through
ensuring that the exposure to such counterparties does not exceed 10% of the NAV of each Fund.

A combination of two or more of investments in transferable securities or money market instruments, deposits, and/or
counterparty risk exposures arising from OTC derivatives transactions issued by, or made or undertaken with, the same

body may not exceed 20% of the NAV of a Fund.

Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited (“NTFSIL”) is the appointed Depositary of the Fund, responsible for
the safe-keeping of assets. NTFSIL has appointed The Northern Trust Company (“TNTC”) as its global sub-custodian.
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¢) Credit risk (continued)

Both NTFSIL and TNTC are wholly owned subsidiaries of Northern Trust Corporation (“NTC”). As at 31 May 2020, NTC
had a long term credit rating from Standard & Poor’s of (A+).

TNTC (as global sub-custodian of NTFSIL) does not appoint external sub-custodians within the US, the UK, Ireland and
Canada. However, in all other markets, TNTC appoints local external sub-custodians.

NTFSIL, in the discharge of its depositary duties, verifies the Fund’s ownership of other assets, (as defined under other
assets, Art 22(5) of UCITS V Directive 2014/91/EU ), by assessing whether the Fund holds the ownership based on
information or documents provided by the Fund or where available, on external evidence.

TNTC, in the discharge of its delegated depositary duties, holds in custody (i) all financial instruments that may be
registered in a financial instruments account opened on the books of TNTC and (ii) all financial instruments that can be
physically delivered to TNTC. TNTC ensures all financial instruments (held in a financial instruments account on the
books of TNTC) are held in segregated accounts in the name of the Fund, clearly identifiable as belonging to the Fund,
and distinct and separately from the proprietary assets of TNTC, NTFSIL and NTC.

In addition TNTC, as banker, holds cash of the Fund on deposit. Such cash is held on the statement of financial position
of TNTC. In the event of insolvency of TNTC, in accordance with standard banking practice, the Fund will rank as an
unsecured creditor of TNTC in respect of any cash deposits.

Insolvency of NTFSIL and or one of its agents or affiliates may cause the Fund’s rights with respect to its assets to be
delayed.

The Responsible Party manages risk by monitoring the credit quality and financial position of the Depositary and such
risk is further managed by the Depositary monitoring the credit quality and financial positions of sub-custodian
appointments.

The counterparties and their credit ratings at 31 May 2020 are as follows: Bank of America Merrill Lynch (A+), Barclays
Capital (A), Barclays Bank PLC (A), Citibank N.A. (A+), BNP Paribas Plc (A+), CITIC Securities Co (BBB+), Credit Suisse
(A+), Deutsche Bank AG (BBB+), Goldman Sachs International (A+), HSBC Bank plc (A+), J.P. Morgan Chase Bank (A+),
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc (A+), Societe Generale (A), Royal Bank of Canada (AA-), Standard Chartered
Bank (A), State Street Bank (A) and UBS (A+). All credit ratings are from Standard & Poor's.

The counterparties and their credit ratings at 31 May 2019 are as follows: Bank of America Merrill Lynch (A-), Barclays
Capital (A), Barclays Bank PLC (A), Citibank N.A. (A+), BNP Paribas Plc (A), CITIC Securities Co (BBB+), Credit Suisse
(BBB+), Deutsche Bank AG (BBB+), Goldman Sachs International (A+), HSBC Bank plc (AA-), JP Morgan Chase Bank (A-),
Morgan Stanley & Co. International Plc (A+), Societe Generale (A), Royal Bank of Canada (AA-), Standard Chartered
Bank (A-), State Street Bank (A) and UBS (BBB+). All credit ratings are from Standard & Poor's.

Both Northern Trust Fiduciary Services (Ireland) Limited and The Northern Trust Company are wholly owned subsidiaries
of Northern Trust Corporation. As at 31 May 2020, Northern Trust Corporation had a long term rating from Standard &
Poor's of A+ (31 May 2019: A+).

Northern Trust acts as its own sub-custodian in the UK and Ireland. In all other markets Northern Trust appoints a local
sub-custodian. Northern Trust continually reviews its sub-custodian network to ensure clients have access to the most
efficient, creditworthy and cost-effective provider in each market.

The Prospectus limits the level of investment in bonds that are below investment grade for certain Funds. The

investment manager monitors the proportion of bonds to the assets under management on a daily basis through the
generation of a daily compliance report and ensures, through respective divestment, those restrictions are adhered to.
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¢) Credit risk (continued)

Portfolio by rating category

The investment manager utilises well-known rating agencies for determining credit quality of the financial assets. For
unrated securities, the relevant Sub-Investment Manager assigns an internal rating using an approach that is consistent
with the ratings agencies. The rating limits defined in the Prospectus are monitored on a daily basis by the investment
manager and Sub-Investment Managers (e.g. no more than 10% in sub-investment grade bonds for some portfolios).

For GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund, GlobalAccess Pacific Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund, GlobalAccess Emerging
Market Equity Fund, GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund, GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund,
GlobalAccess US Equity Fund, GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund, GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund,
GlobalAccess Japan Fund and GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund* the majority of the financial assets are non-interest bearing
equity securities. As a result, they are not subject to significant amounts of credit risk.

* GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund ceased trading on 31 March 2020

89



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued) for the financial year ended 31 May 2020

2. Financial risk management (continued)

¢) Creditrisk (continued)

As at 31 May 2020 and 31 May 2019, the remaining Funds were invested in debt securities with the following credit quality:

Rating as at
Investment Grade
Non-Investment Grade
Not rated

Rating as at
Investment Grade
Non-Investment Grade
Not rated

Rating as at
Investment Grade
Non-Investment Grade
Not rated

GlobalAccess Global Government

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond

Bond Fund Fund Fund
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
62% 68% 5% 4% 89% 87%
0% 1% 93% 93% 6% 7%
38% 31% 2% 3% 5% 6%
100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration

Bond Fund* Fund Bond Fund
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
- 59% 44% 31% 57% 61%
- 1% 54% 52% 24% 26%
- 40% 2% 17% 19% 13%
- 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local

Currency Debt Fund
31 May 2020 31 May 2019
66% 70%
23% 22%
11% 8%
100% 100%

* GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund ceased trading on 27 November 2019.
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¢) Creditrisk (continued)

In accordance with Company policy, the investment manager monitors the Funds' credit position on a daily basis. The
Directors rely on the investment manager to keep them informed of any material event. There were no material changes
to the Company’s policies and processes for managing credit risk and the methods used to measure risk during the
financial year.

Unrated positions which have been acquired by the Fund(s) are assessed by the relevant investment manager as to the
creditworthiness of the position, as per the Fund Prospectus. The manager is not currently aware as of the date in the
accounts of any securities being in default.

d) Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with its financial
liabilities. Liquidity risk is controlled in the following ways:

- The investment manager and the relevant trading desk considers and monitors the liquidity of all instruments utilised.
- Procedures are in place to review liquidity requirements and to ensure that they will be met both on an ongoing basis
and in the event of extreme market movements.

The Company is exposed to daily cash redemptions of redeemable participating shares. The Funds generally retain a
certain portion of their assets in cash, which is available to satisfy redemptions. In order to prevent a detrimental liquidity
gap, redemption proceeds in respect of shares are paid five business days after the relevant dealing day or such other
period as the Directors may determine (not exceeding ten business days) provided that all the relevant documentation
has been furnished to and received by the Administrator.

The investment manager and the Administrator consider and monitor liquidity on a daily basis to ensure that the
appropriate liquidity is maintained in line with the daily redemption policy adopted by the Company. An overall liquidity
risk assessment of each Fund is performed on a daily basis by Arkus and provided to the risk control and governance
team of the investment manager. Reports are provided to the investment manager’s Risk Forum at each meeting. The
liquidity level of each Fund is assessed to confirm its ability to meet redemptions. Liquidity reports enable the investment
manager’s risk control and governance team to determine the liquidity of the Fund. The liquidity assessment of the
assets within the portfolio is facilitated by Arkus. These liquidity assessment reports are submitted to the Risk Manager
and the investment manager’s risk forum. Any issues identified are escalated to the Board. The Directors rely on the
investment manager to keep them informed of any material event. There were no material changes to the Company's
policies and processes for liquidity risk and the methods used to measure risk during the financial year.

The Company maintains a mixture of long term and short term committed facilities that are designed to ensure the
Company has sufficient available funds for operations and planned expansion.

The investment manager ensures at all times that the vast majority of assets in the Company are highly liquid and offer
daily liquidity. The monitoring and reporting of liquidity risk take the form of cash flow measurements and projections for
the next day, week and month as these are key periods for liquidity management. Sources of liquidity are regularly
reviewed and daily liquidity reporting is also carried out by the investment manager.

Duties, charges and spreads may have an adverse/dilution effect on the value of the Funds. The Directors may at their
discretion make a dilution adjustment if, in their opinion, the remaining shareholders, in case of redemptions, might
otherwise be adversely affected especially in circumstances where a Fund is in continual decline (i.e. is experiencing a net
outflow of redemptions) or a Fund is experiencing a net redemption position on any dealing day. Where a dilution
adjustment is made, it will decrease the price where the Fund is in a net redemption position.
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2. Financial risk management (continued)

d) Liquidity risk (continued)

As disclosed within note 13, there are shareholders who own greater than 20% of the shares in issue. This exposes the
Funds to a shareholder concentration risk. Should one or more of these shareholders submit redemption requests, these
could expose the Funds to risk as a going concern. Substantial redemption requests by Shareholders in a concentrated
period of time could require a Fund to liquidate certain of its investments more rapidly than might otherwise be desirable
in order to raise cash to fund the redemptions and achieve a portfolio appropriately reflecting a smaller asset base.
Substantial redemption requests may limit the ability of the Investment Manager to successfully implement the investment
objective of a Fund and could negatively impact the value of the Shares being redeemed and the value of Shares that
remain outstanding. The Directors of the Company may have certain liquidity management tools available to them where
permitted by the constitutional documents and where they consider the imposition of such tools to be in the best interests
of both remaining and redeeming investors. These can include the following:

1: Increase in the existing redemption / exit fees
2: Suspension of redemptions

3: Temporary borrowing to cover redemptions
4: Swing pricing

5: Anti-dilution levy

6: Gate / activation of deferred redemptions

7: Redemptions in kind

8: Change in the dealing frequency of the Fund

Of these options the primary tool, which is actively used by the Funds, is swing pricing.

The actual cost of purchasing or selling assets and Investments for a Fund may deviate from the mid-market price or last
traded price used, as appropriate, in calculating the Net Asset Value per Share due to dealing charges, taxes and other
similar costs and spreads from buying and selling prices of the underlying Investments. These costs have an adverse effect
on the value of a Fund and are known as “dilution”.

To mitigate the effects of dilution, the Directors may, at their discretion, make a dilution adjustment to the Net Asset Value
per Share.

The Directors will retain the discretion in relation to the circumstances in which to make such a dilution adjustment.

The requirement to make a dilution adjustment will depend on the volume of subscriptions or redemptions of Shares in
the relevant Fund. The Directors may in their discretion make a dilution adjustment if, in their opinion, the existing
Shareholders, in case of subscriptions, or remaining Shareholders, in case of redemptions, might otherwise be adversely
affected.

e) Other risks — suspension of shares

The Company may temporarily suspend the determination of the Net Asset Value of any Fund and the issue and
redemption of Shares of any Class of any Fund during the whole or any part of any period when, as a result of political,
economic, military or monetary events or any other circumstances outside the control, responsibility and power of the
Directors, any disposal or valuation of Investments of the relevant Fund is not, in the opinion of the Directors, reasonably
practicable without this being seriously detrimental to the interests of owners of Shares in general or the owners of Shares
of the relevant Fund or if, in the opinion of the Directors, the Net Asset Value cannot fairly be calculated or such disposal
would be materially prejudicial to the owners of Shares in general or the owners of Shares of the relevant Fund.
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3. Operating income
GlobalAccess Global Government

GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund* GlobalAccess UK Opportunities

Fund Bond Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
GBP GBP GBP GBP usbD usb
Interest income 158 1,966 2,264 1,594 49,050 78,515
Dividend income 559,185 1,657,791 12,198,270 13,719,009 - -
Sundry income 6,252 81 6,252 - 7,970 82
565,595 1,659,838 12,206,786 13,720,603 57,020 78,597

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific
(ex-Japan) Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Emerging Market
Equity Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond

Fund

Financial year

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019

usbD usD usD usbD usD usbD

Interest income 7,816 17,826 284,291 341,791 67,929 156,424
Dividend income 2,827,114 3,119,396 17,731,696 20,192,067 1,550,924 1,364,880
Sundry income 7,970 82 7,969 82 7,970 -
2,842,900 3,137,304 18,023,956 20,533,940 1,626,823 1,521,304

* ClobalAccess UK Alpha Fund ceased trading on 31 March 2020.
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3. Operating income (continued)

Interest income
Dividend income
Sundry income

Interest income
Dividend income
Sundry income

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond

GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt

Fund Bond Fund* Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usb usbD usb usb usb usb
64,506 92,587 - - 56,338 106,854
1,881 - 10,134 20,119 593,586 424,005
7,970 82 7,969 - 7,970 82
74,357 92,669 18,103 20,119 657,894 530,941

GlobalAccess Global Property

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap

Securities Fund Bond Fund Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usb usD usb usD usb
5,434 7,717 75,006 160,688 15,337 30,595
3,466,271 2,866,092 191,962 162,580 1,798,522 2,456,604
7,970 82 7,970 82 7,970 -
3,479,675 2,873,891 274,938 323,350 1,821,829 2,487,199

* GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund ceased trading on 27 November 2019.

94



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued) for the financial year ended 31 May 2020

3. Operating income (continued)

Interest income
Dividend income
Sundry income

Interest income
Dividend income
Sundry income

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local

Fund Currency Debt Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usD usD usD usD
56,268 79,874 23,335 54,660 83,065 126,436
4,627,860 6,262,887 5,073,873 9,225,222 940,356 913,777
7,970 82 7,970 82 - 82
4,692,098 6,342,843 5,105,178 9,279,964 1,023,421 1,040,295

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha

GlobalAccess Japan Fund

Aggregated total in GBP

Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP
1,469 3,136 273,770 232,494 630,343 972,938
3,224,165 7,549,352 613,301,970 687,184,599 50,825,786 62,953,429
7,202 - 866,093 9,672 100,931 779
3,232,836 7,552,488 614,441,833 687,426,765 51,557,060 63,927,146
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4. Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Net fair value (losses)/gains on investments and derivative
contracts through profit or loss

Net change in fair value on forward currency contracts
Net fair value (losses)/gains on sale of futures contracts

Other fair value gains

Net fair value losses on investments and derivative
contracts through profit or loss

Net change in fair value on forward currency contracts
Net fair value (losses)/gains on sale of futures contracts

Other fair value gains

GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund*

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities

GlobalAccess Global Government

Fund Bond Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
GBP GBP GBP GBP usbD usbD
(2,065,452) (4,816,869) (60,486,550) (11,770,146) 9,940,600 7,312,273
(25,483) 24,542 (333,604) 366,117 979,899 (2,510,937)
13,079 (9,186) 1,557,338 (938,888) (632,856) 273,580
- - - - 1,766,248 2,550,484
(2,077,856) (4,801,513) (59,262,816) (12,342,917) 12,053,891 7,625,400

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific

GlobalAccess Emerging Market

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond

(ex-Japan) Fund Equity Fund Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usbD usD usD usD usbD usD
(5,479,487) (18,294,918) (55,852,826) (87,234,963) (84,125,631) (85,493,817)
285,585 827,179 2,331,690 3,525,345 23,355,845 (3,659,186)
44,939 (64,866) 399,327 2,599,624 - -
- - - - 41,399,687 62,899,252
(5,148,963) (17,532,605) (53,121,809) (81,109,994) (19,370,099) (26,253,751)

* GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund ceased trading on 31 March 2020.
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4. Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Net fair value gains/(losses) on investments and derivative
contracts through profit or loss

Net change in fair value on forward currency contracts
Net fair value (losses)/gains on sale of futures contracts

Other fair value gains

Net fair value (losses)/gains on investments and derivative
contracts through profit or loss

Net change in fair value on forward currency contracts
Net fair value (losses)/gains on sale of futures contracts
Other fair value gains

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond

GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt

Fund Bond Fund* Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usb usbD usb usb usb
(1,701,104) (1,443,913) 586,802 192,009 (28,889,433) (13,918,235)
10,441,726 (8,509,247) 245,401 (881,253) 8,411,430 (1,766,562)
(794,293) 75,068 196,711 257,984 381,831 186,399
15,202,695 17,261,333 272,474 823,767 14,490,836 17,724,707
23,149,024 7,383,241 1,301,388 392,507 (5,605,336) 2,226,309

GlobalAccess Global Property

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap

Securities Fund Bond Fund Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usbD usD usD usbD usD usb
(47,744,017) 6,866,140 (14,423,710) (15,539,707) 432,557 (15,293,886)
133,718 179,977 3,884,842 1,714,038 664,544 1,864,389
- - 563,075 607,576 89,992 -
- - 8,168,400 11,491,811 - -
(47,610,299) 7,046,117 (1,807,393) (1,726,282) 1,187,093 (13,429,497)

* GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund ceased trading on 27 November 2019.
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4. Net gains/(losses) on financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (continued)

Net fair value gains/(losses) on investments and derivative
contracts through profit or loss

Net change in fair value on forward currency contracts
Net fair value (losses)/gains on sale of futures contracts

Other fair value gains

Net fair value gains/(losses) on investments and derivative
contracts through profit or loss

Net change in fair value on forward currency contracts
Net fair value (losses)/gains on sale of futures contracts

Other fair value gains

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund GlobalAccess Global Equity Income  GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local
Fund Currency Debt Fund

Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019

usb usD usb usbD usbD usbD

33,618,080 (9,237,235) (2,977,836) (41,645,829) (65,863,011) (35,739,293)

658,550 4,463,423 2,083,421 3,225,733 742,621 7,006,296

261,082 (91,845) 449,030 (68,130) (239,133) 243,917

- - - - 35,225,791 26,375,481

34,537,712 (4,865,657) (445,385) (38,488,226) (30,133,732) (2,113,599)

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha

GlobalAccess Japan Fund

Aggregated total in GBP

Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP
4,639,357 (12,038,867) 851,812,290  (4,319,868,632) (260,211,823) (295,236,090)
(74,360) (822,886) 23,714,994 176,813,669 42,707,346 5,106,334
- - 51,719,998 (27,244,161) 2,519,362 1,956,519
- - - - 92,323,657 107,067,076
4,564,997 (12,861,753) 927,247,282  (4,170,299,124) (122,661,458) (181,106,161)
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5. Operating expenses

Investment management fees
Administration & Depositary fees
Auditors' remuneration
Directors' fees

Sundry expenses

Investment management fees
Administration & Depositary fees
Auditors' remuneration
Directors' fees

Sundry expenses

GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund*

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities

GlobalAccess Global Government

Fund Bond Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
GBP GBP GBP GBP usbD usb
(137,051) (329,091) (2,995,650) (2,981,706) (940,566) (1,136,908)
(111,065) (121,807) (300,961) (292,655) (320,105) (313,284)
(7,842) (9,893) (12,440) (12,319) (17,913) (17,108)
(3,541) (4,185) (4,301) (4,185) (5,458) (5,271)
(99,096) (75,655) (91,414) (91,782) (138,699) (145,679)
(358,595) (540,631) (3,404,766) (3,382,647) (1,422,741) (1,618,250)

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific
(ex-Japan) Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Emerging Market
Equity Fund

Financial year

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond
Fund

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usD usD usD usD
(721,032) (931,739) (5,659,902) (7,102,593) (5,333,723) (7,931,388)
(204,302) (214,889) (671,615) (836,192) (568,481) (646,392)
(11,530) (11,478) (15,116) (14,641) (23,364) (21,916)
(5,458) (5,270) (5,458) (5,271) (5,458) (5,271)
(101,907) (98,731) (162,410) (185,232) (312,304) (319,983)
(1,044,229) (1,262,107) (6,514,501) (8,143,929) (6,243,330) (8,924,950)

* GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund ceased trading on 31 March 2020.
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5. Operating expenses (continued)

Investment management fees
Administration & Depositary fees
Auditors' remuneration
Directors' fees

Sundry expenses

Investment management fees
Administration & Depositary fees
Auditors' remuneration
Directors' fees

Sundry expenses

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond
Fund

Financial year Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked
Bond Fund*

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt
Fund

Financial year Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usD usD usD usD
(2,849,954) (3,115,807) (111,233) (354,798) (2,155,541) (2,383,904)
(493,131) (515,999) (110,892) (223,606) (404,658) (412,782)
(23,364) (21,916) (11,056) (17,108) (17,913) (17,108)
(5,458) (5,270) (3,192) (5,271) (5,458) (5,271)
(297,648) (275,050) (109,670) (116,468) (200,267) (198,807)
(3,669,555) (3,934,042) (346,043) (717,251) (2,783,837) (3,017,872)

GlobalAccess Global Property
Securities Fund
Financial year Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration
Bond Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap
Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usD usD usD usD
(880,162) (809,065) (1,495,191) (1,913,069) (1,193,472) (1,832,334)
(180,474) (190,535) (294,127) (316,490) (236,797) (271,441)
(11,558) (11,478) (17,913) (17,108) (15,116) (14,642)
(5,458) (5,271) (5,458) (5,271) (5,458) (5,271)
(96,168) (96,186) (155,471) (161,042) (101,940) (108,277)
(1,173,820) (1,112,535) (1,968,160) (2,412,980) (1,552,783) (2,231,965)

* ClobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund ceased trading on 27 November 2019.
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5. Operating expenses (continued)

Investment management fees
Administration & Depositary fees
Auditors' remuneration
Directors' fees

Sundry expenses

Investment management fees
Administration & Depositary fees
Auditors' remuneration
Directors' fees

Sundry expenses

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local

Fund Currency Debt Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usbD usbD usbD usb usbD usb
(1,772,082) (2,427,922) (1,356,574) (2,270,879) (4,523,363) (3,161,268)
(278,108) (281,279) (376,014) (425,514) (851,195) (635,041)
(11,530) (11,478) (15,152) (14,641) (17,913) (17,108)
(5,458) (5,271) (5,458) (5,271) (5,458) (5,270)
(115,005) (121,663) (154,105) (179,886) (164,227) (88,162)
(2,182,183) (2,847,613) (1,907,303) (2,896,191) (5,562,156) (3,906,849)

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha

GlobalAccess Japan Fund

Aggregated total in GBP

Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP
(1,487,857) (2,389,046) (206,111,300) (247,549,744) (28,916,571) (34,347,764)
(289,454) (369,029) (31,023,709) (39,306,061) (4,846,307) (5,077,276)
(10,719) (11,388) (1,546,170) (1,727,299) (206,933) (204,052)
(4,919) (4,702) (574,658) (604,667) (70,781) (69,424)
(91,783) (137,939) (9,926,499) (11,352,654) (2,015,226) (1,979,795)
(1,884,732) (2,912,104) (249,182,336) (300,540,425) (36,055,818) (41,678,311)
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6. Cash and cash equivalents, cash collateral & margin cash due from broker

GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund* GlobalAccess UK Opportunities GlobalAccess Global Government

Fund Bond Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
GBP GBP GBP GBP usD usb
Cash and cash equivalents
The Northern Trust Company 93,339 1,166,662 13,422,003 17,796,987 3,671,445 9,091,216
Cash held as collateral - - - - 400,000 2,753,000
Margin cash due from broker:
Barclays Bank UK PLC - - - - 234,703 109,700
Goldman Sachs International - 96,569 1,001,411 1,953,496 1,268 45,265
93,339 1,263,231 14,423,414 19,750,483 4,307,416 11,999,181

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific
(ex-Japan) Fund

Financial year
ended

Financial year

GlobalAccess Emerging Market
Equity Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond

Fund

Financial year

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usD usD usD usD
Cash and cash equivalents
The Northern Trust Company 3,034,204 2,939,524 15,787,655 38,781,562 6,487,964 39,027,023
Margin cash due from broker:
Goldman Sachs International 239,800 126,596 614,852 4,537,260 - -
3,274,004 3,066,120 16,402,507 43,318,822 6,487,964 39,027,023

* GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund ceased trading on 31 March 2020.
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6. Cash and cash equivalents, cash collateral & margin cash due from broker (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond  GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked  GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt

Fund Bond Fund* Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usD usD usD usD
Cash and cash equivalents
The Northern Trust Company 3,322,616 23,304,827 36,391 2,957,335 10,653,798 12,856,573
Cash held as collateral 390,000 651,000 - 186,000 110,000 -
Margin cash due from broker:
Barclays Bank UK PLC 435,130 127,180 - 164,038 - 3,891,704
Goldman Sachs International - 30,065 - 91 - -
JP Morgan Chase Bank - - - - 734,906 -
Morgan Stanley 1,311,605 444,622 - - - -
5,459,351 24,557,694 36,391 3,307,464 11,498,704 16,748,277

GlobalAccess Global Property

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap

Securities Fund Bond Fund Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usD usD usD usD
Cash and cash equivalents
The Northern Trust Company 6,109,531 3,249,037 9,113,400 11,178,664 3,244,997 5,057,976
Cash held as collateral - - 230,000 540,000 - -
Margin cash due from broker:
Goldman Sachs International - - - - 316,944 70,277
JP Morgan Chase Bank - - 1,969,041 1,942,559 - -
6,109,531 3,249,037 11,312,441 13,661,223 3,561,941 5,128,253

* GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund ceased trading on 27 November 2019.
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6. Cash and cash equivalents, cash collateral & margin cash due from broker (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents
The Northern Trust Company

Cash held as collateral

Margin cash due from broker:
Goldman Sachs International
HSBC

Cash and cash equivalents
The Northern Trust Company
Cash held as collateral
Margin cash due from broker:
Barclays Bank UK PLC
Goldman Sachs International
JP Morgan Chase Bank
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund GlobalAccess Global Equity Income  GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local
Fund Currency Debt Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usD usD usD usD
10,660,674 19,353,732 3,699,695 8,651,076 26,242,081 25,730,981
- - - - 1,620,000 570,000
787,837 631,415 138,380 483,491 - -
- - - - 20,529 -
11,448,511 19,985,147 3,838,075 9,134,567 27,882,610 26,300,981

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha

GlobalAccess Japan Fund

Aggregated total in GBP

Fund

Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP

1,580,851 1,572,550 779,048,706 918,696,984 103,343,091 187,476,070

- - - - 2,224,379 3,728,971

- - - - 541,804 3,405,758

929 11,821 101,070,083 69,661,736 3,458,947 7,270,016

- - - - 2,203,733 1,541,222

- - - - 1,060,911 352,762

1,581,780 1,584,371 880,118,789 988,358,720 112,832,865 203,774,799
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7. Other receivables

Interest income receivable

Dividend income

Sale of securities awaiting settlement
Subscriptions of shares awaiting settlement
Sundry income

Interest income receivable

Dividend income

Sale of securities awaiting settlement
Subscriptions of shares awaiting settlement
Sundry income

GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund*

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities

GlobalAccess Global Government

Fund Bond Fund

Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
GBP GBP GBP GBP usbD usb

- 18 - 5 2 2,547

3,339 204,449 921,242 2,156,304 - -

- 43,941 178,867 74,076 35,599,283 1,686,551

- 49 1,231,393 1,362,900 521,622 94,956

1,217 1 6,617 13,716 29,746 83,409

4,556 248,458 2,338,119 3,607,001 36,150,653 1,867,463

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific
(ex-Japan) Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Emerging Market
Equity Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond

Fund

Financial year

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019

usD usD usD usD usD usD
- 579 22 17,705 - 14,620
172,268 335,804 1,357,351 2,108,881 - -
688,587 493,315 909,374 460,268 3,576,981 1,134,231
261,750 250,026 437,396 672,359 1,403,503 1,446,381
1,471 118 5,936 3,039 7,017 112,814
1,124,076 1,079,842 2,710,079 3,262,252 4,987,501 2,708,046

* GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund ceased trading on 31 March 2020.
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7. Other receivables (continued)

Interest income receivable

Dividend income

Sale of securities awaiting settlement
Subscriptions of shares awaiting settlement
Sundry income

Interest income receivable

Dividend income

Sale of securities awaiting settlement
Subscriptions of shares awaiting settlement
Sundry income

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond

GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt

Fund Bond Fund* Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usb usb usb usb usb usb
3 8,186 - 591 - 2,172
- - - - - 128,478
6,952,349 4,833,463 - 7,489,750 2,805,699 1,847,473
2,318,630 825,055 - - 265,383 477,543
85,985 57,184 - 84,161 4,253 87
9,356,967 5,723,888 - 7,574,502 3,075,335 2,455,753
TRUE TRUE TRUE
GlobalAccess Global Property GlobalAccess Global Short Duration GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap
Securities Fund Bond Fund Equity Fund

Financial year Financial year

Financial year Financial year

Financial year Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usD usD usD usD

- 879 - 9,439 - 2,797

231,682 149,726 - - 89,708 134,712
582,550 293,090 1,019,191 5,108,286 117,623 444,052
198,048 - 911,037 257,675 - 38,024
2,108 278 21,274 34,074 654 11
1,014,388 443973 1,951,502 5,409,474 207,985 619,596

* ClobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund ceased trading on 27 November 2019.
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7. Other receivables (continued)

Interest income receivable

Dividend income

Sale of securities awaiting settlement
Subscriptions of shares awaiting settlement
Sundry income

Interest income receivable

Dividend income

Sale of securities awaiting settlement
Subscriptions of shares awaiting settlement

Sundry income

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund GlobalAccess Global Equity Income  GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local
Fund Currency Debt Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usb usbD usb usbD usbD usbD
- 10,586 - 4,933 - 11,109
353,122 515,980 307,960 522,127 - -
1,547,210 1,386,975 31,672 1,231,131 111,818,055 -
5,786 - 1,215 - 1,727,131 664,076
23,837 22,961 3,798 113 1,754,431 492,621
1,929,955 1,936,502 344,645 1,758,304 115,299,617 1,167,806

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha

GlobalAccess Japan Fund

Aggregated total in GBP

Fund

Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP

- 12 8 206 22 68,381

97,047 154,086 233,892,032 280,476,034 4,799,882 7,637,374

284,233 - 25,414,128 - 134,612,745 21,070,536

231 - 170,246,027 68,419,461 9,022,370 5,612,589

473 - 905,383 287,756 1,584,668 722,634

381,984 154,098 430,457,578 349,183,457 150,019,687 35,111,514
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8. Bank overdraft, cash collateral & margin cash due to broker

Bank overdraft
The Northern Trust Company
Cash pledged as collateral
Margin cash due to broker:
Barclays Bank UK PLC
Goldman Sachs International

Bank overdraft
The Northern Trust Company

GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund*

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities

GlobalAccess Global Government

Fund Bond Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
GBP GBP GBP GBP usD usD
(8,052) - - - - (16,087)
- - - - (554,000) (2,753,000)
- - - - (131,436) (590,307)
- - - - (1,157) (5,242)
(8,052) - - - (686,593) (3,364,636)

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific
(ex-Japan) Fund

Financial year
ended

31 May 2020
usD

Financial year
ended

31 May 2019
usD

GlobalAccess Emerging Market

Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year
ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond

Fund

Financial year
ended

31 May 2020
usD

Financial year
ended

31 May 2019
usbD

* ClobalAccess UK Alpha Fund ceased trading on 31 March 2020.
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8. Bank overdraft, cash collateral & margin cash due to broker (continued)

Bank overdraft
The Northern Trust Company
Cash pledged as collateral
Margin cash due to broker:
Barclays Bank UK PLC
JP Morgan Chase Bank
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc

Bank overdraft

The Northern Trust Company
Cash pledged as collateral
Margin cash due to broker:

JP Morgan Chase Bank

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond

GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt

Fund Bond Fund* Fund

Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usb usb usb usb usb usb

- - - - - (34)

(280,000) (651,000) - (186,000) (50,000) -
(40,846) (65,287) - (2,776) - (1,939,023)

- - - - (127,149) -

- (66,069) - - - -

(320,846) (782,356) - (188,776) (177,149) (1,939,057)

GlobalAccess Global Property
Securities Fund
Financial year Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration
Bond Fund
Financial year Financial year

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap
Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
uUsD usD usD usbD usD usbD

- - (37,308) - - -

- - (260,000) (540,000) - -

- - (2,072,986) (1,667,753) - -

- - (2,370,294) (2,207,753) - -

* GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund ceased trading on 27 November 2019.

109



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued) for the financial year ended 31 May 2020

8. Bank overdraft, cash collateral & margin cash due to broker (continued)

Bank overdraft
The Northern Trust Company
Cash pledged as collateral

Bank overdraft
The Northern Trust Company
Cash pledged as collateral
Margin cash due to broker:
Barclays Bank UK PLC
Goldman Sachs International
JP Morgan Chase Bank
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund

Financial year Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income
Fund

Financial year Financial year

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local
Currency Debt Fund
Financial year Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usD usD usD usD
- - (97,052) - - -
- - - - (1,156,000) (570,000)
- - (97,052) - (1,156,000) (570,000)

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha
Fund

Financial year Financial year

GlobalAccess Japan Fund

Financial year Financial year

Aggregated total in GBP

Financial year Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP

- - - - (116,732) (12,790)

- - - - (1,860,390) (3,728,971)

- - - - (139,353) (2,060,766)

- - - - (936) (4,159)

- - - - (1,779,612) (1,323,192)

- - - - - (52,419)

- - - - (3,897,023) (7,182,297)
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9. Other payables

Interest payable

Investment management fees payable
Other expenses payable

US Dividend WHT payable

Purchase of securities awaiting settlement
Redemptions of shares awaiting settlement

Interest payable

Investment management fees payable
Other expenses payable

US Dividend WHT payable

Purchase of securities awaiting settlement
Redemptions of shares awaiting settlement

GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund*

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities

GlobalAccess Global Government

Fund Bond Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
GBP GBP GBP GBP usb usb
(41) (7) (7) (10) (441) (67)
(7,172) (67,831) (590,924) (779,681) (190,060) (265,635)
(82,630) (83,107) (119,089) (145,115) (147,290) (224,731)
- (157) - - - -
- (89,386) (629,859) (514,959) (52,451,510) (15,368,645)
- - (559,775) (1,506,733) (22,544) (173,887)
(89,843) (240,488) (1,899,654) (2,946,498) (52,811,845) (16,032,965)

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific

GlobalAccess Emerging Market

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond

(ex-Japan) Fund Equity Fund Fund

Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usD usD usD usD

17) (72) (32) (684) (121) (312)
(139,928) (221,073) (1,183,311) (1,666,081) (1,061,337) (1,794,642)
(108,480) (124,747) (229,556) (287,881) (260,040) (385,272)

(11,844) (30,536) (93,356) (113,477) - -
(425,822) (10,036) (1,276,353) (355,961) (4,862,309) (5,083,931)
(173,139) (33,356) (797,512) (986,450) (649,210) (4,800,843)
(859,230) (419,814) (3,580,120) (3,410,534) (6,833,017) (12,065,000)

* GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund ceased trading on 31 March 2020.
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9. Other payables (continued)

Interest payable

Investment management fees payable
Other expenses payable

Purchase of securities awaiting settlement
Redemptions of shares awaiting settlement

Interest payable

Investment management fees payable
Other expenses payable

US Dividend WHT payable

Purchase of securities awaiting settlement
Redemptions of shares awaiting settlement

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond
Fund

Financial year Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked
Bond Fund*
Financial year Financial year

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt
Fund

Financial year Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usD usD usD usD

(526) (448) (9) (47) (14) (10)
(653,895) (768,148) - (68,619) (455,919) (566,580)
(268,863) (374,216) (36,382) (263,156) (177,130) (222,735)
(13,752,821) (25,838,087) - (44,745,125) (2,165,642) (2,112,650)
(305,288) (2,739,395) - (337,606) (134,655) (1,047,349)
(14,981,393) (29,720,294) (36,391) (45,414,553) (2,933,360) (3,949,324)

GlobalAccess Global Property
Securities Fund
Financial year Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration
Bond Fund
Financial year Financial year

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap
Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usD usD usD usD

(40) (10) (144) (79) (17) (8)
(328,779) (198,075) (281,817) (422,269) (207,384) (381,084)
(108,679) (124,826) (156,349) (193,268) (114,793) (141,168)
(37,142) (28,775) - - (25,837) (35,699)
(1,629,348) (394,498) (3,439,264) (8,070,859) (223,165) (310,088)
(146,690) (971,821) (121,920) (369,746) (32,931) (244,285)
(2,250,678) (1,718,005) (3,999,494) (9,056,221) (604,127) (1,112,332)

* ClobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund ceased trading on 27 November 2019.
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9. Other payables (continued)

Interest payable

Investment management fees payable
Other expenses payable

US Dividend WHT payable

Purchase of securities awaiting settlement
Redemptions of shares awaiting settlement

Interest payable

Investment management fees payable
Other expenses payable

US Dividend WHT payable

Purchase of securities awaiting settlement
Redemptions of shares awaiting settlement

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund GlobalAccess Global Equity Income  GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local
Fund Currency Debt Fund

Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019

usb usbD usb usbD usb usb

(21) (12) (56) (72) (114) (4,282)

(358,614) (529,570) (241,698) (491,122) (1,203,333) (782,574)

(122,416) (146,575) (209,397) (191,154) (1,721,752) (435,154)
(105,937) (153,403) - - - -

(158,936) (2,225,615) (290,317) (813,741) (5,728,811) (3,143,581)

(176,261) (626,328) (148,748) (329,346) (121,302,534) (1,696,228)

(922,185) (3,681,503) (890,216) (1,825,435) (129,956,544) (6,061,819)

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha

GlobalAccess Japan Fund

Aggregated total in GBP

Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
EUR EUR JPY JPY GBP GBP
(581) (1,266) (295,377) (272,013) (4,044) (7,966)
(278,266) (492,964) (43,204,414) (56,815,280) (6,273,602) (8,169,059)
(120,352) (157,308) (14,276,371) (17,125,791) (3,378,548) (2,963,783)
(11,122) - (35,083,807) (42,071,407) (495,136) (594,711)
(383,448) (274,710) (14,232,697) (2,103,978) (70,971,133) (86,924,713)
(200,071) (240,220) (16,003,861) (59,018,804) (101,168,450) (13,540,919)
(993,840) (1,166,468) (123,096,527) (177,407,273) (182,290,913) (112,201,151)
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10. Share capital

Authorised capital and subscribers shares

On incorporation, the authorised share capital of the Company was €300,000 divided into 300,000 subscriber shares of a par value of €1 each and 500,000,000,000 redeemable
participating shares of no par value. There are 300,000 subscriber shares currently in issue which are held by the investment manager and nominees of the investment manager.
The subscribers shares are disclosed by way of this note only and do not form part of the net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating shares at the end of the
financial year.

Redeemable participating shares

The issued redeemable participating share capital is at all times equal to the net asset value of the Company. Redeemable participating shares are redeemable at the shareholders'
option and in accordance with the offering documents are classified as financial liabilities. The movement in the number of participating shares is shown in the following tables:
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10. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund*

Class A accumulating shares
Class A distributing shares

Class B accumulating shares
Class B distributing EUR shares
Class laccumulating shares

Class I distributing shares

Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class M distributing USD shares
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Balance at
1)June 2019
44,081
147,582
90,000
62,889
18,144
48,878
245,794
12,618,864
38,167
44,304
96,921
13,546
110,889

Issued during
the year

2,090

* GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund ceased trading on 31 March 2020.

Redeemed

during the year

(44,081)
(149,672)

)
(62.889)
(18,777)
(48,878)

(245,794)

(12,618,864)

(38,167)
(44,304)
(96,921)
(13,546)
(110,889)
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Balance at
31 May 2020

Balance at
1June 2018
68,264
145,045
90,028
62,889
34,365
49,575
1,650,463
19,893,625
45,447
44,304
96,921
38,720
338,163

Issued during
the year

2,537

2,996
152
15,797

Redeemed

during the year

(24,183)
(28;

(19,21 7;
(849)
(1,420,466)
(7,274,761)
(7,280)
(25,1 74;
(227,274)

Balance at
31 May 2019
44,081
147,582
90,000
62,889
18,144
48,878
245,794
12,618,864
38,167
44,304
96,921
13,546
110,889
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10. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B accumulating USD shares
Class I accumulating shares

Class I distributing shares

Class laccumulating EUR shares
Class laccumulating USD shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing USD shares
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Balance at
1June 2019
55,115
31,087
160,000
21,781
10,087
32,718
3,575
146,930
4,165,060
131,747,413
2,822,937
571,973
48,343

38,248
894,700

Issued during

the year
3,124
2,895
35,000
54,513
13,256

1,814,261
23,157,408
12,066
44,577

19,413

Redeemed

during the year

(3,124
(12,793

(21,781
(1,893
(12,240
(2,099
(112,733
(1,562,707
(20,224,078
(1,995,865
(393,072
(48,343

(5,898
(412,532

e ] O~ O~ ' ~— " — ~— ~— | ~— ~—
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Balance at
31 May 2020
55,115
21,189
195,000
62,707
33,734
1,476
34,197
4,416,614
134,680,743
839,138
223,478

32,350
501,581

Balance at
1June 2018
70,040
36,021
380,000
21,781
7,315
29,432
4,253
197,565
4,173,710
122,429,655
2,174,338
975,203
68,507
231,159
42,894
1,770,605

Issued during

the year

1,153,439
31,287,979
986,715
37,715
4,923
5,982
5,047

Redeemed

during the year

(14,925)
(4,934)
(220,000

(1,162,089)
(21,970,221)
(338,116)
(440,945)
(25,087)
(231,159)
(10,628)
(880,952)

Balance at
31 May 2019
55,115
31,087
160,000
21,781
10,087
32,718
3,575
146,930
4,165,060
131,747,413
2,822,937
571,973
48,343

38,248
894,700
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10. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund

Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class B distributing shares

Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B distributing GBP shares
Class I accumulating shares

Class laccumulating GBP shares
Class I distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Balance at
1June 2019
9,513
498,536
276,250
75,926
18,747
46,782
10,708,820
137,378,707
14,832,066
4,628,127
4,027,318
5,533,055
850,463
4,975,331

Issued during
the year

150,332
26,713
1,052,208
2,603,305
1,798,555
190,141

1,255,503

340,152

Redeemed

during the year

(48,730,302)
(15,205,323)
(2,147,031)
(3,018,176)
(2,382,035)
(193,513)
(1,132,062)
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Balance at
31 May 2020
9,513
463,888
36,250

60,094
165,994
65,606
3,637,356
91,251,710
1,425,298
2,671,237
1,009,142
4,406,523
656,950
4,183,421

Balance at
1June 2018
9,513
498,536
429,524

68

75,926
18,644
47,300
7,416,120
90,489,158
14,702,636
10,377,041
5,298,531
111,729,351
797,955
6,108,408

Issued during

the year

696

5,110
10,173,125
76,918,426
3,022,625
2,329,055
894,569
533,482
216,665
362,206

Redeemed Balance at
duringtheyear 31 May 2019
- 9,513

- 498,536

(153,274) 276,250
(68) -

- 75,926

(593) 18,747

(5,628) 46,782
(6,880,425) 10,708,820
(30,028,877) 137,378,707
(2,893,195) 14,832,066
(8,077,969) 4,628,127
(2,165,782) 4,027,318
(106,729,778) 5,533,055
(164,157) 850,463
(1,495,283) 4,975,331



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued) for the financial year ended 31 May 2020

10. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class l accumulating GBP shares
Class I distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class M Distributing GBP shares
(Unhedged)

Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Balance at

1June 2019

79,531
70,000
70,423
63,132
7,010
5,413,181
25,127,268
399,263
1,247,903
726,886

9,400
850,644

Issued during
the year

13,811
634
980,384
287,000
85,423
131,600

1,179

6,817

Redeemed

during the year

(49,383)

(70,423)
(29,640)
(3,374)
(2,839,961)
(5,075,561)
(265,277)
(156,158)
(272,550)

3)

(2,176)
(579,873)
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Balance at
31 May 2020
30,148
70,000
47,303
4,270
3,553,604
20,338,707
133,986
1,177,168
585,936

1,176
7,224
277,588

Balance at
1June 2018
79,531
100,000
70,457
79,811
4,651
7,485,294
16,520,133
417,205
915,523
15,005,621

9,794
2,424,831

Issued during
the year

21,660
4,945
694,460
12,002,517
11,973
410,933
786,982

229,117

Redeemed Balance at
duringtheyear 31 May 2019
- 79,531

(30,000) 70,000
(34) 70,423
(38,339) 63,132
(2,586) 7,010
(2,766,573) 5,413,181
(3,395,382) 25,127,268
(29,915) 399,263
(78,553) 1,247,903
(15,065,717) 726,886
(394) 9,400
(1,803,304) 850,644



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued) for the financial year ended 31 May 2020

10. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A distributing EUR shares
Class A distributing GBP shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B distributing shares

Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class B distributing GBP shares
Class I accumulating shares
Class laccumulating EUR shares
Class l accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class M Distributing GBP shares
(Unhedged)

Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Balance at
1June 2019
2,173,228
1,369,080
71,204
235,588
1,813,443
102,004
139,263
209,388
866,314
13,998
28,653
308,970
9,089
14,908,214
498,081,239
2,472,130
35,163,125
530,146
9,619,748

96,266
28,771,559

Issued during

the year

43,800
32,422
53,925

10
56,502,391
153,642
502,924

879,558

11,244

545,297

Redeemed

during the year

(311,976)
(551,227)

(282,656)
(102,004)
(128)
(41,322)
(643,431)

(5,743)
(63,084)
(14,936)

(8,883,858)
(85,195,761)
(587,694)
(10,919,113)

(1,809,708)
(34)

(23,217)
(14,150,361)
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Balance at
31 May 2020
1,861,252
817,853
71,204
237,429
1,530,787
139,135
168,066
222,883
57,798
22,910
278,308
48,078
6,024,366
469,387,869
2,038,078
24,746,936
530,146
8,689,598

11,210
73,049
15,166,495

Balance at
1June 2018
2,367,202
4,581,595
589,482
411,581
3,920,170
337,004
393,058
209,477
874,732
13,998
37,764
328,283
224,598
43,741,833
476,291,813
42,765,759
37,338,450
687,381
94,962,119

112,194
60,955,035

Issued during

the year

114,925

2,458

16,135
15,007
2,615,765
123,442,303
1,790,188
1,832,712
530,146
1,744,067

2,007
1,114,364

Redeemed

during the year

(193,974)
(3,327,440)
(518,278)
(178,451)
(2,106,727)
(235,000)

(9,111)
(35,448)
(230,516)
(31,449,384)

(101,652,877)

(42,083,817)
(4,008,037)
(687,381)
(87,086,438)

(17,935)
(33,297,840)

Balance at
31 May 2019
2,173,228
1,369,080
71,204
235,588
1,813,443
102,004
139,263
209,388
866,314
13,998
28,653
308,970
9,089
14,908,214
498,081,239
2,472,130
35,163,125
530,146
9,619,748

96,266
28,771,559



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued) for the financial year ended 31 May 2020

10. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A distributing shares

Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A accumulating GBP shares
Class A distributing EUR shares
Class A distributing GBP shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B distributing shares

Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class B distributing EUR shares
Class B distributing GBP shares
Class I accumulating shares
Class I distributing shares

Class laccumulating EUR shares
Class l accumulating GBP shares
Class I distributing EUR shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z distributing shares

Class Z accumulating EUR shares
Class Z distributing EUR shares
Class Z distributing GBP shares

Balance at
1June 2019
2,611,152
3,306,362
3,030,443
652,833
5,152,825
1,180,923
3,948,850
7,110,666
1,552,934
2,254,307
3,051,169
5,540,909
153,858
880,455
3,724,989
394,978
823,400
1,108,571
8,542,226
152,094,981
20,377,430
12,662,115
10,711,678
640,879,826
1,208,931
534,803
12,675,927
3,530,629
125,695

Issued during
the year

632,912

211,527
37,428
3,105
357,294
3,624,783
422,289
694,445
502,498
95,005,842
27,251
298,502
7,595

Redeemed

during the year

(583,520)
(907,038)
(670,799)
(135,135)
(337,869)
(725,495)
(422,379)
(3,081,930)
(544,363)
(130,863)
(900,970)
(1,426,096)

(2,334,914
(36,401

)
)
(36,806)
(2,870,781)
(47,504,960)
(12,663,237)
(3,614,246)
(7,453,926)
(254,733,845)
(304,360)
(37,918)
(5,324,098)
(429,565)
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Balance at
31 May 2020
2,027,632
2,399,324
2,359,644
517,698
4,814,956
466,946
3,556,471
4,028,736
1,008,571
2,123,444
2,783,111
4,114,813
153,858
880,455
1,601,602
396,005
823,400
1,074,870
6,028,739
108,214,804
8,136,482
9,742,314
3,760,250
481,151,823
931,822
496,885
7,650,331
3,108,659
125,695

Balance at
1June 2018
2,734,014
3,943,771
3,692,909
767,886
7,722,253
1,835,473
3,971,989
13,356,019
1,811,676
3,041,014
3,571,350
6,161,080
103,000
2,959,272
7,204,546
432,272
823,400
1,287,835
10,836,752
173,610,780
37,389,129
23,167,274
17,843,119
842,660,721
1,231,283
438,753
27,618,086
4,368,310
125,695

Issued during
the year

26,993
249,233
17,963
110,000
212,618
7,824

329,205
50,858
1,586,967
25,504

36,448
4,088,920
74,409,697
11,638,355
1,380,988
2,796,029
154,458,853
221,462
99,430
247,843
3,094

Redeemed
during the year
(122,862)
(637,409)
(689,459)
(115,053)
(2,818,661)
(672,513)
(133,139)
(6,457,971)
(266,566)
(786,707)
(520,181)
(949,376)

(2,078,817)
(5,066,524)
(62,798)
(215,712)
(6,383,446)
(95,925,496)
(28,650,054)
(11,886,147)
(9,927,470)
(356,239,748)
(243,814)
(3,380)
(15,190,002)
(840,775)

Balance at
31 May 2019
2,611,152
3,306,362
3,030,443
652,833
5,152,825
1,180,923
3,948,850
7,110,666
1,552,934
2,254,307
3,051,169
5,540,909
153,858
880,455
3,724,989
394,978
823,400
1,108,571
8,542,226
152,094,981
20,377,430
12,662,115
10,711,678
640,879,826
1,208,931
534,803
12,675,927
3,530,629
125,695



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued) for the financial year ended 31 May 2020

10. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A distributing GBP shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B distributing shares

Class B distributing EUR shares
Class B distributing GBP shares
Class l accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares
Class Z accumulating GBP shares

Balance at
1June 2019
100,832
214,636
2,483,898
355,131
830,865
238,282
50,794
5,899,024
133,386,711
2,868,855
303,276
398,551
363,452,403
614,214
5,478,596
334,525

Issued during

the year

2,151

23,861
8,498
797,000
1,692,768
458,783

49,416,229

33,458

Redeemed

during the year

(65,867)
(216,787)
(453,898)

(717,743)
(83,426)
(11,570)

(3,432,160)
(39,613,630)
(1,638,507)
(62,579)
(47,412,496)
(128,335)
(2,535,254)
(279,977)
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Balance at
31 May 2020
34,965
2,030,000
355,131
113,122
178,717
47,722
3,263,864
95,465,849
1,689,131
240,697
398,551
365,456,136
485,879
2,976,800
54,548

Balance at
1June 2018
100,832
210,720
4,061,088
355,131
1,530,166
365,714
236,206
49,908
15,987,136
67,897,710
3,971,857
739,588
398,551
485,098,431
628,252
9,140,115
391,317

Issued during

the year

3,916

119,369
16,291
426,600
90,104,581
517,180

60,269,966

301,108
33,597

Redeemed

(1,577,190

(699,301
(365,714
(117,293
(15,405
(10,514,712
(24,615,580
(1,620,182
(436,312

(181,915,994
(14,038
(3,962,627
(90,389

during the year

)
)
)
)

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Balance at
31 May 2019
100,832
214,636
2,483,898
355,131
830,865
238,282
50,794
5,899,024
133,386,711
2,868,855
303,276
398,551
363,452,403
614,214
5,478,596
334,525



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) for the financial year ended 31 May 2020

10. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund*

Class A accumulating shares
Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A distributing EUR shares
Class A distributing GBP shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class B distributing GBP shares
Class l accumulating GBP shares
Class I distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Balance at
1June 2019

260,252
75,649
131,008
804,338
1,185,216
608,403
782,295
15,844
30,413
6,389
5,334,401
7,497,944
503,694
4,501,378
1,724,466

10,269,516

177,609
1,191,199

Issued during
the year

4,038

53,908
77,766
29,970
214,268

Redeemed

during the year

(260,252)
(75,649

)
)
(808.376)
(1,185,216)
(608,403)
(782,295)
(15,844)
(30,413)
(6,389)
(5,388,309)
(7,497,944)
(581,460)
(4,531,348)
(1,724,466)
)

)

)

(10,483,784

(177,609
(1,191,199

* GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund ceased trading on 27 November 2019.
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Balance at
31 May 2020

Balance at
1June 2018
309,315
132,731
131,008
858,658
1,185,216
694,644
782,349
34,024
82,998
46,758
5,881,403
14,594,851
688,480
10,095,077
5,290,268
22,239,580
226,152
2,264,189

Issued during
the year

3,816
139,768

11,306
580,968
337,764
116,354
176,116
122,538

3,407,958

126,269

Redeemed Balance at
duringthe year 31 May 2019
(49,063) 260,252
(57,082) 75,649

- 131,008

(58,136) 804,338
(139,768) 1,185,216
(86,241) 608,403
(54) 782,295
(18,180) 15,844
(52,585) 30,413
(51,675) 6,389
(1,127,970) 5,334,401
(7,434,671) 7,497,944
(301,140) 503,694
(5,769,815) 4,501,378
(3,688,340) 1,724,466
(15,378,022) 10,269,516
(48,543) 177,609
(1,199,259) 1,191,199



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued) for the financial year ended 31 May 2020

10. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A distributing EUR shares
Class A distributing GBP shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B distributing shares

Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class B distributing GBP shares
Class | accumulating shares
Class laccumulating EUR shares
Class l accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z distributing shares

Class Z accumulating EUR shares
Class Z distributing EUR shares
Class Z distributing GBP shares

Balance at
1June 2019
118,318
99,283
298,237
187,209
563,567
165,153
128,525
1,159,622
16,400
191,131
52,579
139,954
5,911,214
67,977,891
2,084,303
1,171,357
1,163,578
224,965,874
284,783
44,309
1,825,989
41,697
865

Issued during

the year

6,068

3,344

3,732
13,506
373,931
1,903,075
100,283
109,240
163,730
33,760,302
2,481
52,708
19,915

Redeemed

during the year

(14,114)
(190,553)

(57,850)

(7,342
(50,972
(7,148
(101,903
(5,403,303
(18,217,494
(1,088,473
(1,111,273
(809,390
(33,367,826
(204,975
(44,309
(755,719
(8,041

I S~ ~— ~— ~— — ~— ~— ~— ~— ~— ~— ~— ~— |
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Balance at
31 May 2020
118,318
91,237
298,237
563,567
165,153
70,675
1,159,622
9,058
140,160
49,163
51,557
881,842
51,663,472
1,096,113
169,324
517,918
225,358,350
82,289
1,122,978
53,571

865

Balance at
1June 2018
155,492
99,283
760,425
179,718
663,567
446,277
226,773
1,726,877
63

16,400
9,734,897
60,411
161,647
4,291,641
50,348,693
31,060,379
5,363,106
4,501,639
242,345,249
218,859
45,728
5,082,389
41,697
50,003

Issued during

the year

202,336
7,491

4,657
7,457
4,759,897
35,873,051
1,143,042
403,062
654,005
64,185,013
102,685
30,028

Redeemed

during the year

(37,174)

(664,524)
(100,000)
(281,124)
(137,431)
(567,255)
(63)
(9,543,766)
(12,489)
(29,150)
(3,140,324)
(18,243,853)
(30,119,118)
(4,594,811)
(3,992,066)
(81,564,388)
(36,761)
(1,419)
(3,286,428)
)

(49,138

Balance at
31 May 2019
118,318
99,283
298,237
187,209
563,567
165,153
128,525
1,159,622
16,400
191,131
52,579
139,954
5,911,214
67,977,891
2,084,303
1,171,357
1,163,578
224,965,874
284,783
44,309
1,825,989
41,697
865
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) for the financial year ended 31 May 2020

10. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A distributing EUR shares
Class A distributing GBP shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class B distributing GBP shares
Class I accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Balance at

1June 2019

54,885

282,486
80,000
149,649
117,000
14,384
11,152
49,293
45,969,383
948,927
989,047
792,545
44,807

Issued during
the year

7,371
6,497

102,309,506

Redeemed

during the year

(54,885)

(117,000)
(336)
(43,414)
(16,368,926)
(657,470)
(496,668)
(303,681)
(34,649)

124

Balance at
31 May 2020

282,486
80,000
149,649
21,419
17,649
5,879
131,909,963
291,457
492,379
515,988
10,158

Balance at
1June 2018

71,146
3,466
282,486
80,000
149,649
117,000
14,905
12,449
831,839
67,706,058
4,506,105
2,820,309
959,739
615,249
83,444

Issued during
the year
54,885

1,481
1,816
11,207
6,760,000
171,737
203,545
143,412
425,169
16,971

Redeemed

during the year

(71,146
(3,466

I~~~ 1

(2,002)
(3,113)
(793,753)
(28,496,675)
(3,728,915)
(2,034,807)
(1,103,151)
(247,873)
(55,608)

Balance at
31 May 2019
54,885

282,486
80,000
149,649
117,000
14,384
11,152
49,293
45,969,383
948,927
989,047
792,545
44,807



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) for the financial year ended 31 May 2020

10. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class B distributing GBP shares
Class l accumulating GBP shares
Class I distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Balance at

1June 2019

52,351
2,790,000
80,843
740,741
398
395,228
3,492,293
98,602,019
315,860
931,544
4,818,920
66,136,297
214,516
3,752,092

Issued during
the year
3,380,000
33,201

15,356
952,511
3,831,022
79,302
6,556,401
33,509,825

8,908

Redeemed

during the year

(44,00)
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Balance at
31 May 2020
8,342
5,750,000
114,044

47

95,179
2,074,771
59,522,245
395,056
791,889
8,505,608
46,047,449
211,942
1,675,196

Balance at
1June 2018
52,351
10,420,000
80,848
740,746
227
395,228
2,705,353
8,222,433
3,448,408
3,075,319
5,743,259
236,852,256
258,916
6,585,030

Issued during
the year

600,000

176

73,843
3,946,746
110,947,884

965,972
19,599,307

1,304,040

Redeemed Balance at
duringtheyear 31 May 2019
- 52,351

(8,230,000) 2,790,000
(5) 80,843

(5) 740,741

(5) 398

(73,843) 395,228
(3,159,806) 3,492,293
(20,568,298) 98,602,019
(3,132,548) 315,860
(2,143,775) 931,544
(1,890,311) 4,818,920
(190,315,266) 66,136,297
(44,400) 214,516
(4,136,978) 3,752,092
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Notes to the financial statements (continued) for the financial year ended 31 May 2020

10. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A accumulating GBP shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B distributing shares

Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class I accumulating GBP shares
Class I distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Balance at

1June 2019

419,395
261,676
1,470,000
154,500
65,274
58,140
136,008
48,756
13,561,289
42,478,068
530,544
3,841,372
179,930
4,470,907
934,500
3,371,217

Issued during
the year

30,010
604
470,755
1,600,273
10,301
118,527
29,285
257,809
39,615
37,585

Redeemed

during the year

(19,881)

(110,000)

(34,170)
(12,952)
(4,749,999)
(14,031,563)
(17,829)
(854,255)

)
(1,624,868)
)

)

(119,640
(1,544,460
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Balance at
31 May 2020
399,514
261,676
1,360,000
154,500
65,274
58,140
131,848
36,408
9,282,045
30,046,778
523,016
3,105,644
112,474
3,103,848
854,475
1,864,342

Balance at
1June 2018
867,335
331,769
3,140,000
154,500
65,274
58,204
155,190
85,719
31,929,321
12,458,392
1,353,259
6,381,170
242,467
66,587,795
1,211,116
5,464,677

Issued during
the year
22,382
120,000

9,391
1,018
1,838,333
41,487,714
21,689
345,253
500,217
27,618
589,933

Redeemed

during the year

(470,322)
(70,093)
(1,790,000)

(64)
(28,573)
(37,981)
(20,206,365)
(11,468,038)
(844,404)
(2,885,051)
(62,537)
(62,617,105)
(304,234)
(2,683,393)

Balance at
31 May 2019
419,395
261,676
1,470,000
154,500
65,274
58,140
136,008
48,756
13,561,289
42,478,068
530,544
3,841,372
179,930
4,470,907
934,500
3,371,217
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10. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A accumulating GBP shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class l accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
(Unhedged)

Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Balance at
1June 2019
54,152
25,707
4,006
59,000
17,596
5,765
1,150
779,345
7,725,695
26,794
57,924

2,799

84,899
933,400

Issued during Redeemed
the year duringthe year
- (3,650)

- (2,800)

- (2,725)

5,000 (4,000)
705 (11)

54 (336)
16,020 (346,029)
157,700 (1,754,699)
2 (4,537)

- (5,320)

385 (2)
1,453 (24,616)
11,641 (411,551)
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Balance at
31 May 2020
50,502
22,907
1,281
60,000
17,596
6,459

868
449,336
6,128,696
22,259
52,604

2,799

383
61,736
533,490

Balance at
1June 2018
61,848
27,309
7,426
131,000
17,596
5,879

843
1,069,057
694,842
32,139
74,842
4,088
8,714,455

111,922
1,672,771

Issued during
the year

16,000

312
42,129
8,248,049
2,353

5

411
22,719

Redeemed

during the year

(7,696)
(1,602)
(3,420)
(88,000)

(114)

(5)
(331,841)
(1,217,196)
(7,698)
(16,923)
(4,088)
(8,711,656)

(27,434)
(762,090)

Balance at
31 May 2019
54,152
25,707
4,006
59,000
17,596
5,765
1,150
779,345
7,725,695
26,794
57,924

2,799

84,899
933,400



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC

Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020
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10. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A distributing shares

Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A accumulating GBP shares
Class A distributing EUR shares
Class A distributing GBP shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B distributing shares

Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class B distributing EUR shares
Class B distributing GBP shares
Class l accumulating shares
Class laccumulating EUR shares
Class l accumulating GBP shares
Class I distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z distributing shares

Class Z accumulating EUR shares
Class Z accumulating GBP shares
Class Z distributing EUR shares

Balance at

1June 2019

73,006
1,264,798
634,811
93,384
3,352,234
131,931
1,263,607
1,613,160
528,594
292,031
1,608,982
748,852
80,081
129,316
76,753
333,003
197,114
63,087,369
843,679
7,471,942
216,488
13,217,997
71,555
98,382
4,214,749
64,208
446,013

Issued during
the year

3,351
6,194

1,387,000

732

14,545

152,191
812
32,910

Redeemed

during the year

(104,941
(52,773

(563,931

)
)
)
2)
8)
6)
3)
8)
8)
9)
(95.866)
(19,711)
(26,023,320)
(59,760)
(2,496,248)
(32,342)
(3,267,576)
(15,211)
(3,668)
(2,154,541)
)

(113,948
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Balance at
31 May 2020
73,006
1,159,857
582,038
93,384
2,788,303
131,931
986,025
1,242,652
437,168
292,031
765,339
170,099
72,073
129,316
53,385
243,331
177,403
38,451,049
783,919
4,976,426
184,146
9,964,966
56,344
94,714
2,212,399
65,020
364,975

Balance at
1June 2018
73,006
1,563,035
670,348
93,384
3,931,780
131,931
1,856,323
2,110,272
3,610,119
360,642
1,940,228
1,019,429
80,081
129,316
80,793
336,658
320,979
2,019,045
1,105,124
8,650,604
202,950
116,763,150
103,795
101,665
8,810,243
152,747
519,973

Issued during
the year

23,681

227,938

2,542
81,391,900
59,760
80,197
46,325
4,484,376
871

67,138
3,712
1,129

Redeemed Balance at
duringtheyear 31 May 2019
- 73,006

(298,237) 1,264,798
(35,537) 634,811

- 93,384

(603,227) 3,352,234

- 131,931

(820,654) 1,263,607
(497,112) 1,613,160
(3,081,525) 528,594
(68,611) 292,031
(331,246) 1,608,982
(271,328) 748,852

- 80,081

- 129,316

(4,040) 76,753
(6,197) 333,003
(123,865) 197,114
(20,323,576) 63,087,369
(321,205) 843,679
(1,258,859) 7,471,942
(32,787) 216,488
(108,029,529) 13,217,997
(32,240) 71,555
(4,154) 98,382
(4,662,632) 4,214,749
(92,251) 64,208
(75,089) 446,013
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10. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund
Issued during

Class B accumulating shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares

Balance at
1June 2019
1,078,878
45,544
5,855,406
671,373,466
85,617
201,328

the year
500,000
25,785
650,000
82,450,426

1,462,464
671,011,485

Redeemed

during the year

(2,298)
(3,593,472)

(148,059,870)

(201,328)
(343,086)

(180,355,135)
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Balance at
31 May 2020
1,578,878
69,031
2,911,934
605,764,022
85,617
1,119,378
490,656,350

Balance at
1June 2018
2,122,719
44,522
681,639,565
85,617
206,515

Issued during

the year
20,189
7,600,000
140,175,525

Redeemed
during the year
(1,043,841)
(19,167)
(1,744,594)
(150,441,624)
(5,187)

Balance at
31 May 2019
1,078,878
45,544
5,855,406
671,373,466
85,617
201,328
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10. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund

Balance at Issued during the Redeemed during

1June 2019
Class A accumulating shares 2,208,820
Class A distributing shares 50,807
Class A accumulating GBP shares 527,892
Class A accumulating USD shares 420,172
Class B accumulating shares 96,846
Class B distributing shares -
Class B accumulating GBP shares 860,633
Class B accumulating USD shares 460,909
Class | accumulating shares 88,358
Class | accumulating GBP shares 44,990
Class I accumulating USD shares 224,392
Class | distributing GBP shares 61,213
Class M accumulating shares 14,515,327
Class M distributing shares 55,749,530
Class M accumulating GBP shares 1,231,633
Class M accumulating USD shares 607,345
Class M distributing GBP shares 181,932
Class M distributing GBP shares
(Unhedged) -
Class M distributing USD shares -
Class Z accumulating shares 12,951,938

year
507
859
7,335

1,133

4,060
379,987
110,314

2,337

112,548

the year
(469,783)
(21,934

(338,796)
(100,365)
(38,740)
(7,326)
(174,491)
(29,086)
(6,347,505)
(18,273,877)
(287,841)
(197,325)

(3,967,407)
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Balance at

31 May 2020
1,739,544
29,732
527,892
357,875
96,846

521,837
360,544
49,618
38,797
49,901
36,187
8,547,809
37,585,967
943,792
410,020
181,932

2,315

9,097,079

Balance at
1 June 2018
2,700,423
87,661
573,984
551,123
265,885
48,497
913,633
586,562
163,008
65,403
300,932
57,779
33,827,023
47,364,181
3,500,195
2,503,301
39,605,013

470,899
19,174,946

Issued during Redeemed during

the year

625

2,645

3,504
2,847,162
35,807,910
87,906

37,632
353,759

the year
(491,603)
(37,479)
(46,092)
(143,993)
(169,039)
(48,497)
(53,000)
(125,653)
(74,650)
(23,058)
(76,540)
(70)
(22,158,858)
(27,422,561)
(2,356,468)
(1,895,956)
(39,423,081)

(508,531)
(6,576,767)

Balance at

31 May 2019
2,208,820
50,807
527,892
420,172
96,846

860,633
460,909
88,358
44,990
224,392
61,213
14,515,327
55,749,530
1,231,633
607,345
181,932

12,951,938
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10. Share capital (continued)

GlobalAccess Japan Fund

Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A accumulating USD shares
Class B accumulating USD shares
Class I accumulating GBP shares
Class I distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class M distributing USD shares
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

Balance at
1June 2019
92,673
9,499
230,000
26,220
7,803
6,856,739
153,559,884
228,559
180,647
1,296,917
152,285
616,962
55,989
2,198,655

Issued during

the year

22,868
4,177
782,499
21,690,225

11,305

Redeemed

during the year
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Balance at
31 May 2020
66,635
5,981
190,000
46,708
9,215
3,814,100
142,340,576
134,040
113,359
753,899

271,234

6,296
1,338,865

Balance at
1June 2018
114,694
19,847
3,540,000
26,455
9,209
7,152,952
131,278,358
4,327,270
237,876
1,514,453
133,153
28,768,652
97,388
55,989
4,108,625

Issued during

the year
40,802

10,638
1,889
624,000
45,823,308
280,648
51,089
78,662
19,132
27,199
28,829

134,748

Redeemed

during the year

(62,823)
(10,348)
(3,310,000)
(10,873)
(3,295)
(920,213)
(23,541,782)
(4,379,359)
(108,318)
(296,198)

(28,178,889)
(126,217)

(2,044,718)

Balance at
31 May 2019
92,673
9,499
230,000
26,220
7,803
6,856,739
153,559,884
228,559
180,647
1,296,917
152,285
616,962
55,989
2,198,655
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11. Net asset value

GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund*

As at 31 May 2020 As at 31 May 2019 As at 31 May 2018
Net asset value per Net asset value per Net asset value per
Net asset value share Net asset value share Net asset value share

Class A accumulating shares - - £96,463 £2.1883 £163,973 £2.4020
Class A distributing shares - - £302,135 £2.0472 £332,305 £2.9100
Class B accumulating shares - - £206,820 £2.2980 £226,509 £2.5160
Class B distributing EUR shares - - €143,736 €2.2856 €162,677 €2.5867
Class | accumulating shares - - £42,429 £2.3385 £87,715 £2.5525
Class | distributing shares - - £99,513 £2.0359 £112,950 £2.2784
Class M accumulating shares - - £566,677 £2.3055 £4,147,535 £2.5130
Class M distributing shares - - £25,710,892 £2.0375 £45,360,229 £2.2801
Class M accumulating EUR shares - - €142,451 €3.7323 €187,047 €4.1157
Class M accumulating USD shares - - $177,080 $3.9969 $189,676 $4.2812
Class M distributing USD shares - - $351,200 $3.6236 $385,807 $3.981
Class Z accumulating shares - - £30,251 £2.2332 £95,462 £2.4654
Class Z accumulating EUR shares - - €285,913 €2.5784 €973,776 €2.8796

* GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund ceased trading on 31 March 2020.
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11. Net asset value (continued)
GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund

As at 31 May 2020
Net asset value per

Net asset value share
Class A accumulating shares £152,610 £2.7690
Class A accumulating EUR shares €65,783 €3.1046
Class B accumulating shares £633,230 £3.2473
Class B accumulating USD shares - -
Class I accumulating shares £178,693 £2.8497
Class I distributing shares £83,879 £2.4865
Class I accumulating EUR shares €4,946 €3.3517
Class | accumulating USD shares $173,407 $5.0708
Class M accumulating shares £13,279,857 £3.0068
Class M distributing shares £334,609,568 £2.4845
Class M accumulating EUR shares €2,767,078 €3.2975
Class M accumulating USD shares $1,133,737 $5.0731
Class M distributing EUR shares - -
Class M distributing USD shares - -
Class Z accumulating shares £173,522 £5.3639
Class Z accumulating EUR shares €1,593,002 €3.1760

As at 31 May 2019

Net asset value

£175,787
€111,345
£596,999
$119,747
£32,915
£95,609
€13,743
$830,017
£14,315,973
£384,633,756
€10,655,704
$3,225,987
€163,948
£237,500
€3,293,991

Net asset value per

share
£3.1895
€3.5817
£3.7312
$5.4978
£3.2630
£2.9222
€3.8438
$5.6491
£3.4372
£2.9195
€3.7747
$5.6401
€3.3914
£6.2094
€3.6817

As at 31 May 2018
Net asset value per

Net asset value share
£226,522 £3.2342
€132,477 €3.6778
£1,434,154 £3.7741
$119,065 $5.4664
£24,058 £3.2889
£88,738 £3.0150
€16,683 €3.9226
$1,105,752 $5.5968
£14,437,053 £0.4590
£368,785,956 £3.0122
€8,363,779 €3.8466
$5,441,700 $5.5801
€242,683 €3.5425
$1,140,752 $4.9350
£271,454 £6.3285
€6,728,577 €3.8002
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11. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund

Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class B distributing shares

Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B distributing GBP shares
Class I accumulating shares

Class l accumulating GBP shares
Class I distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

As at 31 May 2020
Net asset value per

Net asset value

€9,932
$608,414
€34,904
$80,657
£133,754
£51,180
$5,585,146
$120,457,653
€1,367,427
£2,185,336
€898,203
£3,651,537
$849,036
€3,506,335

€1.0440
$1.3116
€0.9629

$1.3422
£0.8058
£0.7801
$1.5355
$1.3201
€0.9594
£0.8181
€0.8901
£0.8287
$1.2924
€0.8382

As at 31 May 2019

Net asset value
€9,657
$618,016
€258,018
$95,935
£14,472
£35,094
$15,457,791
$171,442,007
€13,744,362
£3,621,429
€3,475,508
£4,408,722
$1,040,330
€4,054,905
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Net asset value per
share
€1.0151
$1.2397
€0.9340

$1.2635
£0.7720
£0.7502
$1.4435
$1.2480
€0.9267
£0.7825
€0.8630
£0.7968
$1.2233
€0.8150

As at 31 May 2018
Net asset value per

Net asset value
€9,492
$588,500
€393,547
£53
$91,023
£13,894
£34,381
$10,141,129
$107,505,267
€13,296,687
£7,827,426
€4,484,727
£86,249,219
$931,276
€4,893,452

€0.9978
$1.1805
€0.9162
£0.7846
$1.1988
£0.7453
£0.7269
$1.3674
$1.1880
€0.9043
£0.7543
€0.8464
£0.7719
$1.1671
€0.8011
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11. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class l accumulating GBP shares
Class I distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class M Distributing GBP shares (Unhedged)
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

As at 31 May 2020

Net asset value
$98,355
$257,622
£90,327
£7,542
$5,662,149
$62,440,691
€311,655
£2,426,110
£1,039,009
£2,244
$22,490
€587,640

Net asset value per

share
$3.2624
$3.6803
£1.9095
£1.7664
$1.5934
$3.0700
€2.3260
£2.0610
£1.7732
£1.9078
$3.1133
€2.1170

As at 31 May 2019

Net asset value
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$275,141
$272,517
£149,577
£130,818
£13,626
$9,078,775
$82,504,086
€1,008,324
£2,786,362
£1,418,309

$31,190
€1,978,691

Net asset value per

share
$3.4595
$3.8931
£2.1240
£2.0721
£1.9438
$1.6772
$3.2834
€2.5255
£2.2328
£1.9512
$3.3181
€2.3261

As at 31 May 2018
Net asset value per

Net asset value share
$310,667 $3.9062
$438,469 $4.3847
£172,036 £2.4417
£189,434 £2.3735
£10,463 £2.2496
$14,069,003 $1.8796
$61,510,932 $3.7234
€1,218,304 €2.9201
£2,338,464 £2.5543
£33,887,033 £2.2583
$36,879 $3.7655
€6,607,656 €2.7250
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11. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A distributing shares

Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A accumulating GBP shares
Class A distributing EUR shares
Class A distributing GBP shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B distributing shares

Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class B distributing GBP shares
Class l accumulating shares

Class laccumulating EUR shares
Class I accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class M distributing GBP shares (Unhedged)
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

As at 31 May 2020
Net asset value per

Net asset value

$1,903,195

€531,996
€46,094
£128,793
$1,427,386
€94,261
£95,776
£126,760
$59,255
€15,568
£161,951
£25,875
$6,053,335
$442,291,463
€1,421,578
£15,272,910
€332,784
£4,660,040
$6,471
$71,619
€9,077,483

$1.0225

€0.6505
€0.6474
£0.5424
$0.9325
€0.6775
£0.5699
£0.5687
$1.0252
€0.6795
£0.5819
£0.5382
$1.0048
$0.9423
€0.6975
£0.6172
€0.6277
£0.5363
$0.5773
$0.9804
€0.5985

As at 31 May 2019

Net asset value
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$2,431,782

€1,005,644
€52,539
£145,796
$1,845,842
$106,707
€106,288
£134,199
£561,704
$15,640
€21,903
£201,933
£5,582
$16,303,282
$519,646,197
€1,936,723
£24,332,815
€380,658
£5,884,042

$103,796
€19,548,714

Net asset value per

share
$1.1190

€0.7345
€0.7379
£0.6189
$1.0179
$1.0461
€0.7632
£0.6409
£0.6484
$1.1173
€0.7644
£0.6536
£0.6141
$1.0936
$1.0433
€0.7834
£0.6920
€0.7180
£0.6117

$1.0782
€0.6794

As at 31 May 2018
Net asset value per

Net asset value
$2,893,911

€3,799,852
€494,482
£286,146
$4,349,759
$388,527
€337,627
£149,340
£637,996
$17,018
€32,454
£238,298
£155,116
$51,973,483
$547,848,792
€37,630,081
£28,653,992
€561,491
£65,355,851

$132,836
€46,989,102

$1.2225

€0.8294

€0.8389
£0.6952
$1.1096
$1.1529
€0.8590
£0.7129
£0.7293
$1.2157
€0.8594
£0.7259
£0.6906
$1.1882
$1.1502
€0.8799
£0.7674
€0.8169
£0.6882

$1.1840
€0.7709
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11. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A distributing shares

Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A accumulating GBP shares
Class A distributing EUR shares
Class A distributing GBP shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B distributing shares

Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class B distributing EUR shares
Class B distributing GBP shares
Class | accumulating shares
Class | distributing shares

Class I accumulating EUR shares
Class l accumulating GBP shares
Class I distributing EUR shares
Class I distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z distributing shares

Class Z accumulating EUR shares
Class Z distributing EUR shares
Class Z distributing GBP shares

As at 31 May 2020
Net asset value per

Net asset value

$3,453,478
$2,540,105
€2,563,539
£495,343
€3,430,244
£290,635
$6,635,016
$4,325,460
€1,223,046
£2,378,252
€2,006,961
£2,748,756
$248,883
$942,855
€1,771,287
£359,685
€599,907
£688,043
$14,293,068
$114,733,304
€10,206,379
£11,307,930
€2,683,423
£301,656,116
$1,689,608
$532,691
€8,559,666
€2,269,067
£81,982

$1.7032
$1.0587
€1.0864
£0.9568
€0.7124
£0.6224
$1.8656
$1.0737
€1.2127
£1.1200
€0.7211
£0.6680
$1.6176
$1.0709
€1.1059
£0.9083
€0.7286
£0.6401
$2.3708
$1.0602
€1.2544
£1.1607
€0.7136
£0.6269
$1.8132
$1.0721
€1.1189
€0.7299
£0.6522

As at 31 May 2019

Net asset value
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$4,515,325
$3,725,410
€3,440,875
£649,100
€4,020,085
£800,139
$7,464,799
$8,124,842
€1,964,244
£2,618,842
€2,409,547
£4,029,627
$251,557
$1,003,496
€4,285,600
£371,204
€656,990
£772,655
$20,449,546
$171,633,962
€26,568,338
£15,192,667
€8,371,529
£437,459,155
$2,234,501
$610,155
€14,878,253
€2,821,960
£89,253

Net asset value per
share
$1.7292
$1.1267
€1.1354
£0.9943
€0.7802
£0.6775
$1.8903
$1.1426
€1.2649
£1.1617
€0.7897
£0.7273
$1.6350
$1.1397
€1.1505
£0.9398
€0.7979
£0.6970
$2.3939
$1.1285
€1.3038
£1.1999
€0.7815
£0.6826
$1.8483
$1.1409
€1.1737
€0.7993
£0.7101

As at 31 May 2018
Net asset value per

Net asset value
$4,633,422
$4,565,272
€4,233,194

£761,940
€6,381,833
£1,301,240
$7,343,902
$15,677,993
€2,308,735
£3,518,733
€2,986,743
£4,689,282
$164,298
$3,465,087
€8,332,210
£403,591
€695,999
£939,421
$25,284,486
$201,280,340
€48,944,784
£27,592,593
€14,773,218
£601,952,512
$2,239,368
$514,259
€32,862,381
€3,698,603
£93,402

$1.6947
$1.1576
€1.1463
£0.9923
€0.8265
£0.7090
$1.8489
$1.1739
€1.2743
£1.1571
€0.8363
£0.7611
$1.5951
$1.1709
€1.1565
£0.9337
€0.8453
£0.7295
$2.3211
$1.1586
€1.3090
£1.1911
€0.8279
£0.7144
$1.8187
$1.1721
€1.1899
€0.8467
£0.7431
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11. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A distributing GBP shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B distributing shares

Class B distributing EUR shares
Class B distributing GBP shares
Class I accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares
Class Z accumulating GBP shares

As at 31 May 2020
Net asset value per

Net asset value

$51,252
$2,769,275
$435,322
€97,085
£152,445
£33,863
$6,015,632
$115,692,757
€1,852,413
£210,580
€381,807
£280,808,596
$702,688
€3,000,760
£45,282

$1.4658
$1.3642
$1.2258
€0.8582
£0.8530
£0.7096
$1.8431
$1.2119
€1.0967
£0.8749
€0.9580
£0.7684
$1.4462
€1.0080
£0.8301

As at 31 May 2019

Net asset value
$138,903
£155,491

$3,178,149
$416,837
€702,987
£194,217
£35,228
$10,156,945
$154,778,243
€3,025,829
£253,077
€376,252
£272,996,162
$838,943
€5,370,461
£267,808
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Net asset value per

share
$1.3776
£0.7244
$1.2795
$1.1738
€0.8461
£0.8151
£0.6935
$1.7218
$1.1604
€1.0547
£0.8345
€0.9441
£0.7511
$1.3659
€0.9803
£0.8006

As at 31 May 2018
Net asset value per

Net asset value
$130,857
£149,086

$4,886,114
$399,975
€1,279,985
£267,304
£185,313
£33,799
$25,777,968
$75,592,750
€4,040,594
£588,219
€372,114
£355,825,307
$812,459
€8,739,594
£301,877

$1.2978
£0.7075
$1.2032
$1.1263
€0.8365
£0.7309
£0.7769
£0.6773
$1.6124
$1.1133
€1.0173
£0.7953
€0.9336
£0.7335
$1.2932
€0.9562
£0.7714
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11. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund*
As at 31 May 2020
Net asset value per
Net asset value share

Class A accumulating shares - -
Class A accumulating EUR shares - -
Class A distributing EUR shares - -
Class A distributing GBP shares - -
Class B accumulating shares - -
Class B accumulating EUR shares - -
Class B accumulating GBP shares - -
Class B distributing GBP shares - -
Class I accumulating GBP shares - -
Class I distributing GBP shares - -
Class M accumulating shares - -
Class M distributing shares - -
Class M accumulating EUR shares - -
Class M accumulating GBP shares - -
Class M distributing EUR shares - -
Class M distributing GBP shares - -
Class Z accumulating shares - -
Class Z accumulating EUR shares - -

As at 31 May 2019

Net asset value

* GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund ceased trading on 27 November 2019.
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$404,422
€80,941
€137,886
£731,178
$1,900,708
€665,473
£801,791
£15,544
£29,320
£5,772
$9,192,189
$11,289,034
€580,826
£4,471,810
€1,800,772
£10,237,352
$293,206
€1,153,608

Net asset value per
share
$1.5540
€1.0700
€1.0525
£0.9090
$1.6037
€1.0938
£1.0249
£0.9811
£0.9641
£0.9034
$1.7232
$1.5056
€1.1531
£0.9934
€1.0442
£0.9969
$1.6509
€0.9684

As at 31 May 2018
Net asset value per

Net asset value share
$456,971 $1.4774
€139,040 €1.0476
€136,573 €1.0425
£763,660 £0.8894
$1,803,222 $1.5214
€742,534 €1.0689
£773,968 £0.9893
£32,628 £0.9590
£76,950 £0.9271
£41,285 £0.8829
$9,567,415 $1.6267
$21,094,339 $1.4453
€772,116 €1.1215
£9,632,759 £0.9542
€5,462,099 €1.0325
£21,651,851 £0.9736
$354,942 $1.5695
€2,147,204 €0.9484
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11. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A distributing EUR shares
Class A distributing GBP shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B distributing shares

Class B accumulating EUR shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class B distributing GBP shares
Class l accumulating shares
Class laccumulating EUR shares
Class l accumulating GBP shares
Class I distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z distributing shares

Class Z accumulating EUR shares
Class Z distributing EUR shares
Class Z distributing GBP shares

As at 31 May 2020
Net asset value per

Net asset value

$185,760
€98,834
€272,797
$1,138,657
$198,947
€83,580
£1,243,397

$14,132
€142,628
£46,663
£35,789
$1,902,375
$61,678,022
€1,426,262
£189,885
€435,119
£157,841,702
$151,956
€1,227,675
€43,685
£649

$1.5700
€1.0833
€0.9147
$2.0204
$1.2046
€1.1826
£1.0722

$1.5601
€1.0176
£0.9491
£0.6942
$2.1573
$1.1938
€1.3012
£1.1214
€0.8401
£0.7005
$1.8466

€1.0932
€0.8155
£0.7510

As at 31 May 2019

Net asset value
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$187,345
€111,758
€294,031
£145,587
$1,146,078
$208,171
€157,684
£1,281,768

$25,667
€200,982
£51,283
£104,147
$12,776,288
$84,918,771
€2,801,249
£1,348,267
€1,054,056
£168,770,602
$532,063
$55,760
€2,080,447
€36,650
£695

Net asset value per

share
$1.5834
€1.1257
€0.9859
£0.7777
$2.0336
$1.2605
€1.2269
£1.1053

$1.5651
€1.0515
£0.9754
£0.7442
$2.1614
$1.2492
€1.3440
£1.1510
€0.9059
£0.7502
$1.8683
$1.2584
€1.1394
€0.8790
£0.8039

As at 31 May 2018
Net asset value per

Net asset value
$233,999
€109,473
€764,421
£140,964

$1,279,728
$556,708
€271,959
£1,844,001
£52

$24,256
€9,969,145
£56,717
£121,330
$8,756,633
$62,250,395
€40,607,153
£5,940,331
€4,163,000
£183,374,613
$383,720
$56,943
€5,690,346
€37,407
£40,549

$1.5049
€1.1027
€1.0053
£0.7843
$1.9286
$1.2474
€1.1993
£1.0678
£0.8230
$1.4790
€1.0241
£0.9388
£0.7506
$2.0404
$1.2364
€1.3073
£1.1076
€0.9248
£0.7567
$1.7807
$1.2453
€1.1196
€0.8971
£0.8109
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11. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A distributing EUR shares
Class A distributing GBP shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class B distributing GBP shares
Class I accumulating GBP shares
Class I distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

As at 31 May 2020
Net asset value per

Net asset value

£223,941
$122,450
€124,158
£19,766
£13,773
$9,398
$180,510,411
€279,717
£446,541
£391,679
€10,262

£0.7928
$1.5306
€0.8297
£0.9228
£0.7804
$1.5985
$1.3684
€0.9597
£0.9069
£0.7591
€1.0103

As at 31 May 2019

Net asset value
$99,934

£281,212
$143,223
€151,546
£116,554
£16,137
£10,859
$91,795
$75,198,500
€1,101,180
£1,090,667
£750,612
€55,358
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Net asset value per

share
$1.8208

£0.9955
$1.7903
€1.0127
£0.9962
£1.1218
£0.9737
$1.8622
$1.6358
€1.1604
£1.1027
£0.9471
€1.2355

As at 31 May 2018
Net asset value per

Net asset value
€85,271
€3,624
£269,292
$130,564
£140,877
£111,333
£15,489
£11,539
$1,407,776
$103,355,105
€4,899,600
£2,881,746
€1,015,777
£554,622
€97,704

€1.1985
€1.0455
£0.9533
$1.6321
£0.9414
£0.9515
£1.0392
£0.9269
$1.6924
$1.5265
€1.0873
£1.0218
€1.0548
£0.9014
€1.1709
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11. Net asset value (continued)
GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund

As at 31 May 2020
Net asset value per

As at 31 May 2019
Net asset value per

As at 31 May 2018
Net asset value per

Net asset value share Net asset value share Net asset value share
Class A accumulating shares $15,359 $1.8411 $96,258 $1.8387 $93,148 $1.7793
Class B accumulating shares $10,723,933 $1.8650 $5,188,436 $1.8597 $18,722,205 $1.7968
Class B accumulating GBP shares £129,139 £1.1324 £92,918 £1.1494 £91,419 £1.1308
Class B distributing GBP shares - - £777,230 £1.0493 £783,708 £1.0580
Class l accumulating GBP shares £53 £1.1191 £451 £1.1332 £253 £1.1157
Class I distributing GBP shares £93,014 £0.9773 £401,443 £1.0157 £404,804 £1.0242
Class M accumulating shares $4,035,647 $1.9451 $6,766,787 $1.9376 $5,060,265 $1.8705
Class M distributing shares $98,964,791 $1.6627 $167,494,389 $1.6987 $13,833,724 $1.6824
Class M accumulating EUR shares €482,894 €1.2223 €394,526 €1.2491 €4,282,041 €1.2418
Class M accumulating GBP shares £898,001 £1.1340 £1,071,177 £1.1499 £3,475,635 £1.1302
Class M distributing EUR shares €9,322,183 €1.0960 €5,533,064 €1.1482 €6,730,034 €1.1718
Class M distributing GBP shares £45,856,457 £0.9959 £68,410,573 £1.0344 £247,111,272 £1.0433
Class Z accumulating shares $387,219 $1.8270 $391,391 $1.8245 $457,143 $1.7656
Class Z accumulating EUR shares €2,122,949 €1.2673 €4,871,434 €1.2983 €8,523,403 €1.2944
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11. Net asset value (continued)
GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund

As at 31 May 2020
Net asset value per

Net asset value share
Class A accumulating shares $740,545 $1.8536
Class A accumulating GBP shares £283,232 £1.0824
Class B accumulating shares $2,579,677 $1.8968
Class B distributing shares $292,709 $1.8946
Class B accumulating EUR shares €53,461 €0.8190
Class B accumulating GBP shares £63,742 £1.0964
Class | accumulating GBP shares £143,703 £1.0899
Class I distributing GBP shares £39,684 £1.0900
Class M accumulating shares $18,069,213 $1.9467
Class M distributing shares $58,475,395 $1.9461
Class M accumulating EUR shares €617,037 €1.1798
Class M accumulating GBP shares £3,353,817 £1.0799
Class M distributing EUR shares €131,467 €1.1689
Class M distributing GBP shares £3,396,922 £1.0944
Class Z accumulating shares $1,532,889 $1.7940
Class Z accumulating EUR shares €2,280,715 €1.2233
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As at 31 May 2019

Net asset value

$797,882
£302,168
$2,854,442
$299,617
€56,674
£67,825
£157,407
£56,439
$26,926,801
$84,317,339
€661,207
£4,397,792
€222,151
£5,190,398
$1,729,338
€4,407,080

Net asset value per

share
$1.9025
£1.1547
$1.9418
$1.9393
€0.8683
£1.1666
£1.1573
£1.1576
$1.9856
$1.9850
€1.2463
£1.1448
€1.2347
£1.1609
$1.8506
€1.3073

As at 31 May 2018
Net asset value per

Net asset value share
$1,728,778 $1.9932
£409,982 £1.2358
$6,371,817 $2.0292
$313,108 $2.0266
€61,121 €0.9364
£72,488 £1.2454
£191,351 £1.2330
£105,708 £1.2332
$66,022,968 $2.0678
$25,754,752 $2.0673
€1,812,643 €1.3395
£7,771,541 £1.2179
€321,693 €1.3268
£82,235,945 £1.2350
$2,359,995 $1.9486
€7,763,393 €1.4207
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11. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A accumulating EUR shares
Class A accumulating GBP shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class l accumulating GBP shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M distributing EUR shares
Class M distributing GBP shares
Class M Distributing GBP shares (Unhedged)
Class Z accumulating shares
Class Z accumulating EUR shares

As at 31 May 2020

Net asset value
$1,631,733
€528,179
£24,670
$2,155,939
£345,382
£131,468
£16,826
$15,667,735
$217,000,210
€529,844
£1,092,928

£54,459
£8,007
$1,902,711
€11,378,409

Net asset value per

share
$32.3100
€23.0575
£19.2646
$35.9323
£19.6281
£20.3555
£19.3800
$34.8686
$35.4072
€23.8032
£20.7763

£19.4534
£20.8958
$30.8199
€21.3283

As at 31 May 2019

Net asset value
$1,570,045
€547,467
£71,159
$1,897,584
£317,730
£107,350
£20,461
$24,142,022
$244,402,831
€583,171
£1,098,842

£49,989

$2,359,981
€18,481,761
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Net asset value per

share
$28.9932
€21.2964
£17.7634
$32.1624
£18.0566
£18.6220
£17.7894
$30.9773
$31.6351
€21.7653
£18.9704

£17.8568

$27.7974
€19.8005

As at 31 May 2018
Net asset value per

Net asset value share
$1,776,812 $28.7287
€594,438 €21.7671
£133,331 £17.9546
$4,164,452 $31.7897
£320,286 £18.2022
£109,908 £18.6949
£15,145 £17.9656
$32,506,507 $30.4067
$21,762,423 $31.3200
€708,281 €22.0381
£1,421,307 £18.9908
€91,499 €22.3823
£157,068,525 £18.0239
$3,098,416 $27.6837
€34,028,524 €20.3426
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11. Net asset value (continued)
GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund

As at 31 May 2020
Net asset value per

As at31 May 2019
Net asset value per

As at 31 May 2018
Net asset value per

Net asset value share Net asset value share Net asset value share
Class A accumulating shares $166,517 $2.2809 $170,232 $2.3318 $187,688 $2.5709
Class A distributing shares $2,049,522 $1.7670 $2,357,860 $1.8642 $3,310,235 $2.1178
Class A accumulating EUR shares €875,290 €1.5038 €1,005,526 €1.5840 €1,207,802 €1.8017
Class A accumulating GBP shares £125,912 £1.3483 £132,546 £1.4194 £149,100 £1.5966
Class A distributing EUR shares €3,230,493 €1.1586 €4,221,931 €1.2594 €5,806,662 €1.4769
Class A distributing GBP shares £136,761 £1.0366 £148,614 £1.1265 £172,308 £1.3060
Class B accumulating shares $2,302,173 $2.3348 $3,008,548 $2.3809 $4,860,698 $2.6185
Class B distributing shares $2,241,125 $1.8035 $3,061,670 $1.8979 $4,538,722 $2.1508
Class B accumulating EUR shares €695,450 €1.5908 €883,472 €1.6714 €6,845,898 €1.8963
Class B accumulating GBP shares £401,709 £1.3756 £421,823 £1.4444 £584,502 £1.6208
Class B distributing EUR shares €954,348 €1.2470 €2,175,277 €1.3520 €3,068,250 €1.5814
Class B distributing GBP shares €181,326 €1.0660 €865,446 €1.1557 €1,362,413 €1.3365
Class | accumulating shares $167,357 $2.3220 $188,971 $2.3597 $207,099 $2.5861
Class | accumulating EUR shares €202,513 €1.5660 €212,031 €1.6396 €239,747 €1.8540
Class l accumulating GBP shares £70,407 £1.3188 £105,864 £1.3793 £124,605 £1.5423
Class | distributing GBP shares £262,569 £1.0791 £388,154 £1.1656 £452,255 £1.3434
Class M accumulating shares $420,119 $2.3682 $473,657 $2.4030 $844,084 $2.6297
Class M distributing shares $72,523,877 $1.8861 $124,601,420 $1.9751 $4,495,230 $2.2264
Class M accumulating EUR shares €909,509 €1.1602 €1,023,341 €1.2130 €1,513,401 €1.3694
Class M accumulating GBP shares £7,176,960 £1.4422 £11,258,297 £1.5067 £14,552,630 £1.6822
Class M distributing EUR shares €238,542 €1.2954 €302,599 €1.3978 €330,129 €1.6266
Class M distributing GBP shares £11,101,724 £1.1141 £15,880,623 £1.2014 £161,444,607 £1.3827
Class Z accumulating shares $120,496 $2.1386 $157,222 $2.1972 $252,727 $2.4349
Class Z distributing shares $163,676 $1.7281 $180,263 $1.8323 $212,683 $2.0920
Class Z accumulating EUR shares €3,353,737 €1.5159 €6,763,806 €1.6048 €16,165,080 €1.8348
Class Z accumulating GBP shares £79,322 £1.2200 £82,871 £1.2907 £222.827 £1.4588
Class Z distributing EUR shares €428,270 €1.1734 €571,523 €1.2814 €785,264 €1.5102
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11. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund
As at 31 May 2020
Net asset value per

Net asset value share
Class B accumulating shares $1,307,045 $0.8278
Class | distributing GBP shares £24,178 £0.3503
Class M accumulating shares $2,062,532 $0.7083
Class M distributing shares $361,577,216 $0.5969
Class M accumulating EUR shares €44,539 €0.5202
Class M accumulating GBP shares - -
Class M distributing EUR shares €503,336 €0.4497
Class M distributing GBP shares £185,912,083 £0.3789

As at 31 May 2019

Net asset value
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$896,824
£17,153
$4,147,036
$420,437,547
€45,869
£92,392

Net asset value per

share
$0.8313
£0.3766
$0.7082
$0.6262
€0.5358
£0.4589

As at 31 May 2018
Net asset value per

Net asset value share
$1,793,342 $0.8448
£18,229 £0.4094
$454,849,453 $0.6673
€47,933 €0.5599
£97,811 £0.4736
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11. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund

Class A accumulating shares
Class A distributing shares

Class A accumulating GBP shares
Class A accumulating USD shares
Class B accumulating shares
Class B distributing shares

Class B accumulating GBP shares
Class B accumulating USD shares
Class | accumulating shares

Class | accumulating GBP shares
Class | accumulating USD shares
Class | distributing GBP shares
Class M accumulating shares
Class M distributing shares

Class M accumulating EUR shares
Class M accumulating GBP shares
Class M accumulating USD shares
Class M distributing GBP shares

Class M Distributing GBP shares (Unhedged)

Class M distributing USD shares
Class Z accumulating shares

As at 31 May 2020

Net asset value
€3,829,048
€58,949
£998,728
$1,246,020
€228,358

£745,162
$790,280
€112,667
£72,235
$164,061
£59,710
€13,682,412
€75,164,534
€4,242
£1,737,665
$1,367,084
£313,526
£4,715

€18,878,490

Net asset value per
share
€2.2012
€1.9827
£1.8919
$3.4817
€2.3579

£1.4280
$2.1919
€2.2707
£1.8619
$3.2877
£1.6500
€1.6007
€1.9998
€1.8327
£1.8412
$3.3342
£1.7233
£1.8327

€2.0752

As at 31 May 2019

Net asset value
€4,821,232
€101,703
£991,158
$1,411,895
€225,870

£1,216,716
$972,612
€197,772
£82,577
$707,978
£101,889
€22,868,057
€112,386,930

£2,233,741
$1,939,684
£316,355

€26,786,531
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Net asset value per
share
€2.1827
€2.0018
£1.8776
$3.3603
€2.3323

£1.4137
$2.1102
€2.2383
£1.8355
$3.1551
£1.6645
€1.5754
€2.0159

£1.8136
$3.1937
£1.7389

€2.0681

As at 31 May 2018
Net asset value per

Net asset value
€6,081,907
€183,357
£1,100,388
$1,856,781
€638,221
€102,563
£1,315,451
$1,237,826
€374,179
£121,831
$946,169
£99,683
€54,575,832
€100,027,003

£6,434,113
$7,957,234
£71,382,185
$1,347,791
€41,128,965

€2.2522
€2.0917
£1.9171
$3.3691
€2.4004
€2.1148
£1.4398
$2.1104
€2.2955
£1.8627
$3.1441
£1.7253
€1.6134
€2.1119

£1.8383
$3.1787
£1.8024

$2.8622
€2.1449
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11. Net asset value (continued)

GlobalAccess Japan Fund
As at 31 May 2020
Net asset value per

Net asset value share
Class A accumulating EUR shares €84,169 €1.2631
Class A accumulating USD shares $10,425 $1.7431
Class B accumulating USD shares $271,074 $1.4267
Class I accumulating GBP shares £57,369 £1.2283
Class I distributing GBP shares £10,752 £1.1668
Class M accumulating shares ¥642,969,102 ¥168.5769
Class M distributing shares ¥22,905,689,448 ¥160.9217
Class M accumulating EUR shares €177,828 €1.3267
Class M accumulating GBP shares £110,610 £0.9757
Class M accumulating USD shares $1,129,568 $1.4983
Class M distributing EUR shares - -
Class M distributing GBP shares £316,592 £1.1672
Class M distributing USD shares - -
Class Z accumulating shares ¥969,620 ¥153.9937
Class Z accumulating EUR shares €1,618,348 €1.2087

As at 31 May 2019

Net asset value
€114,465
$15,770
$311,755
£31,222
£8,908
¥1,114,309,239
¥24,086,702,454
€294,535
£170,652
$1,837,868
€165,792
£704,655
¥8,411,359
€2,611,955
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Net asset value per
share

€1.2351

$1.6602

$1.3555

£1.1908

£1.1416

¥162.5130

¥156.8562

€1.2887

£0.9448

$1.4171

€1.0887

£1.1421

¥150.2323

€1.1880

As at 31 May 2018
Net asset value per

Net asset value share
€164,452 €1.4338
$37,184 $1.8735
$5,398,081 $1.5249
£35,951 £1.3590
£12,076 £1.3114
¥1,332,200,743 ¥186.2449
¥23,800,846,606 ¥181.3006
€6,427,314 €1.4853
£256,253 £1.0773
$2,403,795 $1.5872
€167,798 €1.2602
£37,735,049 £1.3117
$144,280 $1.4815
¥9,756,951 ¥174.2655
€5,695,655 €1.3863
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12. Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares

Class A distributing shares
Class B distributing shares
Class I distributing shares
Class M distributing shares
Equalisation Income
Equalisation Expense

Class A distributing shares
Class B distributing shares
Class I distributing shares
Class M distributing shares
Class Z distributing shares
Equalisation Income
Equalisation Expense

GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund*

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities

Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Government
Bond Fund

Financial year

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
GBP GBP GBP GBP usD usD
(4,872) (6,197) - - - -
- (2,958) - - (140) -
(2,067) (2,678) (2,609) (2,199) (201) (151)
(535,752) (1,075,817) (10,709,442) (8,887,788) (1,007,707) (1,031,946)
4 6 168,314 219,704 1,494 55,141
(4,967) (74,950) (134,373) (188,146) (16,426) (80,647)
(547,654) (1,162,594) (10,678,110) (8,858,429) (1,022,980) (1,057,603)

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond

Fund Equity Fund Fund

Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended

31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usD usD usD usD

- - (2,691) (6,588) (396,768) (588,266)

- - (9,681) (12,826) (675,636) (1,070,026)

(196) (144) (191) (2,173) (138,168) (248,246)
(1,321,583) (1,165,216) (8,919,497) (8,813,184) (33,851,048) (46,443,469)

- - - - (157,518) (187,383)

2,344 69,952 175,002 311,316 518,632 1,900,916
(27,809) (88,431) (281,913) (384,725) (1,337,481) (3,451,903)
(1,347,244) (1,183,839) (9,038,971) (8,908,180) (36,037,987) (50,088,377)

* GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund ceased trading on 31 March 2020.
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12. Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares (continued)

Class A distributing shares
Class B distributing shares
Class | distributing shares
Class M distributing shares
Class Z distributing shares
Equalisation Income
Equalisation Expense

Class A distributing shares
Class B distributing shares
Class | distributing shares
Class M distributing shares
Equalisation Income
Equalisation Expense

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond

GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt

Fund Bond Fund* Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usbD usb usbD usD usbD
(1,963) (3,567) (11,740) (13,189) (15,361) (45,837)
(19,561) (32,742) (259) (530) (8,240) (19,495)
(888) (1,079) (120) (882) (3,028) (6,817)
(12,240,694) (12,597,586) (447,906) (902,901) (12,801,302) (13,721,657)
- - - - (2,889) (4,139)
151,981 587,261 20 1,170 176,775 716,089
(204,111) (751,072) (810) (8,251) (244,159) (632,044)
(12,315,236) (12,798,785) (460,815) (924,583) (12,898,204) (13,713,900)

GlobalAccess Global Property Securities

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap

Fund Bond Fund Equity Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usD usD usD usD
(9,384) (9,701) - - - -
(1,108) (3,986) (7,449) (25,033) - -
(450) (403) (10,039) (14,124) - -
(2,723,643) (2,361,610) (6,691,017) (8,181,557) - -
674,522 40,635 84,139 898,357 - -
(64,571) (95,701) (240,113) (1,267,022) (192) -
(2,124,634) (2,430,766) (6,864,479) (8,589,379) (192) -

* GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund ceased trading on 27 November 2019.
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12. Distributions to holders of redeemable participating shares (continued)

Class A distributing shares
Class B distributing shares
Class | distributing shares
Class M distributing shares
Class Z distributing shares
Equalisation Income
Equalisation Expense

Class A distributing shares
Class B distributing shares
Class | distributing shares
Class M distributing shares

Equalisation Income
Equalisation Expense

Distributions per share class have not been disclosed as due to the number of classes and currencies involved it would not be practicable to present this information within these

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income

Fund

Financial year

Financial year

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local
Currency Debt Fund

Financial year

Financial year

ended ended ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
usD usD usD usD usD usD

- - (225,215) (291,397) - -

- - (172,696) (275,951) - -

(92) (112) (15,036) (17,328) (1,024) (1,300)
(1,398,485) (2,317,897) (4,100,772) (6,199,770) (25,957,846) (21,525,481)
- - (25,816) (31,070) - -

2,121 156,122 4,436 570,676 921,756 553,612
(39,101) (118,131) (149,624) (873,350) (1,101,995) (573,351)
(1,435,557) (2,280,018) (4,684,723) (7,118,190) (26,139,109) (21,546,520)

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha

Fund GlobalAccess Japan Fund
Financial year Financial year Financial year Financial year
ended ended ended ended
31 May 2020 31 May 2019 31 May 2020 31 May 2019
EUR EUR JPY JPY
(1,746) (2,271) - -
- (1,357) - -
(2,540) (2,343) (15,474) (11,448)
(2,590,784) (3,973,694) (278,883,370) (234,762,997)
294 54,471 8,292,242 26,299,468
(64,165) (225,467) (5,191,272) (26,607,745)
(2,658,941) (4,150,661) (275,797,874) (235,082,722)

financial statements. It is not considered that this information is material to readers of the financial statements.

151



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued) for the financial year ended 31 May 2020

13. Significant shareholders

As at 31 May 2020

Total % of shares held by funds Number of investors holding 20% or ~ Total % of shares held by shareholders
managed by Barclays Investment more of the voting shares who are not  holding 20% or more of the voting shares
Solutions Limited or held by affiliates of affiliates of Barclays Investment in issue who are not affiliates of Barclays

Fund Barclays Investment Solutions Limited Solutions Limited Investment Solutions Limited

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund Nil 1 72.46%

GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund Nil 1 82.38%

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund Nil 1 71.95%

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund Nil 2 89.58%

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund Nil 1 69.10%

GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund Nil 2 95.39%

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund Nil 1 55.61%

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund Nil 1 84.38%

GlobalAccess Japan Fund Nil 2 93.65%

GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund Nil 2 77.08%

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund Nil 1 82.22%

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund Nil 2 74.12%

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund Nil 1 59.89%

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund Nil 1 65.94%

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund Nil 1 68.22%
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13. Significant shareholders (continued)

As at31 May 2019

Total % of shares held by funds Number of investors holding 20% or ~ Total % of shares held by shareholders
managed by Barclays Investment more of the voting shares who are not  holding 20% or more of the voting shares
Solutions Limited or held by affiliates of affiliates of Barclays Investment in issue who are not affiliates of Barclays
Fund Barclays Investment Solutions Limited Solutions Limited Investment Solutions Limited
GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund Nil 1 75.93%
GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund Nil 1 73.67%
GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund Nil 1 73.12%
GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund Nil 1 64.05%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund Nil 1 83.40%
GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund Nil 1 68.07%
GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund Nil 1 84.35%
GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund Nil 1 55.62%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund Nil 2 95.26%
GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund Nil 2 89.28%
GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund Nil 2 87.57%
GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund Nil 1 75.49%
GlobalAccess US Equity Fund Nil 1 48.91%
GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund Nil 1 58.44%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund Nil 1 67.03%
GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund Nil 2 93.34%
GlobalAccess Japan Fund Nil 3 89.01%
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14. Financial risk management

Fair value hierarchy disclosure

IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Funds to classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements for assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position.

The disclosures are based on a three-level fair value hierarchy for the inputs used in valuation techniques to measure fair value. The fair value of financial assets and financial
liabilities traded in an active market (such as trading securities) are based on quoted market prices at the close of trading on the year end date. The quoted market price used for

financial assets held by the Funds is the closing mid-market price as at the Valuation Point on the year end date or the last traded price when no closing mid-market price is
available. The fair value of the currency contracts held by the Funds is arrived at using a pricing model.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if the quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The Funds use a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at the end date. The Funds classify fair value measurements using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy has the following levels:

(i)  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

(i) Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

(i)  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

Investments classified within level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently. Level 3 investments include bonds and equities for the financial year ended 31
May 2020 and 31 May 2019. As observable prices are not available for these securities, the Fund has used valuation techniques to derive the fair value. The level 3 bonds and
equities amounts consist of securities with stale and/or suspended prices.

The total market value of level 3 securities are deemed immaterial for the purposes of presenting a level 3 roll forward table and is also deemed immaterial for a sensitivity analysis
to be included.

The tables on the following pages show a summary of the fair valuations according to the inputs as at 31 May 2020 and 31 May 2019 in valuing the portfolios assets and liabilities.
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14. Financial risk management (continued)

GlobalAccess UK Alpha Fund* As at 31 May 2020 As at 31 May 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP GBP

Assets
Equity securities - - - 26,370,048 - -
Investment funds - - - - 319,745 -
Rights - - - - 6,726 -
Derivatives - - - - 26,356 -
Cash and cash equivalents 93,339 - - 1,166,662 - -
Margin cash due from broker - - - 96,569 - -
Other receivables - 4,556 - - 248,458 -
Total assets 93,339 4,556 - 27,633,279 601,285 -
Liabilities
Derivatives - - - (13,079) (873) -
Bank overdraft (8,052) - - - - -
Other payables - (89,843) - - (240,488) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares - - - - (27,980,124) -
Total liabilities (8,052) (89,843) - (13,079) (28,221,485) -

* ClobalAccess UK Alpha Fund ceased trading on 31 March 2020.

There were no transfers greater than 1% of the NAV between levels for the financial assets and financial liabilities which are recorded at fair value as at 31 May 2020 or as at 31
May 2019.
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14. Financial risk management (continued)

GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund

As at 31 May 2020

As at 31 May 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 1 Level 2
GBP GBP GBP GBP

Assets
Equity securities 337,780,363 - 395,290,125 -
Derivatives 1,447,260 74,429 33,697 402,828
Cash and cash equivalents 13,422,003 - 17,796,987 -
Margin cash due from broker 1,001,411 - 1,953,496 -
Other receivables - 2,338,119 - 3,607,001
Total assets 353,651,037 2,412,548 415,074,305 4,009,829
Liabilities
Derivatives (330) (8,358) (144,105) (3,153)
Other payables - (1,899,654) - (2,946,498)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares - (354,155,243) - (415,990,378)
Total liabilities (330) (356,063,255) (144,105) (418,940,029)
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14. Financial risk management (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund

As at 31 May 2020

As at 31 May 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
usbD usb usb usDbD usbD usbD

Assets
Debt securities - 155,042,434 - - 229,227,664 -
Derivatives 336,161 1,089,114 - 838,979 2,603,565 -
Cash and cash equivalents 3,671,445 - - 9,091,216 - -
Cash held as collateral 400,000 - - 2,753,000 - -
Margin cash due from broker 235,971 - - 154,965 - -
Other receivables - 36,150,653 - - 1,867,463 -
Total assets 4,643,577 192,282,201 - 12,838,160 233,698,692 -
Liabilities
Derivatives (265,264) (1,666,091) - (135,226) (4,160,441) -
Bank overdraft - - - (16,087) - -
Cash pledged as collateral (554,000) - - (2,753,000) - -
Margin cash due to broker (132,593) - - (595,549) - -
Other payables - (52,811,845) - - (16,032,965) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares - (141,495,985) - - (222,843,584) -
Total liabilities (951,857) (195,973,921) - (3,499,862) (243,036,990) -
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14. Financial risk management (continued)

GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund

As at 31 May 2020

As at 31 May 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
usbD uspb usb uspD usb usbD

Assets
Equity securities 67,222,862 - 69,061 92,313,201 - 40,246
Investment funds - 1,192,494 - - 1,659,289 -
P-Notes - 1,771,997 - - 3,658,010 -
Derivatives 42,135 58,132 - - 16,088 -
Cash and cash equivalents 3,034,204 - - 2,939,524 - -
Margin cash due from broker 239,800 - - 126,596 - -
Other receivables - 1,124,076 - - 1,079,842 -
Total assets 70,539,001 4,146,699 69,061 95,379,321 6,413,229 40,246
Liabilities
Derivatives (1,700) (4,510) - (4,504) (248,051) -
Other payables - (859,230) - - (419,814) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares - (73,889,321) - - (101,160,427) -
Total liabilities (1,700) (74,753,061) - (4,504) (101,828,292) -

There were no transfers greater than 1% of the NAV between levels for the financial assets and financial liabilities which are recorded at fair value as at 31 May 2020 or as at 31

May 2019.
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14. Financial risk management (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund

As at 31 May 2020

As at 31 May 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 1 Level 2
usbD usD uspb usb

Assets
Equity securities 459,536,536 - 539,792,919 -
Investment funds - 7,098,033 10,566,319 7,814,202
P-Notes - 7,188,489 - 6,396,555
Warrants - 61,841 - 19,567
Derivatives 47,685 487,016 27,673 107,187
Cash and cash equivalents 15,787,655 - 38,781,562 -
Margin cash due from broker 614,852 - 4,537,260 -
Other receivables - 2,710,079 - 3,262,252
Total assets 475,986,728 17,545,458 593,705,733 17,599,763
Liabilities
Derivatives - (14,137) (379,315) (1,965,998)
Other payables - (3,580,120) - (3,410,535)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares - (489,937,929) - (605,549,648)
Total liabilities - (493,532,186) (379,315) (610,926,181)
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14. Financial risk management (continued)

GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund As at 31 May 2020 As at 31 May 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

usb usb usb usb usb usb

Assets
Equity securities 1,292,067 - 706,802 2,020,620 - 1,293,495
Debt securities - 552,595,887 30,135 - 835,429,408 332,253
Investment funds 21,752,162 - - 31,085,250 - -
Warrants - 26,907 148,038 - 35,145 32,525
Derivatives - 3,679,481 - - 775,444 -
Cash and cash equivalents 6,487,964 - - 39,027,023 - -
Other receivables - 4,987,501 - - 2,708,046 -
Total assets 29,532,193 561,289,776 884,975 72,132,893 838,948,043 1,658,273
Liabilities
Derivatives - (574,102) - - (21,025,910) -
Other payables - (6,833,017) - - (12,065,000) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares - (584,299,825) - - (879,648,299) -
Total liabilities - (591,706,944) - - (912,739,209) -

There were no transfers greater than 1% of the NAV between levels for the financial assets and financial liabilities which are recorded at fair value as at 31 May 2020 or as at 31
May 2019.
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14. Financial risk management (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund

As at 31 May 2020

As at 31 May 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2
usD usD usD usD usD

Assets
Equity securities 211,025 - - - -
Debt securities - 463,891,727 - - 527,830,159
Investment funds 15,226,640 - - 6,866,670 -
Derivatives 296,430 3,123,261 - 1,281,105 1,839,001
Cash and cash equivalents 3,322,616 - - 23,304,827 -
Cash held as collateral 390,000 - - 651,000 -
Margin cash due from broker 1,746,735 - - - 601,867
Other receivables - 9,356,967 - - 5,723,888
Total assets 21,193,446 476,371,955 - 32,103,602 535,994,915
Liabilities
Derivatives (369,319) (2,585,445) - (559,701) (11,742,911)
Cash pledged as collateral (280,000) - - (651,000) -
Margin cash due to broker (40,846) - - - (131,356)
Other payables - (14,981,393) - - (29,720,294)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares - (479,308,398) - - (525,293,255)
Total liabilities (690,165) (496,875,236) - (1,210,701) (566,887,816) -
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14. Financial risk management (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund* As at 31 May 2020 As at 31 May 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

usb usD usb usD usbD usb

Assets
Debt securities - - - - 83,703,306 -
Derivatives - - - 122,310 699,241 -
Cash and cash equivalents 36,391 - - 2,957,335 - -
Cash held as collateral - - - 186,000 - -
Margin cash due from broker - - - 164,129 - -
Other receivables - - - - 7,574,502 -
Total assets 36,391 - - 3,429,774 91,977,049 -
Liabilities
Derivatives - - - (319,021) (944,642) -
Cash pledged as collateral - - - (186,000) - -
Margin cash due to broker - - - (2,776) - -
Other payables - (36,391) - - (45,414,553) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares - - - - (48,539,831) -
Total liabilities - (36,391) - (507,797) (94,899,026) -

* GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund ceased trading on 27 November 2019.
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GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund

As at 31 May 2020 As at 31 May 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
usbD usbD usbD usD usbD usD

Assets
Debt securities - 242,274,355 - - 299,920,249 -
Investment funds 10,918,440 - - 17,524,560 - -
Derivatives 250,307 2,139,600 - 489,042 630,186 -
Cash and cash equivalents 10,913,079 - - 12,856,573 - -
Cash held as collateral 110,000 - - - - -
Margin cash due from broker 734,906 - - 3,891,704 - -
Other receivables - 2,816,055 - - 2,455,753 -
Total assets 22,926,732 247,230,010 - 34,761,879 303,006,188 -
Liabilities
Derivatives (58,895) (528,228) - (679,461) (7,430,244) -
Bank overdraft - - - (34) - -
Cash pledged as collateral (50,000) - - - - -
Margin cash due to broker (127,149) - - (1,939,023) - -
Other payables - (2,933,360) - - (3,949,324) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares - (266,459,110) - - (323,769,981) -
Total liabilities (236,044) (269,920,698) - (2,618,518) (335,149,549) -
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14. Financial risk management (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund As at 31 May 2020 As at 31 May 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

usD usD usD usD usbD usbD

Assets
Equity securities 172,105,765 - - 77,638,637 - -
Investment funds 5,476,322 - - 371,844 - -
Derivatives - 18,757 - - 1,172 -
Cash and cash equivalents 6,109,531 - - 3,249,037 - -
Other receivables - 1,014,388 - - 443,973 -
Total assets 183,691,618 1,033,145 - 81,259,518 445,145 -
Liabilities
Derivatives - (1,158) - - (117,291) -
Other payables - (2,250,678) - - (1,718,005) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares - (182,472,927) - - (79,869,367) -
Total liabilities - (184,724,763) - - (81,704,663) -
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14. Financial risk management (continued)
GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund

As at 31 May 2020 As at 31 May 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
usbD usbD usb usbD usb usbD

Assets
Debt securities - 173,236,898 - - 262,939,842 -
Investment funds 3,484,733 - - 12,994,320 - -
Derivatives 163,691 2,676,207 - 174,069 1,486,077 -
Cash and cash equivalents 9,113,400 - - 11,178,664 - -
Cash held as collateral 230,000 - - 540,000 - -
Margin cash due from broker 1,969,041 - - 1,942,559 - -
Other receivables - 1,951,502 - - 5,409,474 -
Total assets 14,960,865 177,864,607 - 26,829,612 269,835,393 -
Liabilities
Derivatives (86,909) (896,432) - (660,362) (3,591,144) -
Bank overdraft (37,308) - - - - -
Cash pledged as collateral (260,000) - - (540,000) - -
Margin cash due to broker (2,072,986 - - (1,667,753) - -
Other payables - (3,999,494) - - (9,056,221) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares - (185,472,343) - - (281,149,525) -
Total liabilities (2,457,203) (190,368,269) - (2,868,115) (293,796,890) -
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14. Financial risk management (continued)

GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund

As at 31 May 2020

As at 31 May 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
usb usb usb usb usbD

Assets
Equity securities 89,293,690 - 131,285,753 - -
Investment funds 1,429,806 - 306,288 - -
Derivatives 89,992 152,083 - 28,202 -
Cash and cash equivalents 3,244,997 - 5,057,976 - -
Margin cash due from broker 316,944 - 70,277 - -
Other receivables - 207,985 - 619,596 -
Total assets 94,375,429 360,068 136,720,294 647,798 -
Liabilities
Derivatives - (10,297) - (550,960) -
Other payables - (604,127) - (1,112,332) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares - (94,121,073) - (135,704,800) -
Total liabilities - (94,735,497) - (137,368,092) -
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14. Financial risk management (continued)

GlobalAccess US Equity Fund As at 31 May 2020 As at 31 May 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 1 Level 2
usbD usD usD usD
Assets
Equity securities 241,312,846 - 280,514,150 -
Derivatives 152,362 360,473 - 12,880
Cash and cash equivalents 10,660,674 - 19,353,732 -
Margin cash due from broker 787,837 - 631,415 -
Other receivables - 1,929,955 - 1,936,502
Total assets 252,913,719 2,290,428 300,499,297 1,949,382
Liabilities
Derivatives - (20,721) (108,720) (331,678)
Other payables - (922,185) - (3,681,503)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares - (254,261,241) - (298,326,778)
Total liabilities - (255,204,147) (108,720) (302,339,959)
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14. Financial risk management (continued)

GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund As at 31 May 2020 As at 31 May 2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 1 Level 2
usbD usD usD usb
Assets
Equity securities 112,141,568 - 182,607,751 -
Rights - - - 6,165
Derivatives 380,900 731,116 - 212,095
Cash and cash equivalents 3,699,695 - 8,651,076 -
Margin cash due from broker 138,380 - 483,491 -
Other receivables - 344,645 - 1,758,304
Total assets 116,360,543 1,075,761 191,742,318 1,976,564
Liabilities
Derivatives - (29,527) (68,130) (1,593,927)
Bank overdraft (97,052) - - -
Other payables - (890,216) - (1,825,435)
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares - (116,419,509) - (190,231,390)
Total liabilities (97,052) (117,339,252) (68,130) (193,650,752)
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14. Financial risk management (continued)

GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund

As at 31 May 2020

As at 31 May 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
usb usb usb usbD usbD usb

Assets
Debt securities - 530,859,642 - - 387,071,908 -
Investment funds 51,157,352 - - 16,922,052 - -
Derivatives 4,784 19,865,323 - 243,917 3,463,661 -
Cash and cash equivalents 81,242,081 - - 25,730,981 - -
Cash held as collateral 1,620,000 - - 570,000 - -
Margin cash due from broker 20,529 - - - - -
Other receivables - 60,299,617 - - 1,167,806 -
Total assets 134,044,746 611,024,582 - 43,466,950 391,703,375 -
Liabilities
Derivatives - (18,527,546) - - (2,868,505) -
Cash pledged as collateral (1,156,000) - - (570,000) - -
Other payables - (129,956,544) - - (6,061,819) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares - (595,429,238) - - (425,670,001) -
Total liabilities (1,156,000) (743,913,328) - (570,000) (434,600,325) -
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14. Financial risk management (continued)

GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund

As at 31 May 2020

As at 31 May 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR EUR

Assets
Equity securities 117,949,786 - - 175,541,073 - -
Investment funds 767,712 - - 1,463,165 - -
Derivatives - 77 - - 62,920 -
Cash and cash equivalents 1,580,851 - - 1,572,550 - -
Margin cash due from broker 929 - - 11,821 - -
Other receivables - 381,984 - - 154,098 -
Total assets 120,299,278 382,061 - 178,588,609 217,018 -
Liabilities
Derivatives - (156,586) - - (145,069) -
Other payables - (993,840) - - (1,166,468) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares - (119,530,913) - - (177,494,090) -
Total liabilities - (120,681,339) - - (178,805,627) -
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14. Financial risk management (continued)

GlobalAccess Japan Fund

As at 31 May 2020

As at 31 May 2019

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
JPY JPY JPY JPY JPY JPY

Assets
Equity securities 22,767,481,240 - - 24,832,783,380 - -
Derivatives 32,114,998 8,771,965 - - 1,515,153 -
Cash and cash equivalents 779,048,706 - - 987,717,120 - -
Margin cash due from broker 101,070,083 - - 641,600 - -
Other receivables - 430,457,578 - - 349,183,457 -
Total assets 23,679,715,027 439,229,543 - 25,821,142,100 350,698,610 -
Liabilities
Derivatives (2,395,000) (491,391) - (22,000,000) (16,949,573) -
Other payables - (123,096,527) - - (177,407,273) -
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable participating
shares - (23,992,961,652) - - (25,955,483,864) -
Total liabilities (2,395,000) (24,116,549,570) - (22,000,000) (26,149,840,710) -

The primary objective of the Funds is to invest in transferable securities. The Funds also invest in financial derivative instruments, such as futures and forwards, for the purposes of
efficient portfolio management. As at 31 May 2020 and 31 May 2019, some of these derivative transactions were subject to master netting arrangements. All financial derivative
transactions are disclosed in the Schedule of Investments. Margin balances are maintained by the Funds for the purposes of providing collateral on futures.

The fair value of the majority of the financial derivative instruments is less than 1% of the net asset value of the Funds and is therefore considered insignificant. On the grounds of
materiality, the Company has chosen not to present any details of the derivative offsetting arrangements within the financial statements. Where the fair value of the financial
derivative instruments exceeds 1% of the net asset value of the Funds at either an individual or at a counterparty aggregate level, the offsetting agreement in place for these
positions is disclosed by way a footnote in each respective schedule of investments.
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15. Fees

a) Investment management fees

The Investment Manager is entitled to charge a fee of up to 0.90% per annum of the net asset value attributable to the
Class M Shares of each Fund apart from the GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund where the Investment Manager
is entitled to charge a fee up to 1.10%.

The Investment Manager is entitled to charge a fee of up to 1.15% per annum of the net asset value attributable to the
Class | Shares of each Fund apart from the ClobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund. The Investment Manager is
entitled to charge a fee of up to 1.25% per annum of the net asset value attributable to the Class | Shares of the
ClobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund.

The Investment Manager is entitled to charge a fee of up to 2.00% per annum of the net asset value attributable to the
Class A Shares of each Fund.

The Investment Manager is entitled to charge a fee of up to 1.50% per annum of the net asset value attributable to the
Class B Shares of each Fund.

The Investment Manager is entitled to charge a fee of up to 2.50% per annum of the net asset value attributable to the
Class Z Shares and Class Y Shares of each Fund.

The current investment management fees in respect of the Class B Shares of each Fund are as follows:

Fund Class
ClobalAccess UK Alpha Fund 1.20%
GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund 1.25%
ClobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund 0.95%
ClobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund 1.25%
ClobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund 1.25%
ClobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund 1.05%
GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund 0.95%
GlobalAccess Global Inflation Linked Bond Fund 0.95%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund 1.15%
GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund 1.25%
GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund 0.65%
GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund 1.25%
GlobalAccess US Equity Fund 1.25%
GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund 1.25%
ClobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund 1.15%
ClobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund 1.25%
GlobalAccess Japan Fund 1.25%

The investment manager fee entitlements for all Shares Classes of all Funds are unchanged since the prior financial year.

The investment management fee is accrued on a daily basis and determined on the last Dealing Day of each month
based on the average Net Asset Value for the Fund during the relevant month.

When the assets under management fail to reach their optimum levels, a portion of the management charge is waived by
the Investment Manager. There were no fee waivers of such charges during the financial year.
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15. Fees (continued)

b) Administration and Depositary fees

The Administrator and the Depositary shall be entitled to an aggregate annual fee not to exceed 0.20% of the net asset
value of each Fund, billed and payable monthly. The fees of the Administrator are charged based on an accumulation of
assets held in Barclays Investment Solutions Limited, acting through its Wealth Management Division. There is a rate
agreement between Barclays and Northern Trust International Fund Administration Services (Ireland) Limited where the
fees charged are determined by the rate card. The fees are calculated by accumulating all Barclays assets under
Administration with Northern Trust International Fund Administration Services (lreland) Limited and applying the rate
card. The Administrator will be entitled to certain out of pocket expenses, transfer agency fees, financial statements
preparation charges and registrar fees at normal commercial rates. The Depositary shall also be entitled to recover from
the Company transaction charges and out-of-pocket expenses at normal commercial rates.

The fees of the Administrator and Depositary shall be accrued daily based on the daily Net Asset Value of each Fund and
will be paid monthly in arrears out of the assets of each Fund.

¢) Directors’ fees

The Directors shall be entitled to a fee and remuneration for their services at a rate to be determined from time to time
by the Directors provided that no Director may be paid in excess of EUR 40,000 in any one financial year without the
approval of the Board. The total of the Directors' fees for the financial year are GBP 70,781 (31 May 2019: GBP 71,749).
Please refer to note 17 in relation to Directors who did not earn fees during the financial year.

16. Auditors’ remuneration
The remuneration for all work carried out by the statutory audit firm in respect of the financial year is as follows (all
amounts are exclusive of VAT):

Financial year Financial year

ended ended

31 May 2020 31 May 2019

EUR EUR
Statutory audit of financial statements 190,000 200,000
Other assurance services - -
Tax advisory services 142,500 193,895
Other non-audit services - -
332,500 393,895

17. Related party transactions
The following parties are considered to be related parties to the Company as at 31 May 2020:

Directors of the company Séan Blake (independent Director)
David Kingston (independent Director)
Hugh Paul Shovlin (independent Director)
Kishor Mandalia

Investment Manager Barclays Investment Solutions Limited, acting through it
Wealth Management Division

Distributor Barclays Investment Solutions Limited

Counterparty to future contracts Barclays Bank UK plc

The margin cash for futures contracts on each Fund held with Barclays Bank UK PLC is shown in notes 6 and 8. In its
capacity as counterparty to future contracts, the margin cash due from/(to) broker are disclosed within notes 6 and 8.

Fees paid during the financial year to the Investment Manager totalled GBP 28,916,571 (31 May 2019: GBP 34,347,764)
and are shown in note 5. Balances outstanding to the Investment Manager at 31 May 2020 totalled GBP 6,273,602 (31
May 2019: GBP 8,169,059) and are disclosed in note 9. Amounts receivable from the Investment Manager at 31 May
2020 totalled GBP Nil (31 May 2019: GBP Nil).

173



Barclays Multi-Manager Fund PLC Annual Report and Audited
Financial Statements 2020

Notes to the financial statements (continued) for the financial year ended 31 May 2020

17. Related party transactions (continued)
Details the significant shareholdings in the Funds, including those who are a related party to Barclays Investment
Solutions Limited, acting through its Wealth Management Division are disclosed in note 13.

Details of Directors' Fees are disclosed in note 5 and accrued Directors' fees of GBP Nil (31 May 2019: GBP 29,759) are
included in other expenses payable in note 9.

None of the Directors who are employees of Barclays Investment Solutions Limited, acting through its Wealth
Management Division earned Directors' fees during the financial year.

The amounts charged and accrued by Barclays Investment Solutions Limited, pursuant to the Management Support
Services agreement are disclosed in notes 5 and 9.

Barclays Bank UK PLC act as counterparty to forward contracts and futures, these positions are disclosed in the Schedule
of Investments, on pages 176 to 467, where applicable.

The GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund, and GlobalAccess High Yield Bond Fund and GlobalAccess Short Duration
Bond Fund have holdings in a related party of Barclays Bank UK PLC and these positions are disclosed in the Schedule of
Investments on pages 176, 235 and 351 respectively.

18. Taxation
Under current Irish law and practice the Company qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in Section 739B of

the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997 (the "TCA"), as amended. On that basis, it is not chargeable to Irish tax on its income
or gains so long as the Company is resident for tax purposes in Ireland. The Company shall be regarded as resident for
tax purposes in Ireland if it is centrally managed and controlled in Ireland.

However, Irish tax may arise on the happening of a "chargeable event". A chargeable event includes any distribution
payments to Shareholders, any encashment, redemption, cancellation or transfer of shares and the holding of shares at
the end of each eight year period beginning with the acquisition of such shares or the appropriation or cancellation of
shares of a shareholder by the Company for the purposes of meeting the amount of tax payable on a gain arising on a
transfer.

A chargeable event does not include:

(i)  Any transaction in relation to shares held in a recognised clearing system as designated by order of the Revenue
Commissioners of Ireland; or
(i)  An exchange of shares effected by way of arm’s length bargain where no payment is made to the shareholder
representing one sub-fund for another sub-fund of the investment undertaking; or
(i)  An exchange of shares arising on a qualifying amalgamation or reconstruction of the investment undertaking
with another fund, subject to certain conditions; or
(iv)  Certain exchanges of shares between spouses and former spouses.

No Irish tax will arise on the Company in respect of chargeable events in respect of:

a) a Shareholder who is neither Irish resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax purposes, at the time of the
chargeable event, provided appropriate valid declarations in accordance with Schedule 2b of the TCA, are held
by the Company or the Company has been authorised by the Irish Revenue to make gross payments in the
absence of appropriate declarations; and

b) certain exempted Irish tax resident shareholders (as defined by Section 739D TCA), who have provided the
Company with the necessary signed statutory declarations.
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18. Taxation (continued)

Any dividends, interest and capital gains received by the Company from securities issued in countries other than Ireland
may be subject to taxes, included withholding tax, imposed by the country from which the investment income/gain
arises. The Company may not be able to benefit from the reduced rates of withholding tax by virtue of the double
taxation treaties in operation between Ireland and other countries and such taxes may be not recoverable by the
Company or its shareholders.

19. Segregated liability

The Company is structured as an umbrella fund with segregated liability between its Funds. As a matter of Irish law, the
assets of one Fund will not be available to meet the liabilities of another. However, the Company is a single legal entity
that may operate or have assets held on its behalf or be subject to claims in other jurisdictions that may not necessarily
recognise such segregation.

20. Significant events during the financial year
A number of share class terminations occurred within the Funds during the financial year. Please refer to 'Funds at a
glance section within 'Background to the Company' on pages 8 to 14 for details.

A new Prospectus was issued on 11 February 2020, replacing the previous Prospectus dated 18 February 2019. The new
Prospectus added, among others, specific disclosures related to investing in fixed income securities listed on the China
Interbank Bond Market, changes in the naming of the hedged share classes in the share classes schedule, a sub-
custodian appendix and changes to eligible markets.

Beginning in January 2020, global financial markets have experienced and continue to experience significant volatility
resulting from the spread of COVID-19. The effects of COVID-19 have and may continue to adversely affect the global
economy all of which may negatively impact the Company’s performance. The Company is comfortable that it has
reserves to cope with the potential impact of COVID-19. In terms of operations, the Company has assessed its own
resilience and the resilience of all relevant third party service providers and have confirmed that there are business
continuity plans in place to mitigate the impact of COVID-19 across their operations. No operational disturbances have
been identified as of now. Management and the Board of Directors continue to assess and monitor the impact on the
underlying business of the global COVID-19 pandemic and take all possible steps to mitigate the risk to the business and
ensure that the Company can continue to operate as a going concern.

Further updates were made to the Investment Objective and Policy of the Funds on 14 February 2020 in order to make
these clearer to investors. Investors were notified of the changes in late February and the updated prospectus reflecting
these changes can be found at www.barclaysinvestments.com.

Other than noted above, there have been no significant events during the financial year, which, in the opinion of the
Directors of the Company, require an amendment to or disclosure in the financial statements for the financial year ended
31 May 2020.

21. Significant events since the financial year end

On 2 June 2020, the following dividends were declared by each Fund based on the net income available for distribution
as at the year-end date. These financial statements do not reflect this dividend payable.
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21. Significant events since the financial year end (continued)

Fund Currency Amounts paid
GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund GBP 1,831,942
GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund usb 138,794
GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund usD 224,979
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund usb 2,158,212
GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund usD 7,161,444
GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund usb 2,883,911
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund usD 2,530,799
GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund usD 1,183,442
GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund usb 981,895
GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund usD -
GlobalAccess US Equity Fund usbD 265,124
GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund usD 868,027
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund usbD 5,200,034
GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund EUR 564,839
GlobalAccess Japan Fund JPY 138,889,338
Since the financial year end, the capital transactions and performance of the Funds were as follows:

Fund Currency Subscriptions  Redemptions Performance*
GlobalAccess UK Opportunities Fund GBP 49,263,087 (19,668,231) (4.19%)
GlobalAccess Global Government Bond Fund usD 2,985,089 (2,271,644) 1.79%
GlobalAccess Asia Pacific (ex-Japan) Fund usD 1,383,082 (6,482,465) 17.05%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Equity Fund usb 18,908,808 (24,563,208) 15.78%
GlobalAccess Global High Yield Bond Fund usD 19,785,233 (50,001,103) 3.45%
GlobalAccess Global Corporate Bond Fund usb 30,409,293 (16,104,778) 3.09%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Debt Fund usD 10,936,989 (10,875,596) 4.85%
GlobalAccess Global Property Securities Fund usD 8,284,535 (11,127,857) 4.84%
GlobalAccess Global Short Duration Bond Fund usD 5,064,186 (9,486,327) 2.31%
GlobalAccess US Small & Mid Cap Equity Fund usb 451,557 (5,634,843) 6.20%
GlobalAccess US Equity Fund usb 434,096 (20,131,112) 8.00%
GlobalAccess Global Equity Income Fund usD 96,314 (7,445,293) 7.94%
GlobalAccess Emerging Market Local Currency Debt Fund usD 14,056,484  (248,055,879) 0.34%
GlobalAccess Europe (ex-UK) Alpha Fund EUR 828,920 (6,793,392) 5.87%
GlobalAccess Japan Fund JPY 1,249,832,892  (709,022,967) 7.22%

* Class M Distributing Shares’ performance which was deemed by the Directors of the Company as being the most

representative share class of each Fund.

There have been no other significant events since the financial year end through to 24 September 2020, which, in the
opinion of the Directors of the Company, require an amendment to or disclosure in the financial statements for the

financial year ended 31 May 2020.

22. Approval of the financial statements

The Board of Directors of the Company approved the financial statements on 24 September 2020.
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Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2020

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2019.

Holdings

142,990

1,190,391

66,974

840,800
224,907

180,969
379,611

579,000

3,632,652
719,830

250,449
427,194
130,980
1,736,289
40,167
29,222

1,508,738
1,587,482

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Equities: 95.37% (31 May 2019: 95.02%)
Cayman Islands: 0.54% (31 May 2019: 0.50%)

Entertainment: 0.54% (31 May 2019: 0.50%)
Manchester United Plc Class A Com USD0.0005

Total Cayman Islands

Jersey: 2.05% (31 May 2019: 1.54%)

Advertising: 2.05% (31 May 2019: 1.54%)
WPP PLC Com GBPO0.10

Total Jersey

Netherlands: 1.26% (31 May 2019: 1.26%)

Beverages: 1.26% (31 May 2019: 1.26%)
Heineken Holding NV Com EUR1.60

Total Netherlands

United Kingdom: 89.67% (31 May 2019: 90.22%)

Aerospace/defense: 2.43% (31 May 2019: 3.50%)

BAE Systems PLC Com GBPO0.03
Ultra Electronics GBP5.00

Agriculture: 3.20% (31 May 2019: 2.69%)
British American Tobacco PLC Com GBP0.25
Imperial Brands PLC Com GBPO0.10

Apparel: 2.45% (31 May 2019: 2.30%)
Burberry Group PLC Com GBP0.0005

Banks: 1.94% (31 May 2019: 3.61%)
Barclays PLC Com GBP0.25"
HSBC Holdings PLC Com USD0.50

Beverages: 5.84% (31 May 2019: 5.24%)

A.G. Barr PLC Com GBP0.04

Diageo GBP28.93518

Fevertree Drinks PLC Com GBP0.0025

Stock Spirits Group PLC Com GBP0.10

Young & Co's Brewery PLC Class A Com GBPO0.13
Young & Co's Brewery PLC Com GBPO0.13

Chemicals: 1.59% (31 May 2019: 2.37%)
Elementis PLC GBP5.00
Essentra PLC Com GBPO0.25
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Currency

usbD

GBP

EUR

GBP
GBP

GBP
GBP

GBP

GBP
GBP

GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP

GBP
GBP

Fair value % of net
GBP assets

1,922,263 0.54
1,922,263 0.54
7,279,241 2.05
7,279,241 2.05
4.466,718 1.26
4,466,718 1.26
4171,629 1.18
4,443,038 1.25
5,771,554 1.63
5,567,944 1.57
8,660,392 245
4.190,627 1.19
2,664,451 0.75
1,216,556 0.34
11,936,868 3.37
2,689,020 0.76
4,175,775 1.18
460,916 0.13
214,782 0.06
1,004,442 0.28
4,621,160 1.31
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Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2020 (continued)

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2019.

Fair value % of net
Holdings Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Currency GBP assets

Equities: 95.37% (31 May 2019: 95.02%) (continued)

United Kingdom: 89.67% (31 May 2019: 90.22%)
(continued)

Commercial services: 10.05% (31 May 2019: 10.19%)

805,143 Aggreko PLC Com GBP0.05 GBP 3,780,146 1.07
4,416,747 Hays PLC Com GBPO0.01 GBP 4,973,257 140
211,642 Hyve Group PLC Com GBPO.1 GBP 204,785 0.06
451,563 Hyve Group PLC Com GBPO0.1 (NP 11/06/2020) GBP 115,374 0.03
503,177 Mears Group PLC Com GBPO0.01 GBP 855,401 0.24
1,367,269 Pagegroup PLC Com GBP0.01 GBP 5,112,219 144
872,065 QinetiQ Group PLC Com GBP0.01 GBP 2,575,208 0.73
717,908 RELX PLC Com GBPO0.14 GBP 13,451,801 3.80
524,309 Savills PLC Com GBP0.03 GBP 4,523,476 1.28
Cosmetics/personal care: 4.95% (31 May 2019: 4.44%)
2,939,633 PZ Cussons PLC Com GBP1.00 GBP 5,194,332 147
284,500 Unilever PLC Com GBP0.03 GBP 12,321,695 348
Distribution/wholesale: 2.25% (31 May 2019: 2.12%)

54,294 Bunzl PLC Com GBP0.32 GBP 1,023,578 0.29
571,643 Headlam Group GBP5.00 GBP 1,806,392 0.51
469,350 Travis Perkins Com GBP0.10 GBP 5,142,902 145

Diversified financial services: 16.24% (31 May 2019:
12.96%)
216,494 Close Brothers Group PLC GBP0.25 GBP 2,334,888 0.66
622,428 Hargreaves Lansdown PLC Com GBP0.004 GBP 11,418,442 3.22
345,019 Jupiter Fund Management PLC Com GBP0.02 GBP 862,892 0.24
168,314 London Stock Exchange Group PLC Com GBP0.07 GBP 13,512,248 3.81
1,634,624 Man Group PLC Com USD0.03 GBP 2,328,522 0.66
257,923 Numis Corp PLC Com GBPO0.05 GBP 780,217 0.22
607,212 Provident Financial PLC Com GBPO0.21 GBP 1,190,439 0.34
496,597 Rathbone Brothers GBP5.00 GBP 7,155,963 2.02
359,160 Schroders PLC Com GBP1.00 GBP 10,611,382 3.00
256,489 Schroders PLC Com-Non Voting GBP1.00 GBP 5,559,399 1.57
751,951 Urban & Civic PLC Com GBP0.20 GBP 1,755,806 0.50
Electronics: 2.52% (31 May 2019: 2.76%)
594,621 Electrocomponents PLC Com GBPO0.10 GBP 3,777,330 1.07
156,994 Spectris PLC Com GBP0.05 GBP 4,024,541 1.14
648,504 TT Electronics GBP25.00 GBP 1,118,669 0.31
Engineering & construction: 0.10% (31 May 2019:
0.00%)
92,663 Ricardo PLC GBP0.25 GBP 347,950 0.10
Food: 3.54% (31 May 2019: 2.72%)
2,445,399 Tesco PLC Com GBP0.05 GBP 5,581,623 1.57
3,731,638 Wm Morrison Supermarkets PLC Com GBP0.10 GBP 6,965,103 1.97
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Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2020 (continued)

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2019.

Holdings

1,621,695

1,329,979

2,319,297

587,017
39,569

44,520

1,368,244
549,976

613,349

1,824,619

1,583,134
975,231
2,956,723
748,676

293,168
188,661

576,924
2,375,521
231,753
135,353

1,456,399

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Currency
Equities: 95.37% (31 May 2019: 95.02%) (continued)

United Kingdom: 89.67% (31 May 2019: 90.22%)
(continued)

Gas: 0.17% (31 May 2019: 0.25%)

Centrica PLC Com GBP0.06 GBP
Healthcare-products: 0.76% (31 May 2019: 0.26%)

ConvaTec Group PLC Com GBP0.10 GBP
Holding companies-diversified: 0.46% (31 May 2019:

0.84%)

Mitie Group PLC Com GBPO0.03 GBP
Home builders: 0.70% (31 May 2019: 0.30%)

Crest Nicholson Holdings plc Com GBP0.03428571 GBP
Persimmon PLC Com GBP0.10 GBP
Household products/wares: 0.91% (31 May 2019:

1.18%)

Reckitt Benckiser Group PLC Com GBP0.10 GBP
Insurance: 1.37% (31 May 2019: 1.05%)

Aviva PLC Com GBP0.25 GBP
Direct Line Insurance Group PLC Com GBPO.11 GBP
Internet: 0.59% (31 May 2019: 0.68%)

Moneysupermarket.com Group PLC Com GBP0.0002 GBP
Investment companies: 0.59% (31 May 2019: 0.60%)

Melrose Industries PLC Com GBP0.07 GBP
Media: 6.87% (31 May 2019: 7.29%)

Daily Mail & General Trust PLC Com GBPO0.13 GBP
Euromoney Institutional Investor PLC Com GBP0.0025 GBP
ITV PLC Com GBP0.10 GCBP
Pearson PLC Com GBPO0.25 GBP
Mining: 3.71% (31 May 2019: 3.90%)

Anglo American PLC Com USDO0.55 GBP
Rio Tinto PLC Com GBP0.10 GBP
Miscellaneous manufacturing: 3.01% (31 May 2019:

3.00%)

IMI PLC Com GBPO0.29 GCBP
Senior PLC GBP10.00 GBP
Smiths Group PLC Com GBP0.38 GBP
Vitec Group GBP20.00 GBP
Oil & gas: 2.23% (31 May 2019: 3.91%)

BP PLC Com USDO0.25 GBP
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Fair value
GBP

592,324

2,701,187

1,631,625

1,556,182
907,713

3,215,680

3,388,456
1,454,962

2,100,720

2,100,593

11,358,986
7,133,815
2,373,953
3,465,621

4,985,322
8,136,477

5,189,432
1,473,417
3,026,694

973,188

4,452,576

% of net
assets

0.17

0.76

046

0.44
0.26

0.91

0.96
0.41

0.59

0.59

3.21
2.01
0.67
0.98

141
2.30

147
042
0.85
0.27

1.26
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Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2020 (continued)

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2019.

Holdings

279,719

426,662
480,385

380,939

591,418

1,328,501
774,309

981,903

2,863,002

184,892
1,530,498
181,793

3,710,544

107,458

155,267

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Currency
Equities: 95.37% (31 May 2019: 95.02%) (continued)

United Kingdom: 89.67% (31 May 2019: 90.22%)
(continued)

Oil & gas: 2.23% (31 May 2019: 3.91%) (continued)

Royal Dutch Shell PLC Class B Com EUR0.07 GBP
Oil & gas services: 0.46% (31 May 2019: 0.57%)

Hunting PLC GBP25.00 GCBP
John Wood Group PLC Com GBP0.04 GBP
Pharmaceuticals: 1.80% (31 May 2019: 1.55%)

GlaxoSmithKline PLC Com GBPO0.25 GBP
Private equity: 1.38% (31 May 2019: 1.49%)

3i Group PLC Com GBP0.74 GBP
Real estate: 1.00% (31 May 2019: 1.30%)

McCarthy & Stone PLC Com GBP8.00 GBP
St Modwen Properties PLC GBP10.00 GBP
Real estate investment trusts: 0.17% (31 May 2019:

0.17%)

Empiric Student Property PLC Reits GBP0.01 GBP
Retail: 0.49% (31 May 2019: 1.04%)

Restaurant Group PLC Com GBP0.28 GBP
Software: 3.82% (31 May 2019: 3.61%)

EMIS Group PLC Com GBP0.0T1 GBP
Sage Group PLC Com GBPO0.01 GBP
SDL PLC Com GBPO0.01 GCBP
Telecommunications: 1.39% (31 May 2019: 1.06%)

Vodafone Group PLC Com USDO.21 GBP
Transportation: 0.69% (31 May 2019: 1.27%)

Clarkson GBP25.00 GBP

Total United Kingdom
United States: 1.85% (31 May 2019: 1.50%)

Food: 1.85% (31 May 2019: 1.50%)
Mondelez International Inc Class A Com NPV usD

Total United States

Total equities

180

Fair value % of net

GBP assets
3,429,075 0.97
710,606 0.20
923,900 0.26
6,368,157 1.80
4,878,016 1.38
947,885 0.27
2,607,486 0.73
610,253 0.17
1,745,715 049
2,074,488 0.59
10,574,211 2.98
886,241 0.25
4,936,137 1.39
2,460,788 0.69
317,567,015 89.67
6,545,126 1.85
6,545,126 1.85
337,780,363 95.37
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Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2020 (continued)

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2019.

Unrealised % of net

No. of contracts Futures contracts: 0.41% (31 May 2019: -0.03%) Counterparty gain/(loss) assets
130 FTSE 100 Index Future June 2020 Goldman Sachs 1,317,5(;3P 0.37
30 FTSE 100 Index Future June 2020 Goldman Sachs 129,710 0.04
Total fair value gains on open futures contracts 1,447,260 0.41
28 FTSE 100 Index Future June 2020 Goldman Sachs (330) -
Total fair value losses on open futures contracts (330) -
Total futures contracts 1,446,930 0.41

Forward currency contracts: 0.02% (31 May 2019: 0.10%)

Maturity Unrealised % of net
Counterparty Cncy Buys Cncy Sells date gain assets
GBP
Barclays”™ EUR 82,386 GBP 73,592  17/06/2020 547 -
Barclays”® EUR 46,985 GBP 41,971 17/06/2020 312 -
Barclays” CBP 13,192 usb 16,000 17/06/2020 251 -
Barclays”® EUR 83,265 GBP 74,803  17/06/2020 127 -
Barclays” EUR 47,623 CBP 42,783  17/06/2020 73 -
Barclays”® CBP 2,061 usb 2,500 17/06/2020 39 -
Barclays”® EUR 1,940 GBP 1,732 17/06/2020 13 -
Barclays” EUR 1,967 GBP 1,767 17/06/2020 3 -
Barclays”® EUR 145 GBP 129  17/06/2020 1 -
Barclays” EUR 149 CBP 134  17/06/2020 - -
UBS EUR 2,690,660 GBP 2,376,039  17/06/2020 45,287 0.01
UBS EUR 1,582,003 GBP 1,397,018  17/06/2020 26,627 0.01
UBS EUR 63,526 GBP 56,098 17/06/2020 1,069 -
UBS EUR 4,774 GBP 4216 17/06/2020 80 -
Total fair value gains on forward currency contracts 74,429 0.02
Maturity Unrealised % of net
Counterparty Cncy Buys Cncy Sells date loss assets
GBP
Barclays® GBP 63 EUR 70 17/06/2020 - -
Barclays® CBP 866 EUR 970 17/06/2020 (7) -
Barclays” usb 5,285 CBP 4,289 17/06/2020 (15) -
Barclays”™ usb 5,232 GBP 4271  17/06/2020 (40) -
Barclays® usb 34,607 GBP 28,087 17/06/2020 (96) -
Barclays” GBP 21,430 EUR 24,000 17/06/2020 (167) -
Barclays”® usb 33,964 GBP 27,728 17/06/2020 (258) -
Barclays” GBP 35,896 EUR 40,200 17/06/2020 (280) -
Northern Trust ~ GBP 6,401 EUR 7,293  17/06/2020 (161) -
UBS CBP 7,345 EUR 8,174 17/06/2020 (10) -
UBS GBP 5,962 EUR 6,643 17/06/2020 (16) -
UBS GCBP 3,755 EUR 4202 17/06/2020 (26) -
UBS CBP 2,918 EUR 3,290 17/06/2020 (43) -
UBS CBP 4,446 EUR 4990 17/06/2020 (45) -
UBS CBP 7,567 EUR 8,512  17/06/2020 (93) -
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Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2019.

Forward currency contracts: 0.02% (31 May 2019: 0.10%) (continued)

Maturity Unrealised % of net
Counterparty Cncy Buys Cncy Sells date loss assets
GBP

UBS CBP 18,143 EUR 20,565 17/06/2020 (363) -
UBS usb 167,112 CBP 136,059 17/06/2020 (894) -
UBS usb 1,092,415 GCBP 889,418 17/06/2020 (5,844) -
Total fair value losses on forward currency contracts (8,358) -
Total forward currency contracts 66,071 0.02

Fair value % of net
GBP assets

Total value of investments 339,293,364 95.80
Cash and cash equivalents* 14,423,414 4.07
Other net assets 438,465 0.13
Net assets attributable to holders of redeemable
participating shares 354,155,243 ~ 100.00
% of total
Analysis of total assets (unaudited) assets
Transferable securities and money market instruments admitted to official stock exchange
listing or traded on a regulated market. 94.87
Financial derivative instruments dealt in on a regulated market. 0.41
OTC financial derivative instruments. 0.02
Other assets. 4.70
100.00

*All cash holdings are held with The Northern Trust Company other than GBP 1,001,411 held with Goldman Sachs as
security by the counterparty to derivatives contracts.

**Valued at a stale price.

A Related party.

The Industry Classification Benchmark (“ICB”) is jointly owned by FTSE and Dow Jones and has been licensed for use. FTSE
and Dow Jones do not accept liability to any person for any loss or damage arising out of any error or omission in ICB.
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Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2019.

Holdings

100,000

1,300,000
100,000
200,000
200,000
200,000
400,000
100,000
100,000
100,000

300,000
200,000
700,000

300,000

200,000

150,000

300,000

2,100,000

550,000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Bonds: 109.12% (31 May 2019: 102.39%)
Australia: 1.46% (31 May 2019: 0.46%)

Corporate bonds: 0.07% (31 May 2019: 0.00%)
APT Pipelines Ltd 3.875% 11/10/2022

Government bonds: 1.39% (31 May 2019: 0.46%)
Australia Government Bond 5.75% 15/07/2022

New South Wales Treasury Corp 2% 20/03/2031
Northern Territory Treasury Corp 2% 21/04/2031
Queensland Treasury Corp 1.75% 21/08/2031
Queensland Treasury Corp 3.5% 21/08/2030
Treasury Corp of Victoria 1.5% 20/11/2030

Treasury Corp of Victoria 2.5% 22/10/2029

Treasury Corp of Victoria 4.25% 20/12/2032
Western Australian Treasury Corp 2.75% 24/07/2029

Total Australia

Belgium: 1.42% (31 May 2019: 0.32%)

Government bonds: 1.03% (31 May 2019: 0.32%)
Belgium Government Bond 1.6% 22/06/2047
Belgium Government Bond 1.9% 22/06/2038
Belgium Government Bond 2.875% 18/09/2024

Government sponsored agencies: 0.39% (31 May 2019:

0.00%)
Region Wallonne 0.05% 22/06/2025
Region Wallonne 1.05% 22/06/2040

Total Belgium

Canada: 2.09% (31 May 2019: 0.57%)
Corporate bonds: 0.38% (31 May 2019: 0.17%)
Canadian Imperial Bank of Commerce 0.375%

03/05/2024
Royal Bank of Canada FRN 30/01/2025

Government bonds: 1.24% (31 May 2019: 0.14%)
Canadian Government Bond 2.25% 01/06/2029

Government sponsored agencies: 0.47% (31 May 2019:

0.26%)
CPPIB Capital Inc 0.75% 15/07/2049

Total Canada
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Currency

usbD

AUD
AUD
AUD
AUD
AUD
AUD
AUD
AUD
AUD

EUR
EUR
usbD

EUR

EUR

EUR

GBP

CAD

EUR

Fair value % of net

usD assets
104,570 0.07
963,356 0.68
69,242 0.05
133,488 0.10
134,414 0.10
158,618 0.11
267,014 0.19
73,386 0.05
86,422 0.06
74,522 0.05
2,065,032 1.46
412,620 0.29
279,693 0.20
766,689 0.54
335,093 0.23
222,870 0.16
2,016,965 1.42
164,576 0.12
367,155 0.26
1,758,777 1.24
660,412 047
2,950,920 2.09
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Schedule of investments as at 31 May 2020 (continued)

Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2019.

Holdings

200,000
300,000

600,000

2,994,615
1,932,682
1
3,898,611
1
1,969,902
1,139
100,000
7,022,152
1

4,297
1,157,900

12,496
1
19,857

700,000
600,000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Bonds: 109.12% (31 May 2019: 102.39%) (continued)
Cayman Islands: 0.34% (31 May 2019: 0.00%)

Corporate bonds: 0.34% (31 May 2019: 0.00%)
Park Aerospace Holdings Ltd 5.25% 15/08/2022
Tencent Holdings Ltd 1.81% 26/01/2026

Total Cayman Islands

Czech Republic: 0.51% (31 May 2019: 2.15%)

Government bonds: 0.51% (31 May 2019: 2.15%)
Czech Republic International 3.875% 24/05/2022

Total Czech Republic
Denmark: 2.09% (31 May 2019: 1.55%)

Corporate bonds: 2.09% (31 May 2019: 1.54%)
Jyske Realkredit A/S 1% 01/10/2050

Jyske Realkredit A/S 1.5% 01/10/2050

Jyske Realkredit A/S 2% 01/10/2047

Nordea Kredit Realkreditaktieselskab 1% 01/10/2050
Nordea Kredit Realkreditaktieselskab 2% 01/10/2047
Nordea Kredit Realkreditaktieselskab 2% 01/10/2050
Nordea Kredit Realkreditaktieselskab 2.5% 01/10/2047
Nykredit Realkredit A/S 0.25% 20/01/2023

Nykredit Realkredit A/S 1.5% 01/10/2050

Nykredit Realkredit A/S 2% 01/10/2047

Nykredit Realkredit A/S 2.5% 01/10/2047

Realkredit Danmark A/S 2% 01/10/2050

Government sponsored agencies: 0.00% (31 May 2019:

0.01%)

Nordea Kredit Realkreditaktieselskab 3% 01/10/2047
Realkredit Danmark A/S 2% 01/10/2047

Realkredit Danmark A/S 2.5% 01/07/2047

Total Denmark

Finland: 1.08% (31 May 2019: 0.08%)

Corporate bonds: 0.00% (31 May 2019: 0.08%)

Government bonds: 1.08% (31 May 2019: 0.00%)
Finland Government Bond 0.5% 15/04/2026
Finland Government Bond 0.875% 15/09/2025

Total Finland
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Currency

usbD
usbD

EUR

DKK
DKK
DKK
DKK
DKK
DKK
DKK
EUR
DKK
DKK
DKK
DKK

DKK
DKK
DKK

EUR
EUR

Fair value % of net
usbD assets
176,654 0.13
301,803 0.21
478,457 0.34
720,107 0.51
720,107 0.51
437,168 0.31
293,407 0.21
569,184 040
303,510 0.21
179 —
109,030 0.08
1,062,306 0.75
672 -
176,743 0.13
2,035 -
3,096 -
2,957,330 2.09
820,190 0.58
714,241 0.50
1,534,431 1.08
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Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2019.

Fair value % of net
Holdings Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Currency usD assets

Bonds: 109.12% (31 May 2019: 102.39%) (continued)
France: 7.32% (31 May 2019: 5.42%)

Corporate bonds: 0.33% (31 May 2019: 0.58%)

250,000 BPCE 2.375% 14/01/2025 usD 253,508 0.18
200,000 Worldline SA/France 0.25% 18/09/2024 EUR 213,926 0.15
Government bonds: 6.33% (31 May 2019: 4.84%)
1,000,000 France Treasury Bill BTF 0% 08/07/2020 EUR 1,113,026 0.79
1,300,000 French Republic Government Bond OAT 1.5% 25/05/2050 EUR 1,776,881 1.25
200,000 French Republic Government Bond OAT 1.75% EUR 309,153 0.22
25/05/2066
800,000 French Republic Government Bond OAT 2% 25/05/2048 EUR 1,201,819 0.85
3,190,000 French Republic Government Bond OAT 2.25% EUR 4,551,492 3.22
25/07/2020
Government sponsored agencies: 0.66% (31 May 2019:
0.00%)
300,000 Agence Francaise de Developpement 0.5% 31/05/2035 EUR 332,237 0.24
600,000 SNCF Mobilities 0.625% 20/05/2023 usD 599,073 042
Total France 10,351,115 7.32

Germany: 5.02% (31 May 2019: 3.24%)

Corporate bonds: 0.93% (31 May 2019: 0.40%)

800,000 Deutsche Bank AG 1.625% 20/01/2027 EUR 856,653 0.61
200,000 Deutsche Bank AG 1.75% 16/12/2021 GBP 244,356 0.17
200,000 Volkswagen Group of America Finance LLC 3.75% usD 212,368 0.15
13/05/2030
Government bonds: 4.09% (31 May 2019: 2.84%)
2,600,000 Bundesrepublik Deutschland 0% 13/10/2023 EUR 2,958,325 2.09
1,100,000 Bundesrepublik Deutschland 1% 15/08/2024 EUR 1,310,338 0.92
500,000 Bundesrepublik Deutschland Bundesanleihe 0.25% EUR 592,914 042
15/08/2028
500,000 German Treasury Bill 0% 10/06/2020 EUR 556,234 0.39
300,000 State of North Rhine-Westphalia Germany 1.1% EUR 377,514 0.27
13/03/2034
Total Germany 7,108,702 5.02

Hong Kong: 0.16% (31 May 2019: 0.45%)

Corporate bonds: 0.16% (31 May 2019: 0.00%)
200,000 AIA Group Ltd 3.9% 06/04/2028 usb 223,226 0.16

Government bonds: 0.00% (31 May 2019: 0.45%)

Total Hong Kong 223,226 0.16
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Holdings

85,000,000

2,700,000
600,000

1,400,000
1,900,000
200,000
790,000
200,000

300,000
250,000

2,800,000
2,300,000
1,600,000

300,000

1,300,000
400,000
200,000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Bonds: 109.12% (31 May 2019: 102.39%) (continued)
Hungary: 0.20% (31 May 2019: 0.90%)

Government bonds: 0.20% (31 May 2019: 0.90%)
Hungary Government International Bond 2.5%
24/10/2024

Total Hungary
Ireland: 2.94% (31 May 2019: 1.79%)

Corporate bonds: 0.00% (31 May 2019: 0.23%)

Government bonds: 2.94% (31 May 2019: 1.56%)
Ireland Government Bond 1.35% 18/03/2031
Ireland Government Bond 1.5% 15/05/2050

Total Ireland

Israel: 1.67% (31 May 2019: 1.73%)

Government bonds: 1.67% (31 May 2019: 1.73%)

Israel Government Bond - Fixed 2% 31/03/2027

Israel Government Bond - Fixed 2.25% 28/09/2028

Israel Government International Bond 3.8% 13/05/2060
Israel Government International Bond 4% 30/06/2022
Israel Government International Bond 4.125% 17/01/2048

Total Israel

Italy: 6.06% (31 May 2019: 9.78%)

Corporate bonds: 0.42% (31 May 2019: 0.00%)
Banca Monte dei Paschi di Siena SpA 0.875% 08/10/2027
UniCredit SpA FRN 20/01/2026

Government bonds: 5.64% (31 May 2019: 9.78%)

Italy Buoni Ordinari del Tesoro BOT 0% 14/07/2020
Italy Buoni Poliennali Del Tesoro 1.35% 01/04/2030
Italy Buoni Poliennali Del Tesoro 2.45% 01/10/2023

Republic of Italy Government International Bond 6%
04/08/2028

Total Italy
Japan: 14.46% (31 May 2019: 17.64%)

Corporate bonds: 1.63% (31 May 2019: 2.11%)

Central Nippon Expressway Co Ltd 2.849% 03/03/2022
JT International Financial Services BV 1.125% 28/09/2025
Mizuho Financial Group Inc 2.953% 28/02/2022
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Currency

HUF

EUR
EUR

ILS
ILS
usD
usD
usD

EUR
EUR

EUR
EUR
EUR
GBP

usbD
EUR
usbD

Fair value % of net

usbD assets
286,528 0.20
286,528 0.20
3,369,681 2.38
794,391 0.56
4,164,072 2.94
439,593 0.31
620,101 044
226,027 0.16
841,138 0.59
240,883 0.17
2,367,742 1.67
329,261 0.23
260,576 0.19
3,115,459 2.20
2,529,186 1.79
1,886,900 1.33
458,128 0.32
8,579,510 6.06
1,338,511 0.95
455,920 0.32
206,832 0.15
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Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2019.

Holdings

300,000

30,000,000
450,000,000
280,000,000

30,000,000
770,000,000
170,000,000

90,000,000

600,000

600,000

300,000

200,000

600,000
900,000
900,000
300,000

1,200,000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Bonds: 109.12% (31 May 2019: 102.39%) (continued)
Japan: 14.46% (31 May 2019: 17.64%) (continued)

Corporate bonds: 1.63% (31 May 2019: 2.11%)
Sumitomo Mitsui Financial Group Inc FRN 09/03/2021

Government bonds: 12.40% (31 May 2019: 15.53%)
Japan Government Thirty Year Bond 0.5% 20/03/2049
Japan Treasury Discount Bill 0% 29/06/2020

Japan Treasury Discount Bill 0% 20/07/2020

Japan Treasury Discount Bill 0% 27/07/2020

Japan Treasury Discount Bill 0% 03/08/2020

Japan Treasury Discount Bill 0% 24/08/2020

Japanese Government CPI Linked Bond 0.1% 10/03/2028
Tokyo Metropolitan Government 2.625% 29/05/2024

Government sponsored agencies: 0.43% (31 May 2019:
0.00%)

Japan Finance Organization for Municipalities 1%
21/05/2025

Total Japan
Jersey: 0.24% (31 May 2019: 0.00%)

Corporate bonds: 0.24% (31 May 2019: 0.00%)
AA Bond Co Ltd 2.75% 31/07/2043

Total Jersey

Latvia: 0.17% (31 May 2019: 0.39%)

Government bonds: 0.17% (31 May 2019: 0.39%)
Latvia Government International Bond 1.125%
30/05/2028

Total Latvia

Lithuania: 3.04% (31 May 2019: 0.68%)

Government bonds: 3.04% (31 May 2019: 0.68%)
Lithuania Government Bond 0.4% 16/08/2023
Lithuania Government Bond 0.4% 17/04/2024
Lithuania Government Bond 0.5% 19/06/2029
Lithuania Government International Bond 0.25%
06/05/2025

Lithuania Government International Bond 6.125%
09/03/2021

Total Lithuania
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Currency

usbD

JPY
JPY
JPY
JPY
JPY
JPY
JPY
usD

usD

GBP

EUR

EUR
EUR
EUR
EUR

usbD

Fair value % of net

usbD assets
302,156 0.21
279,682 0.20
4177444 2.95
2,599,481 1.84
278,522 0.20
7,148,860 5.05
1,578,397 1.11
844,627 0.60
641,208 045
602,522 043
20,454,162 14.46
343,722 0.24
343,722 0.24
239,905 0.17
239,905 0.17
673,818 048
1,009,818 0.71
1,029,554 0.73
340,996 0.24
1,249,849 0.88
4,304,035 3.04
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Transferable securities admitted to an official stock exchange listing or traded on a regulated market. The percentages in
brackets show the equivalent sector holdings at 31 May 2019.

Holdings

250,000

1,400,000
800,000
800,000
900,000

14,350,000
100,000

100,000
200,000

2,800,000

9,500,000
2,000,000
9,500,000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Bonds: 109.12% (31 May 2019: 102.39%) (continued)
Luxembourg: 0.19% (31 May 2019: 0.26%)

Corporate bonds: 0.19% (31 May 2019: 0.26%)
Logicor Financing Sarl 0.75% 15/07/2024

Total Luxembourg

Malaysia: 0.67% (31 May 2019: 0.00%)

Government bonds: 0.67% (31 May 2019: 0.00%)
Malaysia Government Bond 3.502% 31/05/2027
Malaysia Government Bond 3.733% 15/06/2028
Malaysia Government Bond 3.882% 14/03/2025
Malaysia Government Bond 3.955% 15/09/2025

Total Malaysia
Mexico: 0.62% (31 May 2019: 0.94%)

Government bonds: 0.62% (31 May 2019: 0.94%)
Mexican Bonos 10% 05/12/2024
Mexico Government International Bond 4% 15/03/2115

Total Mexico

Netherlands: 0.25% (31 May 2019: 0.63%)

Corporate bonds: 0.25% (31 May 2019: 0.63%)
Digital Dutch Finco BV 0.125% 15/10/2022
Volkswagen Financial Services NV 1.625% 30/11/2022

Total Netherlands
New Zealand: 0.00% (31 May 2019: 0.08%)

Corporate bonds: 0.00% (31 May 2019: 0.08%)

Norway: 0.22% (31 May 2019: 0.15%)

Government bonds: 0.22% (31 May 2019: 0.15%)
Norway Government Bond 1.75% 13/03/2025

Total Norway

People's Republic of China: 4.46% (31 May 2019: 0.00%)

Government bonds: 4.46% (31 May 2019: 0.00%)
China Government Bond 3.48% 29/06/2027

China Government Bond 3.6% 27/06/2028

China Government Bond 3.82% 02/11/2027
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Currency

EUR

MYR
MYR
MYR
MYR

MXN
EUR

EUR
GBP

NOK

CNH
CNH
CNH

Fair value % of net

usbD assets
268,140 0.19
268,140 0.19
340,285 0.24
195,608 0.14
195,576 0.14
222,056 0.15
953,525 0.67
767,030 0.54
105,737 0.08
872,767 0.62
108,953 0.08
243,537 0.17
352,490 0.25
308,759 0.22
308,759 0.22
1,396,643 0.99
295,208 0.21
1,426,782 1.01
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Fair value % of net
Holdings Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Currency usD assets

Bonds: 109.12% (31 May 2019: 102.39%) (continued)

People’s Republic of China: 4.46% (31 May 2019:
0.00%) (continued)

Government bonds: 4.46% (31 May 2019: 0.00%)

500,000 China Government Bond 3.9% 04/07/2036 CNH 75,448 0.05
1,000,000 China Government Bond 3.95% 29/06/2043 CNH 154,184 0.11
1,500,000 China Government Bond 4% 30/11/2035 CNH 229,738 0.16

17,500,000 China Government Bond 4.29% 22/05/2029 CNH 2,729,853 1.93
Total People's Republic of China 6,307,856 4.46

Poland: 0.64% (31 May 2019: 1.34%)

Corporate bonds: 0.24% (31 May 2019: 0.15%)

300,000 PKO Bank Hipoteczny SA 0.75% 24/01/2024 EUR 341,110 0.24
Government bonds: 0.40% (31 May 2019: 1.19%)

2,000,000 Republic of Poland Government Bond 3.25% 25/07/2025 PLN 562,742 040

Total Poland 903,852 0.64

Republic of South Korea: 1.69% (31 May 2019: 0.00%)

Government bonds: 1.69% (31 May 2019: 0.00%)
2,328,500,000 Korea Treasury Bond 4% 10/12/2031 KRW 2,392,568 1.69

Total Republic of South Korea 2,392,568 1.69

Russian Federation: 0.51% (31 May 2019: 0.52%)

Government bonds: 0.51% (31 May 2019: 0.52%)

7,300,000 Russian Federal Bond - OFZ 7.25% 10/05/2034 RUB 118,345 0.08
40,000,000 Russian Federal Bond - OFZ 7.4% 07/12/2022 RUB 603,005 043
Total Russian Federation 721,350 0.51

Saudi Arabia: 2.13% (31 May 2019: 1.65%)

Government bonds: 2.13% (31 May 2019: 1.65%)

400,000 KSA Sukuk Ltd 4.303% 19/01/2029 usD 455,000 0.32

1,000,000 Saudi Government International Bond 2.375% 26/10/2021 uUsD 1,011,288 0.71

900,000 Saudi Government International Bond 3.625% usD 972,763 0.69
04/03/2028 - Ireland

500,000 Saudi Government International Bond 4.5% 17/04/2030 uUsSD 573,873 041

Total Saudi Arabia 3,012,924 2.13
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Fair value % of net
Holdings Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss Currency usD assets

Bonds: 109.12% (31 May 2019: 102.39%) (continued)
Singapore: 0.00% (31 May 2019: 0.70%)

Corporate bonds: 0.00% (31 May 2019: 0.70%)

Slovakia: 1.28% (31 May 2019: 0.86%)

Government bonds: 1.28% (31 May 2019: 0.86%)

200,000 Slovakia Government Bond 0.25% 14/05/2025 EUR 227,081 0.16
800,000 Slovakia Government Bond 0.75% 09/04/2030 EUR 933,816 0.66
400,000 Slovakia Government Bond 2.25% 12/06/2068 EUR 650,435 046

Total Slovakia 1,811,332 1.28

Spain: 8.31% (31 May 2019: 9.50%)

Corporate bonds: 0.08% (31 May 2019: 0.15%)

100,000 CaixaBank SA 1.75% 24/10/2023 EUR 111,571 0.08
Government bonds: 8.23% (31 May 2019: 9.35%)
2,875,000 Spain Government Bond 0% 12/06/2020 EUR 3,198,529 2.26
1,500,000 Spain Government Bond 0.25% 30/07/2024 EUR 1,697,514 1.20
400,000 Spain Government Bond 0.6% 31/10/2029 EUR 451,455 0.32
200,000 Spain Government Bond 1.25% 31/10/2030 EUR 237,949 0.17
1,100,000 Spain Government Bond 1.3% 31/10/2026 EUR 1,315,836 0.93
400,000 Spain Government Bond 1.4% 30/07/2028 EUR 483,541 0.34
353,000 Spain Government Bond 1.45% 30/04/2029 EUR 428,447 0.30
800,000 Spain Government Bond 2.15% 31/10/2025 EUR 993,496 0.70
2,200,000 Spain Government Bond 4.4% 31/10/2023 EUR 2,837,562 2.01
Total Spain 11,755,900 8.31

Sweden: 0.23% (31 May 2019: 1.89%)

Corporate bonds: 0.00% (31 May 2019: 1.89%)

Government bonds: 0.23% (31 May 2019: 0.00%)
2,800,000 Sweden Government Bond 0.75% 12/11/2029 SEK 319,601 0.23

Total Sweden 319,601 0.23

Switzerland: 0.00% (31 May 2019: 0.56%)

Corporate bonds: 0.00% (31 May 2019: 0.56%)

United Kingdom: 11.60% (31 May 2019: 13.63%)
Corporate bonds: 3.19% (31 May 2019: 3.39%)

200,000 Firstgroup PLC 8.75% 08/04/2021 GBP 255,041 0.18
300,000 HSBC Holdings PLC FRN 22/05/2030 usD 327,814 0.23
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Holdings

300,000
300,000
400,000
800,000
250,000
300,000
300,000
400,000
500,000

4,200,000
550,000
100,000
100,000
710,775

3,100,000

100,000

45,000
400,000
250,000
200,000

75,000
100,000
150,000
100,000
350,000
245,000
500,000
200,000
240,000
250,000
150,000
150,000
200,000
100,000
100,000
150,000

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Bonds: 109.12% (31 May 2019: 102.39%) (continued)

United Kingdom: 11.60% (31 May 2019: 13.63%)
(continued)

Corporate bonds: 3.19% (31 May 2019: 3.39%)
HSBC Holdings PLC FRN 13/03/2028

HSBC Holdings PLC 4.3% 08/03/2026
Nationwide Building Society 1.7% 13/02/2023
Nationwide Building Society 3.9% 21/07/2025
NatWest Markets PLC FRN 18/06/2021
Santander UK PLC 1.125% 10/03/2025
Santander UK PLC 2.5% 05/01/2021

Virgin Money PLC FRN 22/03/2024

Yorkshire Building Society 0.875% 20/03/2023

Government bonds: 8.41% (31 May 2019: 10.24%)
United Kingdom CGilt 1% 22/04/2024

United Kingdom Gilt 1.5% 22/07/2047

United Kingdom Gilt 1.75% 22/01/2049

United Kingdom Gilt 3.25% 22/01/2044

United Kingdom Gilt 3.5% 22/01/2045

United Kingdom Treasury Bill 0% 09/11/2020

Total United Kingdom
United States: 26.05% (31 May 2019: 22.53%)

Corporate bonds: 3.15% (31 May 2019: 4.53%)
AbbVie Inc 2.3% 21/11/2022

Air Products and Chemicals Inc 1.5% 15/10/2025
Ares Capital Corp 3.625% 19/01/2022

Citigroup Inc 2.9% 08/12/2021

Danaher Corp 1.7% 30/03/2024

DuPont de Nemours Inc 2.169% 01/05/2023
Energy Transfer Operating LP 2.9% 15/05/2025
Fiserv Inc 0.375% 01/07/2023

General Mills Inc 1% 27/04/2023

International Lease Finance Corp 4.625% 15/04/2021
JPMorgan Chase & Co FRN 15/10/2025

JPMorgan Chase & Co FRN 25/04/2023

Microsoft Corp 2.4% 08/08/2026

MUFG Americas Holdings Corp 3% 10/02/2025
National Securities Clearing Corp 1.2% 23/04/2023
NextEra Energy Capital Holdings Inc 2.403% 01/09/2021
Occidental Petroleum Corp 2.6% 13/08/2021
Occidental Petroleum Corp 2.7% 15/08/2022
ONEOK Inc 2.75% 01/09/2024

Sabine Pass Liquefaction LLC 4.5% 15/05/2030
Sabine Pass Liquefaction LLC 5.625% 01/03/2025
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Currency

usbD
ush
usbD
usbD
EUR
EUR
usbD
GBP
EUR

GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP
GBP

usD
usbD
usD
usbD
EUR
usbD
usbD
EUR
EUR
usD
usbD
usbD
usD
usD
usbD
usD
usbD
ushD
usbD
usbD
usbD

Fair value % of net
usD assets
326,737 0.23
336,349 0.24
409,618 0.29
889,866 0.63
277522 0.20
343,787 0.24
303,371 0.21
497,052 0.35
551,909 0.39
5,404,001 3.82
836,333 0.59
161,745 0.11
196,065 